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2 September 1947

UNITED STATES
Vs Case No, 12-2000, etc.
Jurgen STROOP, et al;

REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS

I, TRIAL DATAs The accused were tried at Dachau, Germany, during the period
10 January 1947 to 21 March 1947, before a General Military Government Court, :

II. CHARGES AND PARTICULARS:

CHARGE l:; Violation of the Laws of ‘.Tar‘

Particulars: That the accused, Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRUILLLER,
Otto SOMANN, Arthur FUHR, mlhelm HOHLER, Hans EICHEL, Josef
Johann KIWITT, Wilhelm ALBRECHT, Hermann MOLLER, Wilhelm
Friedrich GOEHRENDT, Paul NAHRGANG, FPhilipp HAMMANN, Bernard
FAY, Georg BEST, Erwin (GOSS, Heinrich Matthias MICHELY, Leonard
BRANNER, Julius LASSAK, Fritz GIRKE, Heinz HELLENBROICH, Karl
Franz STATTUMANN and Michael RAAF, German nationals, between the
9th day of December 1941 amd~the 8t day of lMay 1945, at sundry
places within the then German Reich, individually and collec-
tively, as principals, accessories, leaders organizers, insti-
gators and accomplices, did engage in, formulste and participate
in a common plan or design to commit, or cause to be committed,
violations of the Laws or War and pursuant thereto did, wile
fully, deliberately and wrongfully encourage, aid, abet, order
and participate in, or took a consenting part in the subjection
of members of the armed forces of nations then at war, with the
then German Reich, who were then and there surrendered and un-
armed prisoners of war in the custody of the then German Reich,
to cruelties and mistreatment, including killings, beatings,
tortures, abuses and indignities.

CHARGE 2: Violation of Par. 1(d), Article 2 of Control
Council Law No. 10,

Particulars; That the accused, Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRUMMLER,
Otto SOMANN, Arthur FUHR, Wilhelm H§HLER, Hans EICHEL, Josaf
Johann KIWITT, ‘Tilhelm ALBREGHT, Hermann MBLLER, '7ilhelm
Friedrich GOEHRENDT, Paul NAHRGANG, Philipp HAMMANN, Bernard
FAY, Georg BEST, Erwin GOSS, Hei.nriah Matthias MICHELY,

Leonard BRANNER, Julius LASSAK, Fritz QIRKE, Heinz HEII:EIBROIGH,
Xarl Franz STATTMANN and Michael RAAF, German nationals, were
members of organizations declared criminal by the International
Military Tribunal in Case No. 1, i.e., the Leadership Corps,

Die Geheime Staats Polizei (commonly known as the Gestapo), Dia
Sicherheitsdienst der Reichsfuehrer SS (commonly known as the
SD), or Die Schutzstaffeln der National Socialistischen Deutschen
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Arbeitspartei (commonly known as the $S), after 1 September
1939, with knowledge that the said organizations were being
used in the commission of acts declared criminal by Article
6 of the Charter of the International Military Tribunal,
annexed to the agreement establishing the Tribunal, dated 8
August 1945, or were personally implicated in the commission
of such criminal acts, ‘ '

CHARGE 33 Violation of the Laws of ¥ar.

Particulars: In that Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRUIMLER, Otto
SOMANN, Julius LASSAK and Leonard BRANNER, German nationals,
did, on or about 3 October 19LlL, at or near GIESSEN, Germany,
wilfully, deliberatelv and wrongfully encourage, aid, abet
and participate in the killing of an unknown member of the
United States Army who was then and there a surrendered and
unarmed prisoner of war in the custody of the then German
Reich.,

CHARGE k4: Violation of the Laws of War,

Particulars; 1In that Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRU'TILIR, Otto
SOMANN, Wilhelm HUHLER and Arthur FUUR, German nationals, did,
on or about 19 October 194k, at or near ITSBADEN, Germany,
wilfully, deliberately and wrongfully encourage, aid, abet and
participate in the killing of a member of the United States
Army, believed to he Sgt. Willard F. PERRY, ASN 36591162, who
was then and there a surrendered and unarmed prisoner of war
in the custody of the then Gerian Reich.,

CHARGE 5: Violation of the Laws of Tar

Particulars: In that Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRUMMLER, Otto
SOMANN and Arthur FUHR, German nationals, did, on or about

30 December 19LL, at or near DELKENHEIM, Germany, wilfully,
deliberately and wrongfully encourage, aid, abet nd partici-
pate in the killing of a member of the United States Army,
believed to be T/Sgt. Robert i, GARRISON, .Si 33355163, who
was then and there a surrendered and unarmed »:'isonar of war
in the custody of the then German Reich.

CHARGE 63 Violation of the Laws of War.

Particulars: In that Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRUISLER, Otto, )
SOLisNN, Fritz GIRKE, Heinz HELLENBROICH, Karl Franz STATT:LNN
and #ichael RALF, German nationals, did, on or about 15
February 1545, at or near BENSHEIM, Germany, wilfully, deliber-
ately and wrongfully encourage, aid, abet and participate in
the killing of 1 member of the United States irmy, believed

to be Ray R. HERMANN, ASN O0=695168, who was then and therec a
surrendered and unarmed prisoner of war in the custody of the
then German Reich.,

CHARGE 7: Violation of the Laws of ‘far.

Farticulars: 1In that Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRUIS{LER, Otto
SOMANN, Hans IICHEL, Josef Johann KI7ITT, 7ilhelm ALBRECHT,
Hermann MOLLER, and lfilhelm Friedrich GORIRENDT, German
Nationals, did, on or about 22 February 1745, at or near
BIEBER, Germany, wilfully, deliberately and wrongfully en-
courage, aid, abet and pirticipive in the killing of a1 member
of the United Stites Army, bslieved to be 7illiam A. DUKE,
2nd Lt., air Corps, iUS, 4SN 0-325602, who was then and there
a surrendered and unirmed prisoner of war in the custody of
the then German Reich,
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CHARGE 8: Violation of the Laws of “7ar.

Particulars: In that Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRU:fLER, Otto
SO'{.NN, Hans EICHEL, Josef Johann KITITT, Paul N.iHRG.NG,

Philipp HalT#ANN and Bernard FaY, German nationals, did, on

or about 22 February 1945, at or near OFWENB.CH, Geruany,
wilfully, deliborately and wrongfully encourage, aid, abet

and participate in the killing of a nember of the United States
Lrmy, believed to be .rchibald B, MONROE, Jr., 2nd Lt,, iir
Corps, aSN 0-834852, who was then and there a surrendered and
unarmed prisoncr of war in the custody of the then German Reich.

CHARGE 93¢ Violation of the Laws of .ar,

Particularss In that Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRU'GLER, Otto

SO AN, Georg BEST, Frwin GOSS and Heinrich Matthias MICHELY,
German nationals, did, on or about 18 March 1945, at at near
"inLLRABENSTEIN, Garmany, wilfully, deliberately and wrongfully '
encourage, aid, abet and participate in the killing of a

metber of the United States army, believed to be Jimmie R,

HEATH {aN, iSN 37630603, who was then and there a surrondered and
unaraed prisoner of war in the custody of the then German Re..ch,

CHARGE 10: Violation of the Laws of ‘/ar,

Particularsy In that Jurgen STROOP, Hans TRU!CILER, Otto

SO. LN, Fritz GIRKE, Heinz HELLENBROICH, Karl Franz STATT {ANN
and Michael R..F*, German nation2ls, iid, on or about 24 March
1945, at or near BENSHEIM, Germany, wilfully, deliberately and
wrongully encourage, aid, abet -ind pirticipate in the killing
of two membors of the United States army, bzlieved to be Lt,
'filliam H, FOR#N, T.D., 4GO Card No, 652973, and Pvt. Robert
T« HeDONALD, ASN 32773939, who wsre then and thore surrendered
and unarmed prisoncrs of war in the custody' of the then Gernman
Reich,

A1l accused pleaded not guilty to all charges and particulars in which

they were named,

IIT, FINDINGS .ND SENTENCES:
The findings of the Court and sentences imposed are as follows:

(The numbors precoding tho names are those assigned by the Court to the
rospective accused, These numbers will be used hercinafter to facilitate
reference to the various accusod,)
FINDINGS
10T GUILTY GUILTY
4 CCUSED C'{..R%,S 08, C{L.R’G'?JS NOS, SENTENCES
STROOP, Jurgen 7, 8, 10 1, 2, 3, by S, 6, 9 Death by hanging
* TRUSILER, Hans - 3, 7, 8, 9,0 1, 2, 4, 5, 6 Death by hanging

" FUHR, .rthur 1, 2, 4y 5 Death by hanging
HOHLER, Wilhelm I; 2; & Death by hanging




FINDINGS

NOT GUILTY GUILTY

ALCCUSED CHARGES NOS., CHARGES NOS. SENTENCES

¥
6., EICHEL, Hans 2 1, 7, 8 Death by hanging

7. KIWITT, Josef 1, 7, 8 Death by hanging
Johann

8, ALBRECHT, Wilhelm 2 137 15 years, commencing
29 May 1945

9« MOLLER, Hermann 1 G Death by hanging

10. GOEHRENDT, Wilhelm 1,
Friedrich

NAHRGANG, Paul iy g year:;s co;n;ﬁtslcing
December

HAIMANN, Philipp 1, 15 years, commencing
12 May 1945

FAY, Bernard 1, S years, commencing

22 Hay 1945

BEST, Georg - %S, gea;; l,; Scommonc ing
May

GOSS, Erwin Death by hanging

MICHELY, 1 2, 9 Death by hanging
Heinrich Matthias

BRANNER, Leonard Trial in absentia com:enced--no findings or sentence.

LASSAK, Julius Ly 2 3 years, commencing
6 May 1945

GIRKE, Fritz Death by hanging
HELLENBROICH, Heinz Death by hanging
STATTUANN, Karl Franz Death by hanging
RAAF, Michao.l _ Death by hanging

SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE:

1, Common Plan and Designs; Orders and directives to kill unarmed

prisoners of war were conceived and passed down by various persons holding
high official positions in the hierarchy of the then German Reich, These
orders were transmitted through official channels to accused STROOP, SOMAMNN,
and TRUIMMLER in Tlehrkreis XII, STROOP was the Higher SS a-nd Police Leader in

said Wehrkreis, SOMANN was the Inspector of the Security Police and Security

4




)

Service and was later succeeded by accused TRUMMLER. These accused held con=-
fereances at various times concerning these orders among themselves and w th
their subordinates, and they passed them on through official channels to lower
comnands, Acting in accordance with these orders, their subordiﬁates killed -
unarmed and surrendered American prisoners of war.,

ost of the accused in this case admitted their guilt and the respectivé
parts played by each in this common plan and design to violate the laws of way,
Such confessions of guilt appear in the extrajudicial sworn statements made by
them and in their testimony given during the trial, Most of them contended I
that they acted pursuant to superior orders emanating from higher civil and
military authority. This and other legal questions raised during the trial
will be discussed in Section VI, post.

2. Organization of German Police: Himmler, as Reichsfuhrer SS and Chief

of the German Police, by decree dated 26 June 1936 reorganized the German
Police into two separate branches, i.e., Ordnungspolizei (ORPO, meaning Order
Police or regular police) and the Sicherheitspolizei (SIPO, meaning Security
Police).

The Order Police was composed of the unirormed forces consisting of the
schutzpolizei (protection police), the gendarmeris (rural police), and the
administrative police. The Security Police was made mp of the Criminal Police
(shor? title KRIPO) and the State Secret Police (Gestapo). The Security Ser-

vice (8D) was consolidated with the Security Police (SIPO) by decree of 27

September 1939, The consolidation placed both the Security Police and Securi®;

Service under the Reich Security Head Office (RSHA), which was at the same
time both one of the principal offices (Hauptamter) of the SS under Himmler

as Reichsfuhrer SS and an office in the ﬁinistr} of the Interior under Himmler
as Chief of the German Police, The 8D was the intelligence agency of the SIPO.
This change, above referred to, necessitated the appointment of certain high
police officers to supervise the work of the ORPO and SIPO in their respective
spheres and also to act as liaison officers with the local governments and the
central police departments in Berlin., To each wehrkreis or military district
was assigned an inspector of ORPO and of SIPO. The accused SOMANN was ap-

pointed to the latter position in Vehrkreis XII and was subsequently succeeded
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by accused TR.. LER, Their tasks were to co-operate with the gauleiters and

conmnder of the wehr'areis to which tiey were appointed as well as with the
adninistrative authoritias, Subsequently; in ordar to concontratc nolice
power in the hands of a trusted fow, Hiumulor celevatod the inspectors of ORPO
and the inspaectors of SIPO bo tio po\sitions of bafahlshaber der ORPO (370)
and befehlshaber der SIPO und des 3D (BDS). They were then coamanders. As
- commanders, they had complete command of their resnsotive forces and vare
~ resnonsible for their training, preparedncss, equipment, cte.

Lator, *immler appointed a police leader in each wahrkrais, who was his
personal rceprosentative, For this job he chose tane 88 fuhrer or leader of
the 85 forcas in thc SS oberabschnitte. (The oberabschnitte was the-tor-
pitorial division of the S8 in tho German Reich cosxtensive with tha wehrkreis

or military district.) As such, ho was the hcad of all police forcas, In

Ylechrkrais XII hn appointed the accused STROOP, who was 2t that time SS leader,
as Higher SS and Police Loeader., By virtue of his rani and position, ho was
the "Little Himmlor" in tho wehrkrois, At his disposal ho had Allgemcine S8
regiments, units of the affon SS in local garrison and all branchos of Reg-
ular Police, Sccuprity Police and Security Sorvice in the wohrkreis. His job
was to assure co-operation botween the rggional 85, police officors, and the
local military and civil autnoritics and in the event of cuaorgencies was to
take over command of the combined SS and poliea forces in his area, Hiwmler

gava STROOP this extraoridinary authority in Septomber 1944,

3. OChain of Commands

as From the Nazi Hierarchy: Himmler, as Rzichsminister of the

Intorior and Com:nder-in-Chief of the S5 and German Police, was tho supr:.io

com:ander, lle had & direct channel of cosmand to the Roichssicherheitshaupt-
amt (RSH.), Reichs Security Head Office, headed by the Chinf of the Sccurity
Police and Sccurity Servico, General faltenbrunner, and to the Hauptamt Ord-
nungspolizoi (ORY)), Head Office, Order Polics, headed by the Chief of the

Order Police, General Tunnombarp, Both of thuse heid offices were located in
Berline, Included in L3 orsaniaation of thesa hod offices were tho YAimts",
i.04, the departments siail.r $o0 2ar gensr:l sta’f sections, From thaese head
offices therc existed a channol of comaand to tha {lizher SS and Police Leader. and

to 6
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the commander of the Security Police and Order Police in viehrkreis XII, There
was also a direct channel of command fron Hiﬁnler to the Higher SS and Police
Leaders (R 61; P-Ex 9).

be Fron the‘Higher SS and Police leader: Fron the Iigher SS and

Police Leader in the wehrkreis there was a dircet channel of comnand %o the
commander of the Security Police and Order Police in the wehrkreis, The Highep
SS and Police Leader was the commander of all police forces in tho wohrkreis,
STROOP's territorial command consisted of ‘iehrkreis XII and that part of
Wichrkreis IX known as Hessen, The entire area under his command was called tho
Rhein-ijestmark area., By virtue of his rank of liesutenant general, he was the
appointing and reviewing authority of the SS and police courts and in charge

of the prisoners of war in the wehrkreis, ie was also commander of the SS in
his area, maintaining SS offices at Frankfurt, Saarbrucken and Koblenz, His
area was comprised of three gaus, Gau Westmark, Gau Hesson<fessau, and Gau

- l{oselland, the last nanmed included Luxembourg. Each gau was governed by a
gauleiter, In the perfornance of his duties STROOP was assisted by a chic?

of staff and a staff organized into M.mts", These Mimts" were sinilar to those
in the head offices of both branches of the police in Berlin, The wehrwolf
undertaking, sabotage activities behind enermy lines, in his wenrkreis was under
his comnnd and the accused BEST aided in the supervision thercof (R 61, 71;
P-Exs 9, 13). '..ccused GOSS was in charge of the wehrwolf school located at
\Jallrabenstein, Accused MICHELY was an instructor in tho school (R 1032),

ce Fron Inspector and Comminder of the Security Police and Order

Policc: The inspector or commander of the Security Police and Security Ser-
vice in Johrkreis XII, the accused SOMANN and his successor the accused TRUMMLER
had a dirac@ channel of command to the branch offices in the wehrkreis, viz,,
the Crinminal Police (KRIPO), the State Secret Police (Gestapo), and the Security
Service, The Gestapo headquarters for this wehrkreis maintained offices at
Darnstadt, Frankfurt, Koblenz, and Saarbrucken, The Darmstadt office was under
the command of the accused GIRﬁE assisted by the accused HELLENBROICH. These
branch offices in turn had a channal of command down to the suboffices in

their respective areas,

The channel of command for the Order Police followed the samne pattern,

7
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The commander of the Order Police had a channel of command to thc higher
police authoritiss and state governments, the lord mayor, national police ad-
ministration headquarters, and district police authorities. The higher polibé
authoritics and state governments were of wehrkreis level and the last throe
of regional and local level.

The. .national poliéc administration headquarters had jurisdiction
over the SCHUPO (protective police) in large cities with channels of command
to police law enforcing agencies subordinate thercto., Tha district police
authorities had jurisdiction over police agencies in s'nall towms and adminis-
tered police protcction through the gendarmeriec (R 61; 71; P-Exs 9, 13).

4. Incidents: The incidents covared by charges 3 through 10 will hore-
inafterlbc referred to as "incident numbor 3", “incident numbey 4", otec. Thore
follows a description of thesc incidentsy

a. Incident Numbor 3; On or about 3 October 194k in the vicinity

of Giesson, Germany, the accused LASSAK turned over a captured American flyar
to the Gastapo, The flyor was shot by BRANNER in conformity with orders.
issued by his immediate superior Wintzer. The shooting was done in the
Philosophen forest, near Gicssen, Germany, on or about 3 October 194k,

b. Incident Number L: On or about 19 October 194l accused TRUMMLER

ordered accused HOHLER and FUHR and one Fraund, Gestapo agents under his com-
mand, to kill a captured american flyer who was in tho Gestapo headquarters in
Wiosbaden. In conformity with this order, HOHLER, FUHR and Fraund drove the
flyer in an ofricial car toward Frankfurt. On the Wicsbaden-Frankfurt road,
the [lyer was ordered out of the car and shot by Fraund.

¢. Incident Number 53 On or about 30 Deccmber 194k accused

TRUMMLER ordered accused FUHR and one Fraund, both Gestapo agents undor his
command, to kill a captured American flyer who was in the Gestapo headquarters
in Viesbaden., That cvening, in conformity with this order, FUHR and Fraund
drove the flyer in the direction of Frankfurtl, Gormany. On the 'Ticsbaden-
Frankfurt road the flyer was ordered out of the car and they both shot him,
resulting in his death,

d. Incidcnt Number 63 On or about 15 Fobruary 1945 a captured
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American flyer was brought to the Gestapo headquarters in Benshein, Germany. .
ficcused GIRKE was in charge of the headquarters, He telephoned accused

TRUILLLER, his superior, for instructions regarding the dispoéition to bec aade
of this flyer. Upon bcing informed by TRUMLER that the flyer had to be shot,

he ordered his assistant, accused HELLENBROICH, to have accused STATTMAIIN and

RALF, Gestapo agents under his command, kill the flyer. In conformity with

this order, accused STATTMANN and RAAF walked the flyer to a forest in the
vicinity of Bensheim where they both shot the fly2r, rosulting in his death,

e, Incident Number 7: On or about 22 February 1945, a captured

American flyor was brought to the police station in Bieher, Germany. Accused
ALBRECHT, a polico lieutenant, was the commanding officer of the police station
ihocused MOLLER and GOEHRENDT werc policcmen under his command. _Accused EIUHEL;
a lieutenant colonel of the police, was the police director of the area and :
aceused KIWITT, a police captain, was one of EICHEL's assistants, lthile the
flyer was boing interrogated by ALBRECHT and others, EICHEL and KIWITT cntered
, the police station., EICHEL tore the scarf from the flyer's neck and hit a
cigarette out of his mouth, Both EICHEL and KIWITT reprimanded ALBRECHT and
the othiers present for showing consideration to the flyer. In LALBRECHT's
office EICHEL gave him an order to shoot the flyor, ALBRECHT refused to do
this, whercupon EICHEL ordered MOLLER to kill the flycr. Outside the police
station both EICHEL and KIWITT incited the crowd by making inflammatory romaric:
directed at the flyer. The flyer left tho police station with MOLLER, accom- I
panied by LLBRECHT and a policeman named Como, ALBRECHT ordered accused
GOEHRENDT to follow them. In a forest ncar Bieber, MOLLER shot the flyer to
death,

fs _Inoidént Number 8: On or about 22 February 1945, accused GOEHREN

turned over a captured American flyer to policemen Michel and Schneider in ﬁhal
Police station in Bieber, Jermany, with instructions to deliver him to police
headquarters in Offenbach. They took the flyer to Offenbach and reported to
accused KI'TITT who ordered them to kill the flyer., On the return trip an air
raid alarm sounded and the policemen together with the flyer went to an air

raid shelter on Bierbrauer ‘eg for cover, The air raid shelter consisted of
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an open area and an underground shelter at one end which was used as a com=

mind post by accused EICHEL, EICHEL was present in this underground shelter
at the time. 'With tho exception of the main gate the only other exit from
the area was on Bierbrauer Wiegs Near the main gate one of the policemen
told accused N.HRGANG they had a flyer who was to be shot, NAHRGLNG called
for accused IL.4LINN and FiY. They engaged in a whispering conversation

and FiAY was heard to say that this was an easy matter, Thereupon, FiAY shoved
and pushed the flyer toward the stairway accompanied by AiHRGANG and one

of the policemen, In the meantime a2 policeman had given FAY his pistol,

Suddenly, FAY fired the pistol into the air and shouted that a flyer was
escaping. The flyer ran down the stairway toward the secondary exit,
HAMMLNN, who remiined behind, ran to the m.in gate, took a cirbine from the
guard who was standing there and ran down Bierbrwor ‘Jeg to head off the
flyér who could only come out of the secondary oxit. Shortly thereafter the
flyer came out and H.MMANN fired three shots, killing him,

g« Incidant Number 9: On or about 18 March 1945 a captured

american flyer was brought to the wehrwoll school in "7allrabenstein, Germany,
by accused M¥ICHELY. MICHELY was an instructor in the school and accused
GOSS was the director, GOSS ordered MICHELY to t i the flyer to Idstein
and kill him on thc way. The order given by GOSS to !ICYELY was in con-
formity with an order from accused STROOP through accused BEST. That
avening, in conformity with this order, !MICHELY took the flycr townrd Idstein
and shot him on the way.

h. Incidant Number 10: On or about 24 March 1945 two captured

american prisonars of wir were brought to the Gestipo headjuarters in

Bensheim, Germany, Accused GIRKE ordered accused HELLENBROICH to have

accused STATTIANN and RAAF kill the two prisoners of war in the garden in
the rear of the hecadyuarters., In conformity with the order STATTIMANN and

RawF shot the two prisoners.

V. EVIDENCE AND RECO.ZENDATIONS: s
1. JURGEN STROOP
Nationality: German
Age 51
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Civilian Statuey Unknown

Party Statuss Nazi party since 1 Septomber 1932

Hilitary Status; S8 Major Genoral of tha Waffen SS;
Chisf of the SS Main District Rheine
“lestmark; Licutonant General and
Higher 88 and Police Leader, Rheine :
Westmark, from 9 November 1943; Allgemoine
SS since 1 July 1932; Waffen SS since 1936

Pleas NG Charges 1 through 10

Findings; G Charges 1 through 6 and 9
NG Charges 7, 8 and 10

Sentence: Death by hanging
Evidence for Prosecutions Accused was tho Higher SS and Police Leador

for the Rhein-ijestmark area with the rank of licutenant ganer§1 in the SS
since 9 November 1943 (R 239, 1947; P-Ex k)), As Higher 8S and Police Loader,
he was in command of tho Order Police and Security Police in said area

(R 227; P-Ex 3$h.p. 9). The area was comprised of Jearkrcis XII and that
part of Wehrkreis IX known as Hesscn (R 65; P-Ex 11), The hoadquarters for
the aroa was located in Wicesbaden, Germany (R 1947).

About the middle of Septembor 194k, 2ccused received an order, herein-

aftor roforred to 2s the -mominterference order, from Himmler to the effect
'that the police were not to interfere in actions by the givilian population
against captured Allied flyers, The order was passcd d own from Himmlor's
office., This order contained a request that he transmit it to the commanders
" of tho Regular Police and Security Police (R 91; P-Ex 1I9). The accused
subsequently tronsmitted it to the commander of the Order Police in his
area. Later, at a conference held in his office, the order was read to the
commanders of the Order Police and Security Police (R 98, 100; P-Exs 274,
2Bh). He also discussad the order at a conforence of the heads of the

Order Police for Rhein~liestmark aroa held in iletz in 2944 (R 100; P-Ex 284).
4% another confercnce held in his office in about October 194k, attended by
accused TRUMULER, commander of tpo Security Police, STROOP complained that
the Order Police wore not complying with Himmlor's order (R 184186, 202, 203,
215). He threatensd to punish severly any members of the Order Police who
protected captured flyers, .t that time he directed that captured flyers

should be turned over to the Security Police (R 126, 216). STROOP insisted
i
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upon strict obedience to his orders. In November 194), he recommended

severe punishment for a police official who gave aid to a captured flyer
(R 129, 187)., He also voiced approval of Goebbel's article published in
a party newspaper inciting the German people against Allied flyars (R 92,
132; P-Ex 21), STROOP received his orders and directives from Himnler, ‘ 9
Kaltenbrunner and Wunnenberg (R 179). In about September 17.),. Me received

an order from Kaltenbrunner to the etf'fect that captured parachuted flyers

would be turned over to the SIPO and shot (R 96; P-Ix 25), He.pasaed this
order to the commanders of the Security Police, Regular Police and SS Colonels
in command of SS Regiments (R 200, 201), During 1944 he received Bormann's

order to the effect that no police actiom would be taken against the civilian

population who lynched flyars (R 93, 201, 202; P-Ex 22), The Bormann order 7
and all other principal orders were discussed by STROOP,with commanders
of the Order Police and Security Police (R 202), ‘ ?@

STROOP passed thesc orders to agencies under his command; In the

summer of 194k it was known among police officials under his command in a

k?Qis surrounding Koblenz thauv STROOP had pﬁﬂsed dovm the noninterfercnco-
order (R 227, 230; P-Exs 35A, pp. 1L, 15, 374, p- 7). In February 1945

this order was disciissed in a conference of the ccmmanders of the gendarmerie
and schutzpolizei of the Koblenz areca, It was agreced tiat captured flyers

were to be turned over to the Gestapo and that the police should not inter-

APPSR L T A

fere in clashes betwnon the civilian population and the flyvers (R 227;

P-Ex 354, pps 15, 16), A written order from STROOP to thc effect that all
captured flycrs be shot was also read at this menting (R 230; P-Ex 374,

ppe 3-6)s The shooting order and the order that flyers be turned over to thc
Gestapo were transmitted by STROOP to polise presidents and police directors,
This occurrced in August or Soptember 194L. %These orders were marked "Sccret"
and werc to be destroyed immediately after they ware read (R 266, 267;

P-Exs 56k, 57, pe 3)¢ In June or July 19Ll, the shooting order was verbally
transmitted by STROOP to the SS colonel in comnaind of the Allgemeine 8S in E)
Saarbrucken (R 2127), In Scptember 194k, at a conference of the leaders of

the Allgemeinc SS at his hwadquarters, STROOP rerinded those present of the

order to shoot flyers (R 2123, 2132), During a pslice conference of the ;
12
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schutzpolizei of the Koblenz area in tehrkreis XIT held in August.or Scptember
194k in Koblenz, those present were informed of the order issued by STROOP
that flyers would be turned over to the Gestapo instecad of the Wehrmacht,
About two weeks later, the police officials received this order in writing,
through channels, from STROOP's headquarters (R 230; P-Ex 37A, pp. 2~L).

As a result of those orders passed down by STROOP to the agencies
under his command, captured American flyers were illegally killed by his
subordinates, On or about 3 October 194l three American flyors were turned
over to a kreisleitcer and another flyer was turncd over to the Gestapo in
compliance with these orders, in the Giossen area, incidont number 3, These
flyors were shot (R 267; P~Ex 57, ppe 3-5)s On or abouf 19 October 194k,
accused TRUMMLER ordered his subordinates to kill a captured flyer, incident
number L, This flyer was killed in conformity with the shootiqg order from
Xaltenbrunner to TRUMMLER (R 2173)e An order in the same form as the
Kaltenbrunner order was also passed by STROOP to TRUMMLER (R 2161, 2169).

In December 194, after a captured flyer was killad near Wicsbaden pursuant
to an order from TRUMMLER, the latter telephoned STROOP and informed him of
this fact, incident number 5 (R 3123 P-Ex 65A). On or about 15 February
1945 accused GIRKE ordered his subordinates to kil a captured flyer near
Bensheim, Germany, incident number 6, GIRKE gave this order in conformity
with a similar  ord:r received from TRUMILER over the telecphone (R 1LL49),
The order to GIRKE originated from Kaltenbrunner and was transmitted by
STROOP to TRUMMLER (R 2169-2176), In March 1945, an American flyer was
killed by a member of the wehrwolf school in Wallrabenstein on orders from
STROOP, transmitted by accused BEST, incident num?er 9 (R 616, 618; P-Exs
141A-1L3, p. 6).

Evidence for Defenses The accused testified under oath, He denied

the receipt of any general order to kill captured enemy flyers (R 1954).
He denied issuing any such shooting orders, as well as any connection with
or knowledge of the incidents set forth in charges 3 through 10 (R 1977,
1978, 2006), He admitted receiving written orders concerning treatment of
captured flyers, either from Himmler or from the main office of the Order

Polica (R 1953)s The first order was received in 194l to the effect that
13
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flyers were to be turned over to the Wenrmicht, Later, he recoived an order

that flyers were to be turned over to the Security.Police, In July or

f;,l
August 194k he received the nonihterference: order (R 1954). He transmitted Gﬁj
all these orders to his subordinates (R 1955). On one occasion, the accused k"

TRUMMLER informed him that three or four flyers were killed while attempting
to escape (R 1960), On another occasion, the accused expressed the opinion
that captured flyers should be shot, This utterance was induced by the
suffering and misery caused by incessant bombings (R 1976). MHe testified
that he attended conferences with Himmler and Kaltenbrunner but ncver dis-
cussod troatment of Allied flyers with either of them (R 1980-1982). Orders
were rdcoiyad by him from Himmler, or diroet from his headquarters, from Bore
mann and his staff, from the main office of the Order Police, and sometimes
from the main office of the Security Police (R 1988, 1989). He transmitted
all orders which he received (R 1989)., He denied he ever saw an order

issued by Keitel dealing with captured flyers (R 94, 1990; P=Ex 2l).

However, ‘he admitted knowledge of an order issucd by Hitler dealing with the
same mattor (R 89, 1991; P-Ex 17), The noninterference order received from
Himmler in June or July 19Ll was passed on by him to his subordinates at a
conference attended by commanders of the Order Police and the Security
Police (R 1992)., Ho admitted receciving the Bormann ordcr (R 93, 17943 P-Ex 22)
STROOP's chief of staff taestified that he never saw 2n order dircecting
that capturcd flyers be shot and particularly that he never saw any such
order loave in the mail (R 2094)s There was further evidence that the
Gestapo headquarters in Frankfurt, the Higher SS a?d Police Leader in
Wehrkreis IX, and the Police President of Saarbrucken never received iny =such
shooting order (R 2115, 2325, 2332, 2333),

Sufficiency of Evidence: There is considerable evidence as to accused .

STROOP's membership in the SS and as to his being implicated in incidents
numbers 3 through 6 and 9, The evidence is clear that the accused received
orders regarding the illegal treatment of captured Allied flyers, It is also
clearly established that thesc orders were transmitted by STROOP to all

agencios under his command, It was proven thit his subordinates, :.abting in

i
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conformity with such orders, illegally killed unarmed and surrendered
American flycrs throughout the area under his command, and the Court was
warranted from the evidence concerning the vigorous manner in which he
transmitted the various orders to all his agencies and his =fforts to enforce
them that he encouraged and provoked the killings involved in incidents
numbers 3 through 6 and incident number 9.

The findings of guilty are warranted by the evidence, The sentence is
not excessive,

Petitions: Two Petitions for Review were filed by Dr. Max Rau, German
defense counsel, 19 April 1947, and Lieutenant Colonel 7illiam Berman,
Chief Defensez Counsel, 2l March 1945, One of the petitions filed by Dr. Rau
urges a new trial upon the ground that the accused was convicted upon the
perjured testimony of accuscd TRUMMLER to the offact that he had received
the shooting order from STROOP, The fact is that TRUMMLER did not so testify,
He testified that he received the shooting order from Kaltenbrunner in Berlin
at the time he was assigned to Wehrkreis XII, He further testified that
STROOP gave an order during a ‘conference which was identical in content,
No Petitions for Clemency were filed.

Recommendation: That the findings and sentonce be approved,

2, HANS TRUILILER

Nationality:

Age: L6

Civilian Status: Banking and Automobilc Industry;
Coloncl, Security Police, 1 August
1937 to 1945; Commander of the
Sccurity Police and Sccurity Service,

Rhein~TWestmark arca, since 15
September 194k,

Party Status: Nazi party sinco 1928

Military Status: SS Colonel from 1 July 1935 to 1945;
SA since 1928,

Plea: NG Charges 1 through 10

Findings: G Charges 1, 2, L, 5 and 6;
NG Charges 3, 7, 8, 9 and 10

Sentence: Death by hanging
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Evidoﬁce for Prosecution: Accused TRUIMMLER was a member of the 8S

(R 239, 2155; P-Ex 42) and the SD (R 167, 213, 811, 2170)., The accused w S

Commander of the Security Police and Security Service in the Rhein-ifastmark
area with the rank of SS colonel from 15 September 1944 (R 2154). He succeeded i
accused SOMANN (R 153). On one occasion he told the Gestapo chief of the

Frankfurt office who was under his command that he thought it proper to shoot

captured Allied flyers (R 157). In March 1945, a commissioner of one of tha
suboffices of the same Gestapo chief reported to the latter that accused
TRUMMLER had ordered that captured Allied flyers be shot (R 157, 158), In
Docember 194k, at a conference of the Sccurity Service in Frankfurt, the

head of the agency announced an order that all captured encmy flyers were to

be renderod harmless on the spot (R 167, 168), Tho witness as to this
believed the order camo from TRUMMLER (R 169). Toward the ond of the war,
at meetings of inspectors, the accused said that all captured flyers turned

over to or apprehonded by the Gestapo were to be shot (R 181; P-Ex 3lA, pe 2).

The accused was also present at a confeorence with STROOP when the s hooting
order from Kaltenbrunner (R 96; P-Ex 26) was discussed, At that time STROOP
said the order was to be strictly enforced (R 202, 203). The order that

capturcd flycrs were to be killed was known at the Gestapo headquarters and

at the office of the Security Service in Koblenz, The witness who testified
as to this thought that the order came from superior authority, accuso'd
TRUIZLER (R 228; P-Ex 36A). The Gestapo headquarters at Darmstadt, as well
as other Gestapo headquarters, constabulary headquarters, and the offices of
nl), other leaders under TRUMMLER's gommand, received the same order (R 383;
P-Ex 106A, ppe 35 L)e In conformity with these orders transmitted by accused
TRUMMLER, subordinates under his command illegally killed unarmed and
surrendered American flyers,

In October 194k, the accused ordered Fraund, and accused FUHR and HOHLER
to drive a captured American flyer in an official car toward Oberurscl after
darkness and shoot him at an opportunc moment, incident number 4. Thoy wore s
also ordered to notify the local gendarmerie to arrange for the flyert's

burial, After darkness, these three drove the flyer in the direction of

16
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Frankfurt, Near an inn on the Wiesbaden-Frankfurt rold the flyor was kil..d,
They then drove to fallau and notified the local gendarmerie to bury the
victim, Upon their return to Wiesbaden they reported the execution of the
order to TRUITILER (R 312; P-Rx 65A), The next day HOHLER made a written .
report to TRU:DZLER to the effect that the flyer was shot while trying to
escape, TRUMILER then handed out a box of cigars (R 314; P~Ix 66A). The
vietim was identified as an American soldier, one Willard F. Perry (R 309;
P-Ex 62).

On about 28 or 29 December 194k, an imerican flyer, believed to be
Robert Garrison; parachuted to safety in the vicinity of Langenhain, Cermany
(R 270, 272), This flyer was taken to accused's headyuarters located on
Paulinenstrasse, Wiesbaden, Germany (R 280), TRUMMLER then ordered one
Fraund and the accused FUHR, both employees of the Gestapo in “Tiesbaden, to
shoot the flyer that night af£er dark, incident number 5. Pursuant to this
order, Fraund and FUHR drove the flyer toward Frankfurt, and on the Wiesbaden-
Frankfurt read they both shot the flyer resulting in his death, They then
notified the gendarmerie at Wallau to bﬁny the body, They returned to
Wiesbaden and feported the accomplishment of the mission to TRUMMLER. There-
upon, in their presence, TRUMMLER telephoned STROOP and informed him the
flyer had been done away with (R 311, 312; P-Exs 6Lk, €5 ).

On 15 February 1945, an unarmed and surrendered American flyer was shot
by members of the Gestapo headquarters in Bensheim, commanded by accused
GIRKE and HELLENBROICH, in conformity with orders issued by the accused
TRUILILER, incident number 6 (R 387; P=Ex 1074),

Bvidence for Defense; TRU!IILER testified that on 15 September 194l he

reported to Berlin and received the assiznment of Commander of the Secwrity
Police and Security Service for the Rhein-ifestiark area (R 2159). On

13 September 194, in a conference with Kaltenbrunner concerning his new
duties, the latter gave him an order that captured flyers were to be shot
(R 2161). He later received a similar order from Major Ggneral lfuller,
Chief of Office No, L, Reich Head Security Office (R 2162). Since these

orders had been decided upon by the Reich government, he accepted them as

17
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legal orders (R 2161), He took over his duties at Wiesbaden on 20 Septermber
194 (R 2165), The accused STROOP held conferences of his subordinate com-
manding officers about once a week (R 2167), During these conferences, STROOP
transmitted the order to the accused and others present, that captured
flyers were to be shot, This order was in the same form as the previous
order the accused had received from Kaltenbrunner (R 2169),

He denied any guilt concerning charges 1, 2, 3, 7, 8, 9 and 10, but
admitted full responsibility for the killings mentioned in charges L, 5 and
6 (R 2169-2178), Regarding charge L, he testified that on 19 October 194k,
he was informed that the rural police h;d turned over a flyer. He telephoned
the Gestapo chief in Wiesbaden, one Luckhard, and orderecd a detail of two
men to shoot him, Fraund and accused FUHR reported to him for this purpose,
and he thercupon gave them the order to shoot the flver. The shooting took
place that e vening and both Fraund and FUHR reported that the order had been
executed (R 2171-2173), He testified that, if these men had refused to
carry out his order, they would have been severely punished (R2A7L4). As to
charge 5, he testifi=sd that on 30 December 194l Luckhard reported to him
that the rural police had turned over a captured cenemy flyer, He ordered
Luckhard to furnish a detail of two men to shoot the flyer, Fraund and FUHR
reported for this purpose and he thereupon gave them an ovder to shoot-the
flyer, They returned that evening and reported that the order had been
executed, On his order, the execution of this flyer was reported by telephone
to STROOP's office (R 217k, 2175)s Concerning charge 6, he testified
that it was quite possible that on 15 February 1945, the accused GIRKE told
hin by telephone that the Gestapo headquarters in Darmstadt had a flyer an<
that he thereupon ordered the flyer shot (R 2176). He testified that had he
failed to carry out Kaltenbrunner's order he would have been shot (R 2177).
Throughout his testimony concerning incidents L, 5 and 6, he emphasized
that the victims were "terror flyers",

Sufficiency of Evidence: There is considerable evidence as to accused

TRUMILER's membership in the SS and SD and as to his being implicated in incidmts

muebders.s 4, S and 6, By his testimony, the accused freely admitted his

18




part in the common plan and design to violate the laws of war; that he
received the so-called shooting order from higher authority and transmitted
the same to his subordinates; and that, in incidents 4, S and 6, he ordared
his subordinates to kill unarmed and surrendered American flyers pursuant
to the order. With regard to the evidence offered in support of his pleca of
superior orders, the accused failed to meet the burden of proof required

by pertinent authorities discussed in Section VI, post, ‘hile his actions
may have been in conformity with orders from superiors, it appears that he
willingly co-operated and it does not appear that his actions in incicents
i, 5 and 6 were under immediate compulsion.

The findings of guilty are warranted by the evidence, The sentence is
not excessive,

Potitionss Petitions for Review were filed by Dr, Bucrger, German
defonse counsel, 2l March 1947, and Licutenant Coloncl William Berman, Chief
Defense Counsel, 2l March 1947. A recommendation, 21 iarch 1947, was sub=-
nitted by six members of the Court which h:ard the case urging that his
death sentonce be commted to life imprisonment because of his honesty and
truthfulness in accépting full responsibility for his acts, No Petitions for
Clemency were filed.

Rocornendation: That the findings and sentence be “pproved,

3. OITO SOAMN
lationality:

Lges L7

Civilian Statuss Agriculturist, Security Service from 1936
to 19LL; Inspector of Security Police
and Security Service, Rhein~/estmark area
from January 1943 to 28 July 19L4k; Inspector
of customs police from 194k to 1945,

Party Status: Nazi party since March 1927

Military Statuss SS Colonel of police, date unknown;
Allgemeine SS from 1937 to 19L5;
Waffen SS from August 1943 to November

1943

Plea: NG Charges 1 through 10

Findings: G Charges 1 and 2;
NG Charges 3 through 10

Sentence:; ly years, commencing 30 lay 1945
19
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Bvidence for Prosecution; Accused SOMANN was a member of the SS (R 239,

22083 P=Ex 43) and the SD (R 239, 2246; P-Zx L3). The accused was Inspector
of the Security Police and Security Service with headquarters located in
Wiesbaden, Germany, from January 1943 to the end of July 194y (R 22L6).
During his tenure of office, the accused received orders directing illegal
treatment of captured Allied flyers from the Nazi hierarchy, He passed
dovm ﬁhese orders to asencies under his command, In June or July 19l at a
conference held in his headquarters at Wiesbaden attended by all leaders

of the Gestapo, Criminal Police and Security Service in the Rhein-Vestmark
area, he read the noninterference order from Himmler (R 155, 160). He
directed that this order be made known to all the members of the Security
Police and Security Service (R 155, 161). In discussing the noninterference
order, he nade a statement which could only be interpreted to mean that
captured enemy. flyers turned over to the Security Police were to be shot

(R 104, 181, 383; P-Exs 30A, pe 3, 3UA, pe 3, 1064, ps L)s After the pub-

‘lication of Goebbel's article in the surrisr of 194k branding Allied flyers

as murderers, SOUANN announced the order to shoot captured flyers (R 387;
P-Ex 1074)¢
About August 194k, the accused or his successor transmitted an order to

the police direcctors and police presidents under his ccmiand that captured

flyors were to be turned over to the Gestapo (R 266, 267; P-Exs 564, 57, pe 3).

BEvidence for Defenses The accused, in his testimony, denied any guilt

regarding the matters set forth in charges 3 through 10 (R 2268), He denied
that he discussed or planned any violation of the laws of war with any of
the other accused as alleged in charge 1 (R 2272, 2273). Ho testified that
he was never involved in any of the eriminal activities of the organizations
declared criminal by the International Kilitary Tribunal (R 2275, 2276),

He testified that his duties were limited to inspection of the offices of
the Security Police and Security Service (R 225L). At the time he took
this assignment, several orders were passed down to him concerning treatment
of Allied flyers, The original order was that captured flycrs were to be

turned over to the army, In the beginning of 19Ll, he received an order from
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Wamt" L, Reich Head Security Office, that captured flyers in tho hands of
the Secuiity Police were to be sent to Oberursel through the Gestapo at
Frankfurt (R 2257). This order was received verbally and was transnitted
verbally to the offices of the Gestapo, Criminal Police and Security Sprvice
in his area (R 2258), Toward thec end of Jume 194, he received the noninter-

ference order (R 2258), This order was received from Hirmler with in-

structions by Kaltenbrunner that it was to be transnmitted verbally (R 2259).
In June or July 194k, he transmitted this order to the chiefs of his agencies
during a conferznce held in his office in 7iesbaden (R 2259). He denied

that he ever made any explanation of this order which could bs interpreted

as an order to shoot captured flyers (R 2260, 2263), He admitted that he
might have stated an opinion concerning this order which might have led to
some misunderstanding (R 2264, 2265), He also admitted recciving an order in v
the niddle of 1943 from Xaltenbrunner to the effect that cnemy agents had to
be turncd over to the Gestapo for final decision (R 2266, 2267) and receive-
ing onc from Adolf Hitler to the effect that parachutced commando units,
agents, etc., were to be killed on the spot (R 2268), During the time he
held the position of Commander of the Security Police and Security Sorvice,
not a single case of a rmurdercd flyer was called to his attention (R 2268),
The punishment for failure to carry out an order during var time was death

(R 2272)s A1l orders received by him from proper authority were transmitted
to chiefs of Gestﬁpo, Crininal Police and Seccurity Service (R 228L4). However,
he denied that hc ever issucd orders to his chiefs that captured flyers were
to be shot (R 2289), During his tenure of officc, no captured flyer was over
killed in the area undor his command (R 2289).

Sufficiency of Evidence: There is considerable evidence as to accused

SOUANN's nembership in the SS and SD and as to his being implicated in the
cormon plan and design to violate the laws of war, The ovidence is clear

that the accused received orders from higher German authority directing illegal
treatment of captured flyers, which orders he transpittod to subordinatecs |
under his cormand, His participation in the common plan and design to violate

the laws of war is thuc established,
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‘I‘he findrlngs of guilty are warrant.ed by the ovidenca. The sentence is
4)
not axceasive. ‘

Potitions: A Petition for Raview, 2k March 1947, was filed by Licutenant ~ | |

Colonol William Berman, Chief Defense Counsol, No Petitions for Clemency
were filed, \

]

Recommendation: That the findings and sentcnee be appr.ovad..

|

le ARTHUR FUHR' '

Nat iomlityll German

hges 37

Civilian Status: Chauffour and mechanic; Sccret
/ State Police (Gestapo) from
April 31937, with the rank of
lMaster Sergeant since 194kL;
Sohc;n\.ty Service from 1939 to
19

Party Status; Nazi party from 1931 to 1945

| Military Status: | SA from 1931 to 1932
- Ploas ; NG Charges 1, 2, L and 5
Findings;y . . @ Charges 1, 2, L and 5
Sentences - _ Death b}' hanging "pirig " vy

Bvidence for Prosccution: Accuscd FUHR was a member of the 88 (R 11h3,

1183); the SD (R 239; P=-Ex LL); and the Gastlapo (R 239, 288, 298, 306, 1183,
11216, ‘1I218; P-Ex hh?. The accused was crplbyed as a drivér and mechanic

at the Gestapo feadquarters in Wiesbaden, Gormany (K 1112),

On 19 October lbhh, the accused, HOHLER, and one Fraund, orploycos

of tho same Gestapo headquarters, wore ordered to report to.accused TRUILILER

(R 1245, 1146), TRUMZLER ‘ordered them 'to drive a captured Auerican flyor

after darknsss/dn an offictal oa {nithe diredtish ar Frankfusty shaoh tdn

at nn'opport.ux;o aoment and direct the local gendarmerie po‘ bury the body, -

incidont nurber L (R 1147). Aftor darkness, FUHR drove the flyer with |

HOHLER and Fraund in the direction of Frankfurt. On the road botween

Wiesbaden and Frankfurt, they stopped near an inp. HOHLER and Fraund got

out of the gar with the flyer, and while accused was turning the car around,

he heard shots and saw the dead flycr two or three meters from the edge of

0 poad, LAll, threr waove 12 L ila e 55 dairceted the ;cﬁd.‘.r.:.r;. 5J QUL
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tho roads All three drove to Wallau and directed the gondarmerie to bury
the body, They returned to Wiesbaden and reported to TRUMILER that the
order had been cxecuted (R 312; P«Ex 65h)s The flyor was buried in the
canotery at Wallau (R 296, 302, 304). The body was exhurmod on 14 Ducembér
1945 and idontificd as that of an American soldier, Willard F, Perry (R 279;
P-Ex 62),

On or about 30 December 194k, an American flyor, boliofed to be Robert
Garrison, was brought to the Gestapo headquarters in ‘fiesbaden, Germany,
incident numbor 5, After an unsuccessful attempt to interrogate him, accused
FUHR was orderod to take him to the cellar of the headquarters (R 286, 312;-
P-Exs 61, pp. 13, 14, 654), That afternoon FUHR and Fraund were ordered
to report to accused TRUILMLER who ordered them to shoot the flfur aftor dark.
That night FUHR drovc Fraund and the flyer in the direction of Frankfuft
and on the road betwecaon Wiesbaden and Frankfurt stopped the ear near an
inn, Fraund ordored the flyer out of the car and cach fired a shot at hinme
The flyer collapsed, deads They then drove to ‘7allau and directed the gend-
armerie to bury the body, They returned to \lesbaden and reported the
acconplishment of the mission to TRUILILER (R 311, 312; P-iixs 6lh, 654).

The victim vas later buricd in the cemaetery at Delkenheim, Germany (R 297).
In Decauber 1945 or January 1946, the body was oxhured (R 307)s It was
identified as that of an unknown American soldier (R 310; P-Ex 63).

Evidence for Defenses In his testimony the accused admitted that ho

participated in the incidents covered by charges 4 and 5 in substantially
the same degreo as indicated by the evidencé for the prosecution (R 1145-
1155), Ho testified that he assumed the orders he recoived from his sup-
erior, accused TRUILLER, who held the rank of SS coloncl, wero proper and
that he was duty bound to obey them (R 1157). Disobedicnece of such an ordor
in war tine meant death (R 1158),

Sufficiency of Evidenece: There is considerable evidence as to accused
FUHR's wembership in the SS, SD and Gestapo and as to his beoing implicated
in incidents numbers L4 and 5, The guilt of this accused is satisfactorily

establiched, He adnitted his guilt both in extrajudicial sworn tostimony
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and from the witness stand undor cath, His allegation that ho thought the

acts wore proper is overcome by the very nature of tho acts, the scerat

mannor in which they were executed and ‘the general intelligonca one mst

infor that ha of necessity bossosaod. By his compliance with the illegal
orders *o Xill the unarmed and surrendered flyors involved in incidents

4 and 5, he took part in the common plan and design to vioiate the 1laws of
war, His guilt under charge 1 is clear. With rogard to the ovidence offered
in support of superior orders, it appears that he took a consenting part in
the common design and incideﬁta L and 5, The killings wore accomplished at
points remote from superiors and ho 15 not siorm to have acted under immediate
compulsion, He failed to meet the burden of proof roquired by portinent
authoritics discussed in Section VI, post.

The findings of guilty arc warranted by tho evidence, The scntence 1is
not excessive. .

Potitions; Petitions for Review wore filed by Dr. Richard Wacker,
Gernman defense counscl, 27 March 1947, and Licutenant Colonel 7i1lian
Berman, Chicf Defense Counsel, 2l March 1947, 4 Petition for Clemency was
filed by his parcents, Wilhelm and Gertrude FUHR, ifay 1947.

Roconmendation: That the findings and sentence be approved

S, WILHELM HOHLER

Nationality:

iges 37

Civilian Statuss Protoctive Police from L ipril 1929
to 15 March 1933; 6 larch 193 to
31 December 1937; Criainal Police
from 1 January 1938 to L april 1945,
Gestapo from Septembor 1939 to 4 April
19L5 ;

Party Statuss None

Military Statuss None

Pleas NG Charges 1, 2 and 4

Findings: G Charges 1, 2 and 4

Sentencos Death by hanging

Bvidonce for Proscention: Accused HOHLER served 1s a Gestapo agent -om
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1939 i1l tHo ond of the war (R 239, 1093, 1094, 111}, 2133, 113k; P-Ex LS). od
» October 19kh§ the accused, together with accused FUHRjand one Fraund, '
were orderod to taks a captured American flyer to Oberurscl and shoot hin,
incident number 4 (R 1099-1101), According to the plan made known to the
uccuaod; the car was to be-brought to a stop, the flyer asked to got out on
some pretext and then shot, All threa, together with the flyer, drove in
the direction of Frankfurt. The car was stopped near an inn on:the‘ﬂieabadoné
Frankfurt road, Fraund and the accusad got out and asked the flyor to loave
with them, ﬁUﬁR turned the car around and saveral pistol shots wore fired
in rapid succession, The three then drove to'ﬂallau and notified the
gendarneric to bury the body. The next day HOHLER made a written yeport of
the incident to accused TRUHB&ER to the Affoct that the flyar was shot by
Fraund while attenptlng to oscnpe. TRUMMIER then gave hin a bux of cigars
to distribute among the members of the Gestapo in Wiqsbsden (R 312,_31L,
1937; P-Exs 654, 664, 1U6h),

Evidence for’Defense; The 1ccuaod took the witnecss stand and tostiriod

under oath, By his bxtrajudicial sworn ta;linony and by his tostinony in
;burt he insistad that o remained in the car at the scenc of tho killing

(R- 313 P-Ex 66i), Otherwiso, his testinony me subst antially to tho sane
effect as the evidence for the prosccution (R 1099-1113). He adnitted that
the report he mide to TRUMMLER to tho effect that the flyer was shot by
Fraund while attewpting to escape was falso (R 1126), Hc'waa-of the opinion
that the order received fron an 8§ colonel was legal (R 1128), m®fusal

to obey the order would have meant ddath (R 1131)s He admitted that his
oxtrajudicial sworn tostiﬁony containing an'account of \his report to TRUMMLER
was false (R 1937, 1940, 1941; P-Ex 164 ).

Sufficiency of *vidence: There is considerable evidence that accused

HOHLER served 1s a Gestapo agent from 1939 til] the end of the' war and that'
he was implicated in incident U, Vhile the evidence is not too clear, tho .
Court night well have iconcluded that he was a member of t he Gestapo.. The
evidence cleirly indicates that the accused was pguilty of participating in.

the killing of an unirred and surrendered prisoner of wak as alleged in




charge le. He knew the flyer was to be killed according to a pre-cstablished
plan and played his part in carrying it out, Whether he fired the fatal

shot is not shown by the evidence, However, it appears that he accompanied
the others on the trip and actively participated throughout the incident,
acting jointly with the others he was 1liabls for all the conscequences that
naturally flowed from their acts, i,e., all who join in a common design to
comnit an unlawful act, the natural and probable consequenco of the execution
of which involves the contingency of taking human life, are responsible

for a homicide committed by one of them while ucting in pursuance of or in
furtherance of the common design, although not specificully contamplated by
the parties (United Statcs v, Hartgen, et al,, October 1945, 29 Corpus Juris,
Scce U6, pe 1073)s It was showvn thit he took a conscnting part in the common
plan and design to violate the laws of war as alleged in charge 1, Vith
regard to the evidence offered in support of superior orders, it appears

that he took a consenting part in and frcciy participated in incident numbor
I at 2 point distant from superiors, It was not shown that he acted undor
any immediate compulsion and the dourt would have besn warranted in not
giving woight to his testimony to the effect that he thought the order was
logal and proper,. Consequently, the accused failod to meet the burden of
proof roquirced by pertinent authoritiocs discussed in Section VI, post,

The findings of guilty arc warranted by the evidence, The ﬁantcnao is
not oxcessivae,

Pctitionss -Petitions for Review wz2re filed by Licutenant Colonel 'llian
Bernan, Chief Defonse Counsel, 2l liarch 1947, and Dr, Trost, Gernmin defense
counsel, 7 J';‘lly 1947, P-titions for Clonency wero filed by his wife, Luise
Hohler, 22 March 19473 his parents, ifre and lrs, 4. Hohler, 28 larch 1947;
Leonhard Wilke, 26 'iarch 1947; Lena TForecke, 19 Junc 1947; Johannes Buddo,

15 June 1947; Franziska Fourmn, 2l Juno 1947; Brna Debus, 24 Junc 1947;

Karl Rudolf, 6 Junc 1947; Luise Vogt, 21 May 1947; Maria Kohlhof, 27 .pril
1947; Liesolotte Pfeil, 30 Hay 1947; Edith Woelkman, 9 Juno 1947; ‘flholn
Wahn, 16 June 1947; Trnest Richhardt, 7 June 1947; Alexander Hoffrian, 27 June

1947; Reinhard Breder, 1k July 1947; Karl Knapp, 8 Junc 1947; hngelika Seidel,

26

AR

"

4




15 June 1947; Josof Kramer, 22 Juno 19L47; Max Gerisch, 19 June 19L7;

Irma Kuhn, 19 June 1947; Georg Zamnert, 19 June 1947; Mura Lenzen, 20 June
1947; Le Bruch, L July 1947; Fritz Schneider, 1 July 1947; ﬁntaus hudolph,
7 July 1947; Paula Schmidt, 2l June 1947; Safia Drogmoller, 10 Decerber
19463 Karl Hohler, 19 Deccrber 19463 Margarethe Romeis, 9 april 1946; H..8
Schnitz, 30 iugust 1946; Josef Praybzla, 8 April 1946; Mr. and Mrs, Stein,
15 June 1947; Maria Lang, 20 June 1947; Bernhardini 7inkler, 20 Juno 1947
Natalie Noack, 20 June 1947; Elizabeth Horn, 18 June 19LT7; Jakob Schneiddor,
15 June 1947; and Johann Lutz, 20 June 19LT7.

Recommendation: That the findings and sentence be approvad,

6. HiNS EICHEL

Nationality:

Lges 56

Civilian Statuss Police Diractor at Offenbach, Germany
since 1 July 1941, with the rank of
Licutonant Colonel

Party Statuss Nazi party since 15 Deﬁomber 1931

Military Statuss Colonel in SA

Plens NG Charges 1, 2, 7 and &

Findings: G Charges 1, 7 and 8
NG Charge 2

Sontencet Death by hanging

Evidence for Prosccution: The accused was police director of the

protective police, Offenbach, Gormany, following 1 July 1941 (R 166h)s In
Septorber 194k at a conforence of police officials in Of fenbach, Himnler's
noninterfarance ord:r was raad by Major Kuhlenbeck, Commander of the Pro-
toctivo Police in Offenbach, Tho accused was his immediate superior
(R LBl P-Ex 122, p. 3)s The accused had issucd orders that captured flyers
were to be shot (R-SBS, 16903 P;Ex 135, pe 3).

On or about 22 February 1945, a captured smerican flyer was taken to
thc‘policc station in Bicber, Gernany, incident number 7 (R Ll1, LL2).
An idontification cird found on the person of the flyer indicatoed his name to

be 7illiam Duke (R 457). In the police station the flyer was pornitted to
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sioke (R L42)e Shortly thereaftar, the accused and accused KTVITT arrived
(R L42, 460). At the sight of the flyor smoking, the accused tore the

scarf from the flyer's neck and knocked the cigarette out of his mouth

(R Lk2)s accused KITITT and LLBRECHT tostified that EICHEL ordered ALBRECHT
to kill the flyer but that he refused (R 151), 1602, 1603), .iccused !IOLLER
tostificd that accused EICHEL gave him an ordor to sﬁoot the flyer (R 470,
475, 1482; P-Exs 11li, 116, p. 3). BICHEL stuted that he was considering
putting the flyer on the radiator of his car and driving him through the
town (R 470, 1515; P—E¥ 1124)s Ho directed that the flyer be brought before
tho crowd (R L48L; P-Ex 122, p. 7)e Outside the police station he vigorously
incited thoe crowd igainst the flyer (R L70, L8L, 1515; P-Exs 1124, 122, p. 5).
Pursuwnt to the iccused's order, accused !MOLLER, together with accused
ALBR7CHT, GOEHRENDT, and a policcnan by the namo of Como walked the flyor

to a forest in the vicinity of Bieber (R LLS, LL6, LT75; P-Ex 116, p. L), In
tho forast, accused LOLLER shot thao flyer twice, resulting in his death

(R 470, 471, 1517, 1520; P-Exs 1114, 113i).

The same cvening, an Lmerican flyer was taken to the police headquarters
in Offenbach from the police stition in Bieber by two policemen, llichel and
Schneider, incidont numbor 8 (R 1774, 1775)e They raeported to accused
ATJ/ITT, who repriranded them for not having killed ths flyer (R 1775, 1776).
By his extrajudicial sworn statement KIUVITT asserted that he ordercd them to
kill the flyor in conformity with a previous spccific order relayed to him
fron accused EICHEL (R 585; P~Ex 135, p. 3)¢ The flyer was shot to doath an
hour or so later near an air raid shelter on Biorbrauer ‘ieg, Offenbach, by
accused HALUANN with the coe-operation, if not the aid, of !ichel and Schneider
(R 507, 523, 52L),

Evidence for Defenses The accusod took the stand and tostified under

-~

oathe He adnitted that in the summer of 1944, he raccived Himmler's noninter-
ferance order aither from Berlin or from the commanding officer of the regular
police in Wiasbaden (R 166L). He testified that on 22 February 1945, he saw
flyers parachuting to carth (R 1665), He left in his car, togecther with

. accused KITVITT, to check up on security measures (R 1666). He drove through
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the town of Bicber, where he was told that thore was 2 flyor in the police

station, He proceeded to the police station with KIVITT (R 1668), He

sav the flyer in the police stafion but denicd that he slapped the cigarette
out of his nouth and testified that he merely took the scarf fron'tho flyor's
neck and laid it on the table, incident number 7 (R 1671). He told accused
ALBRECHT to take the flyer to police headquarters stating that, "he will be
bwaped of £ anyway" (R 1672), He teatifiad that he made this remark becnuse
the gauleiter had once said while surveying bomb damage that all flyors would
be shot (R 1672), He did not consider this ronark as an order but norely
meant that others would do it becausc of the propaginda and the general
feeling of the civilian population (R 1672, 1673). He also dcnied that he
gwo accused [{OLLER an order to kill the flyer (R 1677). He further tostifiad
that a2 fow hours later on the sane day accused ALBRTCHT personally reported
to him that the flyér had bean shot while trying to escipzes That evening

he recoeived a written roport to the same effect (R 168L). Ho denied that he
ever informed members of the police that captured flyers were to be shot

(R 1690),

He also denicd that he had anything to do with the orders given to the
policeren ilichel and Schneider concerning the capilured flrer vho was killed
on Bierbruuor .eg, incident number 8 (R 1873)s He dnirtad he was present
in his comaand post near Bierbrauer ‘jeg tho 2voning of 22 February 1945
(R 1873). “hile at his command post, a policoman rushed in and told him
about a parachutist, He then hcard severil shots and a wild chase cnsued
down the staircase toward his command post (R 1874), He ran out toward
Bierbrauer lieg and saw threc or four men cirrying a corpse (R 1875). i
porson with whom he was not familiar told him that he had shot the flyer
while trying to escape. He later found out that the person in question
vs accused HAIMANN (R 1876).

Sufficicncy of Evideneco:t The ovidenca, a substantial part of which is

supported by his own admissions, indicates that the accused issued orderc
to his subordinates to iill czptured flyers involved in incidents numbers

7 and 8 and that in conforaity with these orders unirmed and surr:ndered
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the tovm of Bicber, where he was told that thore was 2 flyor in the police

station, He procecded to the police station with KIVITT (R 1668), He

sy the flyer in the police stafion but denicd that he slapped the cigarette
out of his nouth and testified that he merely took the scarf fran'tho flyor's
neck and laid it on the table, incident number 7 (R 1671). He told accused
ALBRECHT to take the flyer to police headquarters stating that, "he will be
buwaped off anyway" (R 1672). He testified that he made this remark beecause
the gauleiter had once said while surveying bomb damage that all flyers would
bo shot (R 1672), He did not consider this romark as an order but norely
nmeant that others would do it because of the propaginda and the general
feeling of the civilian population (R 1672, 1673). He also denied that he
gavo accused [{OLLER an order to kill the flyer (R 1677). He further tostifiad
that a few hours later on the samé day accusad ALBRUCHT personally reported
to him that the flyér had bean shot while trying to escipzes That evening

he received 2 written roport to the same offect (R 168l4). Ho denied that he
ever informed nmembers of the police that captured flyers were to be shot

(R 1690),

He algo deniod that he had anything to do with the orders given to the
policenen ilichel and Schneider concerning the capiurcd flrer who was killed
on Bierbraucr .ieg, incident number 8 (R 1873). !He 1dnittad ho was present
in his comiaand post near Bierbrauer ljeg tho 2voning of 22 February 1945
(R 1873). Thile at his command post, a policoman rushed in and told hin
about a parachutist, He then hicard severil shots and a wild chase ensued
down the staircase toward his command post (R 1874), He ran out toward
Bierbrauer lieg and saw threc or four men c:rrying a corpse (R 1875). 4
porson with whom he was not familiar told him that he had shot the flyer
while trying to escapes He later found out that the person in question
was 1ccusod HAIMANN (R 1876).

Sufficicncy of Evidenco:t The ovidenca, a substaintial part of which is

supported by his own admissions, indicates that the accused issued orderc
to his subordinates to iill ciptured flyers involved in incidents numbors

7 and 8 and that in conforaity with these ordoers unarmed and surr:ndered
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Anerican prisoners of war were killed by subordinates under his command, That

he partidipated in the common design involved in charge 1 is also satise

factorily established,

The 'findings of guilty are warranted by the evidence, The sentence is
not excessive,

Petitions: Petitions for Review were filed by Licutenant Colonel '.Ti.‘..liam
Beriman, Chief Defense Counsel, 2l March 1947 and by Dr. Richard Wacker, German
defensa counsel, 27 March 1947 and 22 /pril 1947. Petitions for Clemency were
filed by his son, Helmuth Eichel, L april 1947; Buchner, 25 March 1947;

Dr. Fruhauf and Dr. Kallab, 29 March 19L7; 4. ueﬁold, 2 ipril 1947; Philipp
Hechler, L .pril 1747; and one Schultheis, 28 lfarch 1947,

Recommendation: That the findings and sentonce be approved,

7« JOSEF JOH.NN KIJITT

Nationalitys German

iges 52 .
Civilian Status: Captain, Order Police, Offenbach, Gernany
Party Statuss Nazl party since 1 May 1933

Hilitary Statuss None

Plea: NG Charges 1, 2, 7 an2 8

Findings; G Charges 1, 7 and 8;
NG Charge 2

Sentencet Death by hanging

Evidence for Prosecution: The accused was a captain in the Order Policeo

in Offenbach, Germny. One liajor Kuhlenbeck was his imnediate superior and
accused EICHZL was his next higher superior (R 1589).

In Januiry 1945, the accused knew of the axistence of Hirrlor's noninter
ference order, He also knew of a direct order from Himmler to the effect
that all captured flycrs werc to be killed by the police (R 473; P-Ex 11k,
Pe 4)s In about December 1944, he told a French deportee that captured ine
erican flyers were to be shot 2and a repor-t thoen aade that the flyer was shot
while attempting to escape (R 495; P-Ex 124.). He also received an order from

his superior, accused EICHEL, that captured flyers were to be shot (R 585,
1690; P-BEx 135, pe 3).
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On about 22 February 1945, three ..merican flyecrs paraciuted to safety in
the vicinity of Bieber, Gormany (R LL1, 473; P-Ex 11k4), Onc witness testificd
that at about 1400 on 22 February 1945 during an air raid in Offenbach, Gor-
many, 4 police captain who was identifisd as Captain KT./ITT, drove by his
guard post and said, ".ll these flyurs‘aro going to be boaten to death"; and
that Just prior to this, the craw of a four motorad bomber had parachuted to
oarth nearby (R 501, 502). The accusad, togother with accused EICHEL, wont
to the police station in Bieber, incident number 7, One of the flyers was
already there (R LL42, 460, L473; P-Ex 114), i.ccused ,LBRECHT and four or five
other policemen were also there (R 473; P-Ex 11}, p. 2), The accused re=-
prinanded the policemen and called them cowards, for pernmitting the flyer to
ronmain alive, He told thom that the pilot should be beaten (R 470; P-Ex 1124i),
He also instigated the crowd that had gathered outside tho police station
against the flyer (R L71, L473; P-Exs 113., 114, p. 5). Thile still in the
police station EICHEL, in the presence of KIUITT, ordered LLBRECHT to kill' the
fly»r (R 151k, 1602, 1603). The flyer was taken out of the police station
by accused LLBRECHT and two or three other policemen, ALBRECHT, the flyer,
and tho other policemen walked away, The accused then roturned to his office
in Offenbach, Tha% afternoon a written report fron ALBRECHT, to tha effect

that the flyor was shot whilc atteompting to escape, pisscd through the office

of the aceused (R 473; P-Ex 11k, D; 5)e

During the evening of the same day another captured flyer was brought
to police headquarters in Offenbach from the police station in Bicber in
custody of policemen Michel and Schnoider, incident number 8 (R 571, 572).
Thoy roported to the accused KIVITT, who rerrinanded them for not killing the
flyer while walking him six kilometers through the woods (R 572, 1775,
1776)s KIJITT then ordered them to get out andlkill the flyer (R 573, 1777);
Tho accused, in his extrajudicial sworn statement, asserted that he ordered
then to kill the flyor pursuant to a previous spocific order relayed to him
fronm accused EICHEL that the flyer ba killed (R 585; P-Ex 135, p. 3)e Ho
tostifiod in Court that he ordered them to kill the flyer aftor Lieutenant Alt
told hin that 2 major had ordered that the flyer be killed (R 1907). Ho
s G AL R s ¥ ET sudt H0e '31-:"-*0 e
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further testified that, after the two policemen and the flyer left his office,
he ealled up ;‘ajor Kuhlenbock to conﬁ.;-m the shooting order and that he re-
caived a confirmition >f the order from the mijor (R 1908), Licutenwnt ilt,
in his éxtrajudicial sworn staterienty said that the accused ordered the two
policeiien to shoot the flyer and that accused ordered him to accompany them
and supervise the execution of the order (R 1689, 1690; D-Ex 19)., Later that
night this flyer as killed on Bilerbrauer .eg, ncar an aireraid sholtor, by
accused HAMIINN with theooeoperation, if not the aid, of lMichel and Schneider
(R 507, 523, 524). Policemen Michel and Schneider testified that nothing
was8 sald to them indicating this accused had received an order from a superior
rolative to the shooting of the flyer (R 1768, 1780),

Evidence for Defenses The accused took the stand and testificd under

oath, iie admitted that he grumbled a bit and made a fow silly remakks in the
course of the discussion concerning the flyer who was in the police station
in Bieber on 22 February 1945 (R 1591)4 He testified ho then left the police
station and drove to Offenbach with the accused EICHEL, That afternoon he
recelved a report from tho police.in Bieber that the flyer had been killed
while atterpting to escape (R 1593, 1594). During the evening of 22 February
1945, two policomen came to his headquarters in 0anbach with another cape-
tured flyer (R 1906). He asserted that he roprinanded them for not taking
the flyer to a ncarby inti-aireraft unit, and told the policemen to take the
flyer to the police jails, He asserted that Licutenant Alt, duty officer,

who was present at the tiune infarmed him that a major had ordered that tha
flyer be killed, The accused admitted that ho then ordered the policemen to
shoot the flyer, He asscrted that he ordercd the policeorien out of the office
when they told him they would not ecarry out the order, but would return the
flyer to Bicber (R 1907)., Later the accused called 'fajor Kuhlenbeck, his
superior, regarding the order, The major informed him that the order had to be
earried out, During this conversation, the mJjor also informed the accused
that Licutenant ilt should carry out the order (R 1908), ..ccused naéorted
that he sent Licutenant 41t after the flyer and the two policemert with ine

structions to have the army vick up the flyer, The next morning he was




notified by Lieutenant 41t that the flyor had been shot, He denied the ex~

istence of any orders in the headquarters of the Protective Police‘concerning

_ the shooting of flyors (R 1909). \
Sufficiency of Evidence; The accused received and passed on an order to

ki1l 1llegally surrendered and: uniarmed flyers, Ha took a consenting and
volunﬁary part in the pommon-plan and design to violate the laws anﬁ usaggs of
mr'v\:md his guilt under charge 1 is thus established, His parti:cipation in’
inciﬂont nurber 7 warrants the.findinga of guilty, however, whether he was
involved tierein to a sufficient degree to warrant the death sentence is not
 frec from difficulties, Concerning incident number 8, ‘the appropriﬁtenesa of
the death sentence depends somewhat on whother the accused acquiesced in the
‘assertion of the policemen that they would return the flyar to Bicber, In
his testimony, he asserted that he acquiesced in thé plan, However, his '
testimony conflicts with the testimony of Michol and Schneider on the question
of his acquiesence in their refusal to shoot the flyer, Under the circun-
staces the Court would have boon warrantod in condluding that the accused
ordered the flyer inYolved in incident numﬂer 8 shot pursuant to general orders
issued prior to the capture of thg-flyer and that ‘the accused did not indicate
that ho approved of tho policemen's suggestion that the flyer be rdturnaq\
to Bicber, but that on the contrary he ordsred’them to get ‘out.of his offies:
qhd kill the flycr, He played a vit.ai and voluntary part in incident nunber 8,
.The findings of guilty arce warranted by the evidence, The sentence is

not excessive, _
[}
L

Potitions: Petitions for Review wore filed by Dr, Buerger, Gernan
defanse counsel, and Lieutcnant Colonel ‘/illian .Bermn, Chicf Defonse Counsel,

‘2l liarch 1947, Petitions for Clemency were filed by Maria Kiwitt, wife,

20 april 1947; .nton Passmann, 25 April 1947; Otto Schmidt, 26 .ipril 1947;
wlfred Hild, 23 .pril 1947; H, Heinrichsbauor, L, 11 an? 2l .pril 1947;
L. Nachstein, 10 .pril 1947; and laria Kiwitt, sistor, 28 July 1947, !

\
Recommendations That the findings and sontence be approved,
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8, LILMEL! ALBRICHT

' . Hationalitys

Iipger

\ f ' 1 \
Civilian Statuss First Licutenant, Order Police and Chief
of .Police in Biecbor, Germany

Party Status: Nazi party since ‘1940
Military Statuss None

Pleas " NG Charges 1, 2 and 7

Findings: G chargna 1and 7
NG Charge 2\

Sentencet 15 years, commencing 29 May 1945

Evidence for Prosccutions Tho accused was a first lieutonant of the

Order Police and chief of police in charge of the po'.‘l.ico station in Bieber;

' Germany (R L475; P-Ex 116, ppe 2, 3)e In Sthunhar 1944 1t a conference of
police chiefs held in Offenbach, Himmler's nonintorference order was read by -
his suporior, Iajor Kuhlenbeck (R uau, P-Ex 122, pe 3)s On a‘oout 22 February
1945, throo amarican flyers parachuted to safety in the vicinity of Biebor,
Gcrmany Ono of them was éaptured and taken by a policeman to tho police
station in Biebor uharc he wns searched by tho accused and a policenan n:med :
Luock (R L, L42)s in identification card foun! on the £lyor indicated his
name to bo 7illian Duke (R L57)e Shortly thereafteér, accused EICHEL and KT7ITT
arlfivéd (R Lh2, 460)s EICHEL, KIVITT, and ALBRECHT, all entoked ALBRECHT!'s
offico (R 16'75, P-Ex 116, pp. 2, 3).' KTTITT tcstificd that he did not cntor
tho room, but that the door was open and tl'nt ha heard nost of tho conver=
sation (R 1592). .ccused EICHEL then told ALBRECHT that the flyor rust be
killod, The lattor ropliod that ho would not do it whereupon EICHEL saidy
mfoll then, Soncbody else will do it."'(R 48L; P-Ex 122, p. L)e ALBRECHT
testifiod that he then went.to chango his uniform (R 151kL). accused HOI.L]?T&
tosbifiod that BICHEL ordered him to kill the flyof (R 170, L75, 1402; P-Exs
11L., 116, p. 3). accused LLBRECHT ordered nccused MOLLER to get his steel
helmet an. weapon. 4LBRECHT or HOLLER ‘thon took the flyer out of the police
station, A paliéenan named Como followed them out (R 475, 1483; P-Ex 116, p. L).
MOLLER walked the flyer to n Jorest in the vicinity of Bieber (R L470; P-Ex 1114).
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~LBRECHT, toget.aer with accused GOEHRENDT, followed then -m tmey in turn

were followed by policeman Como (R LLS). It may-be that ..LBRECHT wnlked with
rather than followed MOLLER (R L69; P-Ex 1104), .ccused ALBRECHT and
ucmnuﬁnnur were armed with pihtola (R L4S, L75; P-Ex 116, p. 5);- In the forest,
accused HOLLER shot the flyer twice killinghin (R L70, L71, L75; P-Exs 11Li,
113., 116, p. L). nccused ALBRECHT then ordered Como to guard the body

(R LL7, L71; P=Ex 113.),| The body was later buried in the cometory in Offens .

bach (R L471; P=BEx 1}1a). Later that same day LLBRECHT ordered policeman
Heberer to make 2 written report of the incident (R LBL; P-Ex 122, p. 7).
éhe body wis disinterred on'27 February 1946, and the victim identified as an
snmerican, Villiam i, Duke (R L82; P-BEx 121)..

Evidence for Defensec: The accusﬁd took the stand and testified under

oath.. He testified that on about 22 February 1945 a captured flyer was
brought ;to the police station in Biobens | The, Z1yob whis Ah sceraoins A1 LA
Duke (R 1511, 1512), The accusdd ordered the policemen Lucck and Como to

take the flyor to the headquarters .of the Order Polica pursuant to an 1fiating
orders Before the flyer was taken awy, accuaad EICHEL and KIITTT arrived

(R 1513). EICHRL and YIIITT reprimanded the accusod for showing considoration
to the flyer, Then EICHEL gave the accusdd an order to do away with the flyer,
The accused roplied that he would n?t do it to which BICHEL said that soncone
elso would,” The accused decided to go along with the flyer (R 151kL), The
accused Srderdad 'Cy10 to go with the flyer and, whon Lucck another policeman
who the accused intended should go along failed to appear, the accused ardérad
adelsadriOLLER to go (R 1516), Outside the police station the accuscd saw
accusod GOEﬁRENEH and ordered him to 35 along to aid in keeping the people
back (R 1518), :OLLER and Coro walked sone 20 to 30 mcters in front of the
accused (R 1518). The groﬁp walked to the forost and when HOLLER.took tho
wrong path, that is a Path into the for?st‘qnd not the sne to Offenbdch, the
accused o;darcd'GOEHﬁENDT to run up and dircet MOLLER as to the correct one

(R 1518, 1519), .t this point-th§ accused stopped to talk to a passer-by, and
while so engaged in a conversation, the accused heard two shots (R 1519), He

ran toward MOLLER and asked him why he had shot the flyer, MOLLER told him
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the flyer tricd to escapei The accused ordered Como to stand guard over the
body, The accused and MOLLER returned to the police station (R 1520),

Bocause of tﬁis incident he ordefod the policenen under his command to take
captured {lyers to thc air force instead of bringing them to the police station
(R 1521), ~iith the oxception of the nonintorference order issued by Himmler,
the accused knew of no other arders regarding the treatment of flyers (R 1525)a

Sufficiency of Bvidence: If he was not ordered to accompany HOLLER to

tﬁe scene of the shooting, he must have done so through a desire to assist
or because of curiosity, Furthcrmore, the Court might well have concluded
that' the accused had no intention of taking the flyer to Offenbach,

The findings of guilty are warranted by the evidence, The sentence is
not excessive,

Petitions;s Petitions for Review were filed by Dr, llax Rau, German
defense counsal, L april 1947 and Licutenant Colonel ‘/illiam Berman, Chief
Defense Counsel, 2l March 1947, No Petitions for Clomency were filed,

Recomnendations That the findings and sentonce be approved,

9. HERIL.NN IIOLLER

Nationalitys
Aget L5

Civilian Status: Clork, lfaster Sergeant of
the police in Bieber, Gormny

Party Statuss Nazi party sinco 1937
Military Status: None

Pleas NG Charges 1, 2 ~nd 7 by reason
: of insanity

Findings: G Charge 7
NG Charges 1 and 2

Soentoncos Death by hanging
Evidence for Prosccutions The 2ccused pleaded not guilty to the charges

by renson of insanity (R 36), The ..rmy psychiatrist who examined him at the
roquest of the Court testifiod that there was no history indicating that the
accused was at any time insane, He further testificd that the accused was

fully capable of understaniing the procecdings of the trial (R 110)¢ The
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psychiatrist testificd that in-hia opinion the accused was sane on 22 February

1945, tho date of the incident covered by charge 7 and that the accused was

thon able to distinguish between right and wrong (R 111), He further tostified

that the accused had a chronie, moderate tonsion state; that he was of averago
intelligence; and that the chronic tension had been present all his life (R 110)

The accused testified that on 22 February 1945, while 2 captured iuerican

flyer was in the custody of the police in Bicber, Cermany, he was given an

order, by accused BICHEL, to shoot the flyer. “/hen he indicated his unwilling=-

ness to carry out the order, accused EICHEL threatened him with courts-martial,

The accused thon left the police station with tho flyer accompanied by police-

man Como, The accused was armed with a carbine, H2 walked to the woods

with the flyer accompanied by accused ,.LBRECHUT and GOTHRENDT (R L69, L7k,

1482, 1483; P-Exs 110Q., 115., ppe 3, L)e accused EICHEIL vigorously denied

giving the order to the accused and insisted that he nad never seen hin prior
to being brought to Dachau and that the accused did not know him at that time
(R 1675-16717).
hin (R L469=hT1, LT7L; P=Dxs 1104, 111., 1134, 118.)s Como was ordered to

In the woods the iccused fired two shote at the flyer, killing

guard the body. The accused returned to the police station and later went to

his home, “/hile at home, a policeman appeared with a written report prepared

at the police station, which the accused signeds The report was to the effect

that the flyor had becn shot while trying to escape (R L69, L7k, L475;

P-Bxs 11Qh, 1154, 116, p, 5)s The victim was buried in the conetery in

Offenbach (R 471; P-Ex 113.).

The body was disintorred on 27 February 1946
and identified as thut of an imerican, willian A, Duke (R L482; P-Ex 121),

Evidence for Dafense: The accuserd took the stand and testified under

oath, IIis testinony was in most rospects substuntially to the sare effect as

\ the ovidence offored by the prosecution, He denied knowledge of any genoral

ordors concerning the illegal treatment of flyers, but almitted receiving

an order from the accused ZICHEL to kill the flyer (R 1482). The accused

testified that the order given to him by accused EICIEL was given while thc

two werc alonc in a roon, This was stated by the accused to have happened

imaediately aftor LLBRECHT had 2 sked for voluntears. The accused asserted

A TS W




A S TN G AT T A T

Al

that EICHEL told hin ho would be courts-martialed if ho refused (R 1462).
Failuro on his part to carry out the order would have meant death (R 1488,,
Pursuant to the order, he, policeman Como and the accused Q£BRECHT and
GOEHRENDT wnlied the flyor toward the woods, Twonty metors in tho woods, the
accused fired two shots at the flyer, killing him (R 1484-1486)s “hile at
homa lator that day, he signed a written report, which had been previously
preparad in the police station, to the offoet that the flyer was shot while
trying to escapes He admitted this roport wms false (R 1488) 3

Sufficiehqg_of Zvidence: That the accused participated in incident

nunber 7 by firing the fatal shot is admitied oy him, However, thero is
evidence from which the Court might have concluded that it was with some degree
of reluctanco that the accused participated after receiving an order from one
greatly his supcrior, Furthermore, while the real purpose of LLBRECIT's
acconpanying the group to the scene of the shooting is not too apparent, the
Court nmight woll have concluded that he went to suparvise or to aséura
offoctive cxccution of EICHEL's orders, This prosence of a superior during the
shooting by a sornwhnt.unuilling inferior created a degree of immediate cone
pulsion, “/ith regard to the evidence offered in support of superior orders,
the accused act the burden of proof roquirod by poertinent 1uthor1tiea dis=-
cusscd in Section VI, post, and proved that he ncted uneday i;vodiate Qo=
pulsicn to a ¢wpuatively snnXi duimmio,:.

The lindings of guilty are warranted by the evidence, The sentence is
oxcessive,

Potitions: Potitions for Review wore filed by Dr, Buerger, Gernman defonse

counsel, and Lieutenant Colonel 7illian Berman, Chief Defense Counsel, 2 March

1947, Petitions for Clenency were filed by Rulolph Heckolmann and Philipp

Krill, 25 March 1947; inton Lippert and inton Glas, both undated; Gustav
‘fooll and three other persons, undated; and Josef Sommer, 2l lfarch 1947,

Recdnmondations; That the findings and sentence be approvad, but that

the sentence be con mted to life imprisonment,

10, WILHEIM FRIEDRICH GOEHRENDT
This accused was zcquitted (R 2578),




PAUL VATIRGALG

Nationality; German
Lzes L6

Civilian Statuss | , Locksmith and *astor Sorgcant, Fire .
Protection Polico, Offenbach, Germany

Party Status; ' HHone
Military Statuss Nope
.Ploa; " NG Charges 1, 2 and 8

Findings; . G Charge 8; |
NG Charges 1 and 2

Sentence; - 5 yoars, commoncing 6 Docombor 19L5
Evidonce for Prosceution: Accusad HAIRIANI and FAY worc subordinates of

this accusod (R 583; P-Ex 13L4), During t.‘ho evening of 22 February 1915,
accused GOEHRENDT turnsd over a captured Amrican,flyar to the policemen

Hichel and Schneider in the polied station at Biobar, Gcmn.ny-, with instruct=

fons to deliver him to police hoadquhrtoru in Offcenbach, incident nurbor 8

(R 571, 1774, 1?75).} In Offenbach the policamen reportsd to accused Xro1eT, :
who ordered thom 4o lill the flyor (R 573; 1777) . Tho polircom.on indicated tho'ir_
refusal to carry out the order and sugy qsted to XIVITT tht thoy would return

. tho flyor to Biober (R 1777, 1907, 1908). During an air raid tho two pol:loe-
mon with tho flyer zntered an air raid sholtor area on 3iorbraver 'fog (R 57!4,
1756)s The air raid shelter area consisted of an open space with an undope
gi-ound shelter at onc end. 4 stairway led to this undorground sholtqzl-. Tith
tho exception of the main gate, the only onc ot.har exit from the arca was on

Biorbrauer ‘leg (R 500; P-Ex 126), A portibdn of the underground shelter was

usad by EICHZL as a cam.md post, Thoe guard at the ‘pain gate to the shelter

£ T

'arm was informed by tho policemen that they had a flyor who was to be

- -

!

shot (R 574, 575, 1778). The accused appe wroed fyom the guard room on
tho sholtor arca and was told that the policemen had 2 flyor who was tao

be killed (R 524, 525, 542), The accused called Tor accused il TiANH

e e —————T S ——

who was scrgeant of the fawd, and ’bot.h engaged in a whispering cone
versation (X 503, 528, 1043, 1367, 1368), ,‘T'm accusad thon czllad

~ for' accused TAY and i.ni‘or:n-:;d i by whisperineg that the flror had"to bo
killed (R 525, 548, .1367, 1863],' P-Ex 133, p. 2). FAY vAs thon heard to say
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that this was 4 small matter and would got it fixed up right away (R 50L).

isccused BICHEL was in his command post at the tine of the incident (R 1873).
FLAY pushed anl Irove the flyer toward the stairway. This accused also
accorpanied FLY (R 504-506, 526, 588; P~Ex 133, p. L)s iccused FiY stated
in his extrajulicial sworn testimony that, although the flyer was then

surrounded by three or four policemen, tho flyer hit him and started to run,
whereupon FLY Fiped a shot into the air and yelled halt (R 538; P-Ex 138, !
pp; L; 5)s The guards heard the shot and then shouts to the offect that a . . i
flyer was escaping (R 506, 512, 526, 527). asccused HAMMANN took the guard's
cdarbine, who was standing at the main antrinco, and ran to the secondary £ !
oxit, there being only one in adlition to the main entrance (R 500, 513, 56L; :
P-Ex 126)s HiIRLNN fired threc shots at ‘the flyer at close range, killing him "
(r 507, 1827),
NAHRGWNG and ILMLNN were seen standing by the body of the vietinm very soon

Two or three pistol shots were &lso’'hecard (R 527)s Accused t

after the shots wore fired (R 527, 530)s The body was brought back by
NiHRG.NG, HALCLMNN and others and laid in the air raid shelter areca (R 507,

508, 583, 10851; P-Ex 13Li)e The next day a policeman assigned for duty at the

air rail shelter told accused KIWITT that the policeman who had beon assigned

to kill the flyer acted cowardly and that he had to shoot the flycr, This
policeman was identified as "Nartrat" (R 585; P-Ex 135, p. L).

Evidenco for Defenses The accused took the stand an! testified under

ocath, He was the platoon lealer of the extinguishing platoon and was stationec

at the air raid shelter on Bierbrauver ‘g (R 1748). During the evening of

22 February 1945, a police sorgeant and one f the guards at the air raid

sholter appeared in front of his offices The psliceman told him he wms sceking

cover with a captured flyer, The accuscd called the accused HLMLNN, who

was the sergeant of tho guard, In the meantime the guard at the gate, one

Zahn, told the accused that the policemen with the flyer had an order to shoot

hin but were not going to carry it out. ithen accused FLAY appeared, this

accused pave him the information he had received from the guard (R 1846-1848),

FAY remarked while leaving that he was going to examine the situation, The

accused then started to pick up his coat and boots to go out, i short time
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later he hoard soneona yell "halt" and a short timo :u,’ter that a ahot. He

15 the secondayy ex!.t. On the way he he:‘d that accused HAMMANN had fired at 5|

the flyers
Together with FAY and one Gunther, he helped carry the body to the garden

He went to the spot whare the flyor lay dead'(R 1818-1850),

L
|

el d

ran into the yard whare hel hoard anothor shot. Consequently, he went tmrd % _Qf‘-!
W

l

i

i

|

(R 1851), He tostified that he did qot. see accusedi HAMNN at the sﬁbt‘x_ma?a 3 -'!_.)
the flyor lay (R 1850) and was mistaken regarding the state‘mnt in his extra- |
Judieial sworn peatimony to thé effect that he had seen him there (R 1851).
He further testified that he had naover heard of any general orders from h.gher
authority concerning the ‘treatment of enemy flyers (R 1852),

Sufficiency of Evidence:s The Court night well have concluded thnt. the

flyer was shot during a simulated escape planned by the accused and qthors to
give the killing a color of legality,

The findings of guilty are warranted by the evidence., The sentence is

not oxcossive,

Potitionss i Petition for Review wae filed by Lieutenant Colonel /illiam .
e —— z \

Berman, Chief Defonse Counsel, 2l !farch 1947. No Petitions for Clemency

maredr filed,

Recommendations That the findings and sentenco be approved, 7 4

hY

12, PHILIPP HAMMLNN

Nationality: '  German
51

Civilian Status: Carpenter, Sergeant, Air Raid
- Police, Offenbach, Gorrany

‘ !.ge.s

Party Statuss None

Hilitary Status: None
Ploag ; NG Charges 1, 2 and 8

Findingss G Charge 8; -
; l NG Charges 1 and 2

Sentence; 15 years, commencing 12 May 1945
Evidence for Prosecution: During the evening of 22 Februaryil9L5, in

Offe;nbach, Germany, two policemen approached the ‘guard at the main gate to

Ll
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the air raic¢ shulter area located on Blorbrauer ‘jeg with a cai:t.urad American
flyor, incidont number 8 (R 502), One of the policemen informed the gﬁard
that the flyar was to bo killed (R 503)s Accused NAHRG,NG appeared fron the
muard roon (R 503, 504, 52L)s The guard told what .the policémon had said
(R 525) MNALHRGAIIG called for dccused HAMLNN and they ongaged in a whiéperhig
conversation (R 503, '525). nccused F.Y was also called, He arigaged in a shtl)rp
v;hispering conversation and then was heard to say, "That is only a small
matter, e will get it fixed up right away".(R 525, 504, 1867, 1868), The
accused FAY, with a pistol in hapd, pushed and drove the flyer toward the
stairway which led down in the direction of a bunker (R 526). The guards
heard a shot and then éhou‘t-a that a flyer was escaping (R 506, 512, 527),
ihecused FAY stated in his extrajudicial sworn testimony that, although tha
. flyer '.-r':'m then surrounded by three or four policemen, the flyer hit him and ‘
startod to run, whereupon FAY fired a shot into the air and yelled hal$ .

(R 588; P=Ex 138, pps L, 5)s Zccused HAIZLNN ran past the guard at the main

gaﬁe, grabbed the latter's carbine, and ran to the secondary axilt to the air X
x'-aid shelter area, thore being -pnly one in addition to the main entrance |
(R 500, 513, 56L; f—Ex 126). This accusod fired three shoﬁa at the flyor at
close range, ki]\..lin(’; hin (R 507, 1827). Two or thrac pistol sh'(?t.s wera also
heard (R 527)e iccused NAHRGANG and HAMUANN were seon stdn;ing by the body
of the vietim very soon after the shats were fired (R 530, 535). NAHRGANG, |
H.\ 11NN, and others picked up the body and carried it to the air raid shelter
area (R 507, 508, 555, 583; P=Ex 13Li)s iccused EICHEL appeared and HAMUNN
reported that he had shot the flyer while attompting to escape (R 556, 588;
F-BEx 138, pe 6). |

Evidence for Defenses The accused took tho stand anl testified under

oaths On 22 Tobruary 1945, he was sergeant of the guard of the airraid police

stationed at the air raid shelter on Bierbrauer Veg (R 1822), ‘hile in his n> ”

room, he hearé some shots followed by shouts as a result of which he went _at-

We- (R 1823), He:/ assumed that someone was escaping und, inasmuch as the

individual could only leave by the secondary exit, he ran to that point (R .182)),

Enroute he took a carbine fron the guard at the main patc. Yhen he arrived at
2 | '
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a point a faw meters from the aochndary exit, "t-hn flyer ran out on 't.ha st;roet
(R 1025). He called, "Halt", several times, The wman kept running and he
chased him for BO to 100 mtgra (R 1825), ile then ﬁ.red one shot at him from |
a distance of 4O to 50 meters., The man appeared to turn to the right td I
escape i.nt.o the woods, He fired two more shots and t he man disappeand from'

view (R 132?). ‘Then he a.rrived near where the victim fell, some others were

carrying back his ,body. On the way back he met accused EICHEL and ;aport-ad
the incident to him (R 1828), The next day he appeared at.‘ the police heatl'i-_- |
quarters in Offenbach and made a written mport (R 1829). He further testified
that he had never received any general ordera from highexr authority regardiing
the treatment of Allied flyers (R 1830). . , |
Sufficiency of Evidence: The Court might well have concluded that the )

flyer was shot during a simulated escape planned by the accused and others in

order to give the k'illing a color of legilityl

The findings of guilty are warranted bylthe evidence. The sentende 1is

not, excessive,
Petitions: : A Petition for Raviavr was filed by Lieutenant c:;lonquilliam ; i
Berman, Chief Defense Gorunsel, 2L March 1947, A Petition’for Chtnancy vas

#11ed by Margarete Hammann, wife of accused, 26 March 1947 . i

Recommendation:s That the findings and sentence be approved.

\

13, BERNARD FAY

Nationalitys ' German

Ages ) et

Civilian Statuss Skin and Leather Merchant; driver and
machinist with Air Raid Protection
Police, Offenbach, Germany '

Party Statusg None |

'H1itary Statuss None

Plea: NG Charges 1, 2 and 8

Findings: G ' Charge 8; _
-NG Charges 1 and 2

Sentences S years, commencing 22 iay 1745
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Evidence for Prosecution: During the evening of 22 February 1945, two

policemen brought a captured American flyer to the air raid shelter on
Bierbrauer wég, Offenbach, Germany, incident number 8 (R 571, 57L). They in=
formed the 'guard at the gate that the flyer had to be killed (R 57k, 575).
hccused NAHRGAIIG, platoon leader of the extinguishing platoon stationed at: the

shelter, appeared from the guard room. The guard gave him the information'

{

received from the policeme (R 52k, 525, 542)., NAHRGANG called for accused |
, HAMMANN, sergeant of the f;tmrd, and engapged in a whispering conversation --ith
him (R 503, 525), NAHRGANG then called accused FAY and told him by whispering
that the flyer had to be killed (R 525, 588, 1867, I&68§ P=Ex 138, p. 2).
FAY said that this was only a small matter and it would be fixed up right
away (R 504, 525), With a pistol in hand, which he r‘eceived from one of the
pelicemen, accuso'd FAY puched and drove the flyer in fron.tl of him toward the
atai:r}my which led down in the direction of a bunker (ﬁ 504, 506, 526).
NAHRGANG and the policemen were with FAY (R 588; P-Ex 138, p. L)e At the
stairway, a shot was heard followed t;y shouts that a‘rlyer was escaping (R 506),
" heoused FAY stated in his extrajudicial sworn testimony that, although the

flyer was then surrounded by three or four policemen, the flyer hit him and

started to run, whereupon FAY fired a shot into the air and yelled halt i}

\ S
(R 588; P-Ex 138, pps L, 5)s Pistol and carbine shots wsre heards The flyer ' ¥

: g | .
was killed near the second.;ry exit by accused HAMUNN (R 5%0, 507, 527, 1827;"' | &

P-Ex 126), Policeman Michel testified that he did not see the flyer hit any-
one immediately prior to the time he began to run (R i789). '
Evidence for Defenses, The accused took the stand and testified under

eath, Ho testified that during an evening toward the end of February 191{5.
while in the ;;uard' house Iut the air raid shelter area on Bierbrauer ‘.:Iag, he
was awakened either by NAHRGANG or some other person and told that a captured
flyer had to be shot, (R 1792-1794)s Upen inquiry as to who ordered the shoote
ing, he was informed it had been ox;derad by accused EICHEL who was the police
director (R 179k)s He suggested going to the police director whose cummand
post was in the rear of the cdurtyard. Hé walked with the flyer, followed by

the policemen, toward the stairway leading to the underground bunker, In front
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¢f the stairway he suddanly received a blo'l' on his cheat and fell backwapds,
He mado a grab and ‘had a pistol in his hand, He yallwd "st.op" zmd f:l,req one
shot in the air, He ran after the f;lyer and fell down the a#eps.‘ He ﬁ.rcd
another shot 4n the air and cmtinued up the street, Ho heard threa qr féur

. shots, "hen he reached the spot. where the fJbor lay, he observed he Va8 doad
(R,1795), : | ; R

\ * Sufficioncy of Evidences The Court might well have concluded that the! f'L

flyor was shot during a simulated oscape‘pl'annad by the accused hﬁd lot,l'i\a:'u in
ordef- to give the killing a color of legality, ;
. The findings of guiity are warranted by the evidencs. . Ths’sentence i
not exoesLive.‘ I. \ i
| Petitionss Pet.i.tioﬁs for Review were filed iay Lioutenant Colonel William
Bermn, Chief Defense Counsel, 2L March 1947 and by Dr, H.:Lx Rau, German dofonae

4 counael, ‘19 april 19h7. No Petiticms for Clemency were filed.

Reoomendatiomf That the findings :md sentance by approved, '

i

\

1y, GEORG'BEST Ay (e

!

Nationality: Gepman

Ages- ] 39 4

|
Civilian Statuss Engineer, NSV, 1936 to }ay 1945; Reichs
Security Main Office, July 1935 to June
1943; Higher SS and Police Chief, France,
Octobor 1943 to November 12LL; ‘Iighor SS
and Polico Chicf, Rheih-Vestmirk area,
December 194k to lay 19'45

P'xrt,{r Statuss  Nazi party, 1 Lusust 1932 to 8 May 1545 :

| Military Statust Major and Commnding Officer of Yohrwolf school
for ohrkreis XII; sllgemsine 88 (HMajor, 1 June
1931 to 8 May 19&%): Waffen SS '(Uajor, S Decembar
19LL to 8 lay 1915) ;

Pleas NG Charges 1, 2 and 9

Findingss ' G Charges 1, 2 and 9

Sentences 15 years, commencing 8 May 1945

Evidence for Prosecutions .iccused BT7ST was a member of the 8S (R 239,
i - i

606, 1053; P~Ex 46), 'The actused was in charge of the lichrmolf schonl for

Wehrkreis XII (R 606), ibout 15 March 1945, one Buhlmann, an instructor in




the .Ie.:r.volr school at Wallrabenstein was ordcred by accused GOSS, the directer
of the school, to kill a captured Lmorican flyer (R 605, 607, 990)s  GNSY.
ave this order in conformity with an order prcvioualy roco:vod from thin
accused to the effect that SiRVP had ordered the flyer 3hot (R 617, 988, 9893
P-Tx 1haa). Because of interfarence by civili- :ns, the order was not gapried
but and the flyer was taken to Idstein (R 607, ?91)s Later, on 17 iarch 19h5,
BEST told GOSS that STROOP was quite angry over tho failure to cayry out the
ordor.and advised GOSS to keep Buhlmann out of sight shoald STROOP appear

(R 609, 1001, 1063). About 18 Harch 1945, GOss ordorod accusad HICIELY to_
shoot a capturad American flyer, indident number 9 (R 1002, 1004). Thoreupon
accused “ICHELY executed the order and made a written report (R 1005), The
ronort was transmitted to accused 23T for STROOP (R ldb5, 617, P-Tix 1424),

The ordar to kill the flyer carried out by accuso@ MICHELY was piven in accorde
anco with an order previouély transmitted by this accused that Allied flyers

. wore-to Be shot, BEST passad on tho order in conformity with an order from
STROOP (R 616 P-Ex 14IA)s In his testimony on the stmnd GOSS strongly
implied that he directed the shoot.ing solaly bacause oi‘ the genoral order he
had roceived dircct from STROOP (R 1005, 1006), b |

Svidonce for Defonse: Tho accused took the st ind and testified under

oath, His testimony was subsﬂ:ntially similir to tho evidence introduced by
tholprosbcution. He tostified that he was asszrnog to the Highor SS and Police
Loadqr, ihoin-iosthrk area, .as commanding officer of the '%hrwolf school for
lichrkreis *II in Decomber 194, (R 1053). On 15 March 1945, porsonnol in his .
office informed him that accused GOSS had called and 1aft a mossage that ho had
a flyor in aa11r1benatain and requested orders from STROOP regarding the flyer
(R 1061). The accused reported this matter to STROOP, who ordered the flyer to
.be shot (R 1062), Later that day tho accused met accuscd GOSS and pave him
the ordor (R 1062), sStill lator, but prior to incident number 9y GOSS reported
~to the accused that the order was not carricd out duc to interference by

¢ivilians, The accused so informed STROOP who was irritatod about the failure

to carry out the order, - On 17 ‘farch 1945, the accused informed GOSS as to

STROOP's reaction to the fiilure to carry out the ordar (R 1063).
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The accusdd furthar testified that he know nething about the murder of

the American fl:fe!‘, which occurred on 18 March 19&5, incidont. nunber 9, and | -

denied that he ma anything to do with tho ihcident befare the shooting (R 1063). ;

Ha pﬂrsomlly never gave an order to kill ny prisnner of war but. merely don-
veyod the onc order from STROOP .to GOSS (R 1044), He deniod that he ever
conSpired with any of the ot.he[r accused to comnmit violationsiof the laws of .

var (R 1066). He specifically denied any quilt under charge 9 (R 1066).

Sufficiency of Evidences Thore is considaravle evidenco as to accused

BEST's nombership in the SS and as to his boing implicated in incident nnmber 9¢
The evidence as'.t.o the accused's guilt under charges 1 .ind 9 is clear, The |
accusad fa.ilcdl to establish thit ho acted under immediite compulsion as an
incident of superior orders to 1 matorial degrde, thus failing to moct the i
burden of proof required by pertinent :n;t.horit.ics discussed ih Section VI, post,
The' fiﬁdings of guilty are warranted by the evidonge. The sentonce is ‘
not oxcessivo, | |
Pet.it.ionsz Petitions for Roview wore filed by Licutenant Colonel Villiam
Berman, Chief Def nsa Counsel and SJIr. Bucrger, Germin dafénse 6MSol, 2l Eaicp

1947, HNo Petitions for Clemenecy were filed,

Recomnondtion: That the findings and sentanco be approved,

L

., 15, ERVIN 6088
Nationality:
ipges . hl

Civilian Status: Economist; adjutant to Gauleitor
Sprenger, Frankfurt a/m, from 15
Septembor to December 19)2

Party Statuss Nazi party, 1939 to iy 1945

Jilitary Statuss First Licutenant, affen S5 from
hAugust 194l, and director of ilehmiolf |
school at 'Yallr'xbenst.oin, Germny,
Cav, 85 (SergeAnt) 1938 4o :iay 1945 °

Pleas . y NG Charges 1, 2 and 9
[

Findings; G Charges 1, 2 ind 9

Sentonces Daath by hanging
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Evidonco for Prosecution: Accused GOSS was 1 hember of the S8 (R 239,

605, 606, 962; P-Ex 47). The accused was diroctor of the ohrwolf achbo} in
‘fallrabonstein, Germany (R 605)., .ibout. 15 March 1945, Buhlmann, an 1nstrugt§r
in the school, brought in a captured flyer (R 605, 606). ' The accused called
accuaed BST for instructions rofparding the flyer; J3EST inquired of acqgéod
STROOP concerning such instructions ind the latter ordered tho fly=r to be
shot, BESTIrelayod the ordor to the accused (R 617; P-Ex 142.), That ovening
tho accused ordered Buhlmann to kill the flyer (ﬁ 607). Bacause of intorference
by civilians, th§ ordeé was not carriod out (R 990, 991), ' The flyer was then
takon to Idstein (R 607). |

Lbout 18 March 1945, accused MICHELY captured an american flyer and
brought him to the school in Wallrzbonstein, incident number 9 (R 607, 608,
618; P-Ix 143, ppe 2, 3)s That evening GOSS gave MICHSLY an order to take
the flyer to Idstein and shoot him on the way. MIGHELY left with the flyer

and returned later to report the accomplishmont of the mission (R'608, 615,
@ : | : {
618; P-Exs 1414, 1#3, PPe L, 5)s GOSS gave this order to ;{ICHELY in conformity

with an order proviously reccived from accusgd BEST to the effect that Allied
flyors wore to be killed, BEST rcceived a 1liko order from STROOP (R 616,
© 618; P~Exs 1L14, 143, p. 6). 'GOSS ordered Buhliann and four others to take tho
body to the cometory (R 608), Tho body was identificd as that of an Lmorican,
Jinmie Re Heathman (R 618; P-Ex 143, p. 5).

Bvidence for Defense: Tho accused took the stand 1nd‘testified under

oath, Ho tostified that in February 1945, at a conference held in Viesbaden,
acousod STROOP tqld him that captured illied flyors were to be shot (R -985),
After he assumod charge of the school, ha became familiar with Bormann'p ordasr,
as well as Goabbol's Propaganda relating to flyers (R 986), |
) about 15 ifarch 1945 on his ordor, Buhlmann brought a flyef to the school .

(R 986, 987). The accused called BEST for instructions regarding the flyer,
That evening BEST ordored\the'accused to shoot the flyor, The order was
transmitted by 3EST from‘aceused STROOP (R 989)s They Loth agreoed upon
Buhlmann as the person to carry out the order. GOSS then returnad to Walle
.rabonatain and ordered Bulilmann to shoot.the flyer, Later Buhlmann reported




that he had failed to carry it out due to interfercnce . uy civilians (R 990,
991). The flyer was taken to Idstein (R 991).

On 13 ‘arch 19&5, accused "ICHELY brought anothor captured flyer to the
school on orders from the accused (R 10027 1003), = That evening he ‘dirccted
IICHELY to tako the flyer, to Idstein and shoot him on the way (R 100%),
1ECHELY loft with the flyor and later returned and reported the execution ;f

tho order. uccused d1rccted -{ICHELY to make out a report which was sent to

STROOP through BEST. The flyor was shot on the diract ordor nraviously

roceived by the accusod from STROOP (R 1005, 1005). The accused donied thnt

he conspired with any of the other accused to commit violations of the laws

of war (R 1075, 1076),

Suffidiengx of Evidence: There is considerable evidence as to accused

GOSS' - membership in the S8 and 2s'to his being implicated in incident number
9« Concerning 1nci§ent number 9, there mas.no superior present. requiring. him
to issue the order to kill the {flyer. 4 few days before the accused Hgd
obviousiy not considered the goneral order to kill flyers too binding or ha
w&hld not have inquired as to STROOP's wishes, 4 spacific order was received
in the }ormor case directing the killing of the flyer, s\but no punishmont was
imposed for failure to carry it out, In the incident at hand no inquiry
was mide of any superior, It is npﬁaront that it was ST20P!'s dcsire‘ihat
all capturcd flycrs be killed but it also appears that the 1ccused's desire
to please STROOP‘wus strongor than other considerations and had that not ﬁocn
true a method of avoiding directing the killinz of the flyer might well have
buen duvised.r Thus tﬁe accused failed to estaolish that he acted under im-
madiato compuision and failad to meét the burden of proof as to superior orders
required by pertinont authorities discussed in Section VI, post, /

The findinﬂs of guilty are warranted Py the evidence, \The senteﬁce is
not excessive,

Petitions: Petitions for Review were filed by Licutenant Colonel William
Berman, Chief Defensa Counsel, and Dr, Buerger, German defznsa counsel,

2Ly farch 19h7; Dr. Trost, 2 German lawyer, 23 July 1947; nd by accused, 23

. June 1947. Three Petltlons for Clemency were filed by Irmpard Goss, wife of
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accused, 10 Jure 1947, 7 July 1947, and 1 iugust 1947; and one by Rudolf

Velte and ten other former officers who served with him in the samo regiment,

~

undated.

’
-

/
Recommchdations That the findings and s entence be approved.

16, [HEIIRICH L. TTHIAS MICHELY

Nationality: German
hges _ 33
Civilian Status: 8chool teacher

Party Statuss Hitler Youth (Technical Sergeant)’ Uhy
‘ 194, to November 194l

Ifilitary Statuss Waffon SS (Private) instructor at ‘ehrwolf
: school, ‘iallrabenstein, Gerdwny, iaffen’SS,
(Private) November 194k to lfay 1945
Pleas g MG Charges 1, 2 and 9 :

Findings: G Charges 2 and 9,
2 NG Charge 1 .

Sentences Doath by hanging

Evidonce' for Prosecutions Accused MICHELY was 1 member of the SS ‘

(R 1030, 1032; P-Ex LB8)s On 18 HMarch 1945, the accused brought a captured
hmerican flyer to the ‘ichrwolf ;chool in Wbllrabenéiein, Germany, incident
munbor 9 (R 607, 608, 616, 6185 P-Exs m,., 143, ppe 2, 3)s That ovening he
received an ordor fronm 1ccused GOSS to take the flyer to Idstein and shoot
him on the way (R 616, 618° P-Exs 1414, 143, ppe Ly 5)e He loft the school

on foqt with the flyer in tho direction of Idstein, He dirccted the flyer on

a little road off the highway and fired sevcr11 shots, killing him, He returnec
and reported the execution of tho order to GOSS., He kept and wore the flyerla
br1celot which bore the name of Jinmiec R. Heathman (R 616, 618; P-Exs 1h1A,

lh3, ppe L, 5). The flyer was buried in the cemetery at ‘allrabenstcin

N

Evidence for Defensc? fho accuscd took the stand and testified under

oath, Ho tostified he was =n instructor in the Wchrwolf school, which fms
under tho command of 1ccused oSS (R 1032), On 18 :farch 1945, upon GOSS!/ order,

he brought in 2 ca iptured .Mﬁricmn flyer (R 103k, 1036). That evening GOSS




diracted him to take the flyer to Idstcin and.shoot him on the way (R 103.).

He cxecuted the order and reported the same to G0SS. He further pestifiéd

that he kept the flyor's bracelet (R 1038)., Subscquently, he made a vritten
report of the incident, which report was sent to Wiesbaden (R 1038), }ia
testified that failure on his part to obey the orden would have meant death
(R 1(‘)&3)0 ) ' / |

Sufficiency of Evidence: There is considoravle avidence as to accused

MICHELY s membership in tho S8S and as to his being implicated in incident
number 9, The acct;sed was not required’ to nor did he kill the fl&or in the
praescnce of a superior, The Cour.t.. might well have concluded that the accused-
took a consenting part in the incident and that his desire to co-operate

wit..h and pleasc his super‘ior was strongor than othor considerations; that

he did not act under immediate compulsion; and that he failed to meet the
burden of proof required by; pertinent authorities discusscd in Section Vi,
post. | _

The findings of guilty are warranted by the evidence. The scntonce is
not cxcessive,

Potitiongs Petitions for Review were ffllold by Dr, Buerger, Germin defensc
counsol, and Licutenant Colohel William Berman, Chief Defense Counsel, 2l
Harch 1947, Pctitions forblamoncy were filed b,lv anaa chely, mother of
accused, 6 ifay 1947; Nikolaus Hiell, 12 and 25 Ih}; 1947; ‘iilhelm Eberle,

12 .pril 1947; Policc Kommissar of Dudweilor, 10 ..pril 1947; Parson Borsch,
29 July 1947; and Catholic Pastorship Rolching;an - Hanweiler, 15 July 1947,
Recommendation: That- the ,Iindings':\rrl sr.'nt.enée be approved.
‘ (

17. LEOMN..RD BR.NNER : ;

Qe accused cscaped from confincrnent prior to being served with

. charpos (R 19, 20), In conformity with Section 5-327,7, Title 5, "Lopal

and Penal idministration", of "iilitary Govornmont Repulations”, published
by Hoadquartors, United States Forces, Buropean Thoater, 30 November 1945,
his trial in absentia was commensed, but no attempts worce nade to make any

findings or to imposc 1ny sentence as to the accused, “I‘hc accuscd n;as the

P s ek




crininal sécretary in the. Gestapo office locatad in Giessen, Germany, In

his oxtrajudicial sworn tostimony, the accused adnitted that on 3 October

194Y, he killed a captﬁr;ad american flyer in Philosophen Forest on the ordor

ST T e N

of his suporior Kriminal-Rat Vintzor, incident number 3 (R 269; P-Ex 584).

f
!

18, JULIUS L.\SS.K

Nationality:

DAdRER 3y g S S
BRI A TRt Al

Lpos 59

Civilian Statuss Railroad Inspector; rFolice Direcctor,
Protective Polica, Gicssen, Germany,
11 January 1944 to fay 1945

Party Status: Nazi party, 1925 to ifay 1945

ilitary Statuss ..llfzomﬁine SS (Colonzl) 1926 to
May 1945

Plcay NG Charges 1, 2 and 3

Findings: G Charges 1 ind 2
NG Charge 3

Sentence: 3 years, coruncing 6 May 1945

Bvidence for Prosccution: The accuscd vas a colonel in the Allpemeine

SS and Polica Dircctor, Giessen, Germany (i 237, 870, 903; P-Ix L9). In
aumust or'September 194k, he received three orders regarding the .trohpmnt

of captured enemy flyers, One ordor was roceived from :bcuéod STROOP and
Gauleiter Sprenger to the effect that the police were to turn over captured
flyers to the Gestapo, The second order was received from STROOP to. the ceffact
that eaptured encmy flyers were to be shot, Tho third ordor 1‘&5 rceceived

from tho commanding officer of the Security Police and was to the effoct ti.at
captured cnewy flycrs would be turned over to the Gostapo. These orders wora
all markad "Secret!" and wcro to be destroyed upon acknowlodgononte On about

3 October 194k, in the vicinity of Giéssen, Germany, the accused, in conformity

with ‘tho above mentioned‘orders, deiivored'a captured suerican flyer to the
Gestapo with the buliif that he would be killed under the order issued by
accused STROOP, The flyar was reported to h.wo.bc_cn killed (R 266, 267,
269; P=Exs 564, 5T, ppe 2, 5, 58L).

Evidence for Defense: The ~ccused took tihe stand and testified under

52




oath, !le admitted receiving the turge orders concerning the illepal troatment

/
of allied ilyers (R 075, 383, 884, 707). He denied ever passing these orders

to iis subordinates or ordering then to mistreat or shoot capturod illied |

flyers or prisoners of war (R 890), He further testified that his statemc ts

in his, extrajudicial sworn testiuony regardine his Xnowledpge that the i"lzmr
would ba shot were made unde;f-duroas and were not. true (R 267, 391-893;

P=Ex 57, pe 5)e The acdused conte'ldad that he wis abused by unnaued CIC
investigators during an mterrog;tian in Camp lo. 5, Uatternberg, Gernany,

in hugust 1945, and a\go.in by a CIC invastigator in Giessen, uormm;r, in early
July 1946 (R 379-831, 30k, 335). No attempt to test the truth of these
assertions with tae testimony of other wilnesses was _:ndc. The accused also
contended he was pressed against 2 wall and told not to li'c during an intorro-
gation in liiesbaden, Germany, in Auguat 1945, by a war erimes invaatl'gutor, 3§
“ro Zinn (R 9Ly 925). This was conceded on tho stand by lir. Coates, Tar
dopartment civilian war crimcs saployes who was present acting as .an inter-
preter (R 967), iowever, it appears that iir, 2inn, ths iavestipator in the
_ i
Wiesbaden interrogation, sxpressed no general threats and merely admonished
the acctusled not to lic (R 967-930), . “ihen ir, Zinn prassed the accused against
the wall “irs Coates said to ifr. Zinn, "os, como buck. Don't do a thing like

this. ‘Te don't touch prisoners" (R 970).

Suflicioner of Evidence: There is considerable covidence as o accuscd

‘ LASSAK's mombarsuip in the 88 and as to his being implicated &n the comaon
.plzm and design to violatz tha lavs of war., '.Exiie tha tostivony taon in
Gicssen was latroduced, it was duplicated in wost pertinent r-:soacts by the
“Tiesbaden extrajudicial sworn tostimonj. Although the action of thc. mvnsti—
zator .-.t. ilesbadan is to be frowned upon, the Court aight well have concladed
that .I.tv Was not. such as to mt tha accused in f2ur of physical violenca,
Particularly in view of the immediate _'.dmonitim; o0 fre Zinn by r. Coates

in wae prastnee of the acecusad, and that it was not shom_th:zt the accuscd
was in such a stata of fzar as might induce hin to st.ite untruths,

The findinzs of guilty ur> warranted by the ovidancs, The sentence is

-

not excessive,
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Petitionss A Petition for Review was filed by ‘Lisutenant Colonel William
Jerman, Chinf Defense Counsel, 2l llarch 1947. io Petitions for Clemency rere

filed,
Recommendation} T‘nat. the findings and senteonce be approved.

19, FRITZ GIRKE
?ht.ionalitys
Age: 35 ,
Civilian Statuss ‘ Lawyer; Gestapo,.l December 1940 to

Miy 1945; Chief of Gestapo office,
Benshein, Germany, 194L to 1945

Party Statusi Nazi party 1 May 1937 to May 1945

Military Statuss 8S Major; Si (Staff Sergeant) 1 May
\ 1933 to 1937

Pleas - - NG Charges 1, 2, 6 and 1}0
Findings: G Charges 1, 2, 6 and 10 .
Sentences Death by hanging S

Evidonce for Prosecution: Accused GIRKE.was a member of the SS (R 336,

1232, 1448) and a member of the Gestapo (R 163, 239, 326, 148; P-Ex 50),

He was chief of the bestapo office located in Bensheim, Germany (R 326, 350),
This office was originally located in Darmstadt. After the office was bgn&ed
o:1t in September 194k, i;: was moved to Bensheim (R 335 336). In A.uéuat. -or
Septembor 194k, he récaived an order marked "Top Secret!" from the Reichs
Head Security Office directing the police to shoot captu;:'ed Allied flyers,

Ho made known the contents of this order to the men under his command (R.102;
P-Ex 29A). This sccret stdte order was then entered in a special book kept
for that purpose (R 513', 319). He also knew of the two orders issued b}r
Himmler, the noninterference order and the ordcr that the policé would turn

over captured flyers to the Gestapo to be shot (R 181- P-x 34A, ppe 3, h).
i On two occasions, 15 Febru-—:ry 1945 and 24 Yarch 1945, incidents numbers
. 6 _and 10, respectively, the accused gave orders to accussd HELI..ENBROIC}{,
STATT!ANN, and RAAF, Gestapo azents under his command, to shoot captured
flyers (R 387; P<Ex 107A). On 15 February 1945, the accusad ord/erpd HELLEN=-
BROICH, STATTMANN, and RAAF to kill a capturcd American flyer. Acting in
conformity with directions by the accused, accused STATT:ANN and RAAF walked
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the flyer to the woods outside the village of Bensheim where STATTINN ki.led

him with his pistol, The flyer wes buried in the cemetory in Bensheim
(R 371'1, 380; P-Exs 103i, pps 2, 3, 10LA). The body was_disinterred on 2 ipril | .‘.
- 1945 and identified as that of an imerican, Ray F. Hermann (R 358, 363; PeExs /

]
Similarly, on 24 March 1945, he ordered accused HELLENBROICH to have

accused STATTILNN and RiiF kill two captured imerican’ soldiers then in the
Gestapo headquarters l:l.n‘Benahein. }ﬁSIJ.EIIBROIGH' rel;yed the order to STATTI.NN
and RfJJ', who thereupon killed .the two. prisoner§ of war in the garden in the
réar of the Gestapo building, Ui:on HELLENDROICH's order, the victims were
buried in the garden by STATTANN and RiiF. On 27 ard 28 lMarch 1945, the
bodies wore disinterred and identified z;s those of .Lmericans, Lieutenant
Willian H, Forman and Pfc, Robert T, YcDondld (R 358, 374, 382, 303; P-Exs

73, j:». 26, 1034, 105., 1064, pf.ll). The identifications wore made fron the

pay books and othor papers found on the bodies of the victins (R 369; P-Ixs
_ ‘ e

9L=98) , ,

I

Evidence for Defenses The accused took the stand ‘and testified under

oath, He testified that he bacame the chiéf of the Gestapo in Darmstadt

on 2 June 194k, with the rank of SS major (R 1LL8). He admitted that he
issued an order to HELLENBROICH in the middle of Februﬁrj 19L5,, to shoot a
captured imerican ;;‘lyor. He issued the order pursuant to a shooting ordarl
previously received by him from accused TRUMMLER, hi.s‘ superior, Thl; shooting

order was confirmed during a telephone conversation which the accused had with

\

TRUIDMLER immediately prior to the issuance of the order in question to HELLEN-
BROICH (R 1LL9, 1L450). He also admitted that on 2l March 1945 he gave

HELLENBROICH an order to shoot two captured ..uerican flyers who werc then in

the Gestapo headquarters in Bensheim (R 1L45L, 1L455). He later received a

report that the mission had been accomplished and that the flyers were buried
in the gardens He further testified that failure upon his part to carry out
these orders would have moant death (R 1L56).

. /

Sufficiency of Evidences There is considerable evidence as to accused

GIRKE's menbership in the S8 and Gestapo and as to his being implicated in
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incidonts mumbers 6 and 10. No Bupet.'ior was prdsen‘b roquiring the aceused to .

|
-

issue tho wdors. . They ware mrily #md :I.n ocm!oriaity with genarnl :l.natruc- .."'«" 7
tions of a superior stationed at a distant Dol Thus, the Court m:lght. nLn i

V..o .
1

have concluded that the accused's deli\'a‘t.o co-operata with and pleaso '
suporiors was atrongar than other considamtiona; that ho did noi act mﬁar
immediate ooupulaio?, and that with rogard to au;\erior ordors ha failed to

VI, poﬂb. A .‘ 'y ; e

i ' 1 y

The findings of gu\ilty are 1\ilz;x'ran't.tad by tha ;vif:lanco‘. The sentence is

. not excossives ‘ $5 Sy sy

re

Potitionss .« Potition for Review was filed by Licutonant Colonel William

: chn, Chiof Dafonaelcounsel, 24 March 19h7. Potitions for Glomnoy wore

filed by luzi Girke, wife of accused, 2l lhrch 1947; the accused, 23 ipril
1947, and 2 July 1947; and Rudi Gabelmann, fleinrich Gabelmann and lartha
. %)

Gelbrich, 23, 24 and 29 July 1947,
Recomaendations That tho findings and sentence be approved.

20, HEINZ 'HELLENBROICH

~ Nationalitys
hgos 31
Civilian Status: Lawyer; Criminal Police (Crimina 1‘
Commissar) 15 April 1932 to Januiry
1935; Gestapo (SS Major) January
1935 to ilay 1945; ussistant Commander

of the Gestapo headquarters, Dgnshoim,
Gernany :

. Party Status:‘ Nazi party, 1 lMay 1933 to lay 1945
‘ m.litary-st.atusz SS Major
- Pleas G . cﬁargos i, 2, 6 ana 10
Findingss - G Charges 1, 2, '6 and 10
Sentences ' Death by hanging
~ Bvidence for Proaacutiom icoused HELLENBROICH was a nobar of the Ba

(R 239, 336, 1232, 1360, 22635 P=Ex 51) and a member of the Gestapo (R 239,
336, 1360; P-Ex 51), Hc s sccond in ‘command in the Gestapo headquartens
in Bensheim, Germany, 2nd a principal assisltant to thé chief of that i

' \

. - - ’ . ‘ :
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headquarters, accused GIRKE (R 326). Following 1943, various arders were
issucd by higher party and pelice authorities directing various types of
illegal troatnent of captured flyers, By virtue of theso orders a plan was |

croated to vi.olat.o the Geneva Convention relating to the t-roatmntlof brisonefa
of war (R 104; P-Ex. 30, pl. 5)e ‘On two occasions the accused ordered accused
 STATTMINN and RIAF, Gestapo agents under his command, to shoot captured /me
.orican flyors, '
on 15 Fobruary 1945, tho accusod ordorodl STATTILNN and RAAF to kill an
Anorican fllyer then in the Gestapo headquarters in Benshein, inclzipent' nuriber 6,
This was in.conformity with a specific order he had roceived fron accused

GIRKE Lfter the flyer was killed, STATTILNN and R.J.F reported the exoout.itm

g T~

of the o;;-der to the accused, The accused orderdd the body to be buried, It

- . el s AN gl TS
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was buried in the cemotery in Bensheim (R 37L, 380; P-Exs 1034, PPe 2, 3,
| B )

:J.Ohk). ) by
On 24 lJaroh 1945, in conformity with orders received from accused GI. tKE,

. » = >

£ "
.| . ’;'. = e | . St =
S S e

the accused ordered accused STATTMANN and RALF to kild two american prisoners

R, A LT

R

of war'who were then in the Gesfapo headquartors in Bensheim. incident number

> 1o, In conforqity-witn tho order, STATTMANY and RALF took both prisonors of
war to the garden in the rear of the Oestapo'buildinp and shot t.hem. The
victins wore buried in the garden (R 358, 37L, 3062, 383; P-Exs 73, p. 23,
1034) p. L, 10Sh, 106k, ppe 1, 2)s

Evidence for Defenses The accused took the stand and testified under ;s

oath, He testified that on abotit 15 February 1945 an .merican flyor was

delivored to the Gestapo headquarters in Bensheim by the police from the

4

Worns arcas A report was receivad to the effect that the prisoner was a

torrér f]yor who Had dtrafed civilians (R 1365, 1366)., Papers found on the
fl'er's porson indicated his name to be Hormann (R 1368). The accused then
reported the mtter to accused GIRKE, who ordered the flyer to ba shot in
acoorc:lance with existing orders, The order was to be!carried out by accused
STATTI4NN and RAWF in the vicinity of the woods near Bensheim, This accused
80 directed the two ren, Soretine later they reported to him the accomplishe

mont of the mission (R 1369, 1370).
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During th; evening of 2L March 1945, two flyers werc delivered to the
Gaestapo headquarters in Bensheim, while the office was in the ;rocosa of
moving (R 1372)s an interrogqtion.report prepared by the unit which had
'delivered the flyers indicated that they were #orror flyers who had strafod
civilians (R 137&) The report alao contniqod an enJoraemont by a major
roqueating that existing orders be cirried out (R 1375). The accused roported L
the mattor to GIRKE, who ordored that the flyers bo ahot. Tho ageusad then
ordered STATTILANN and RALF to shoot the flyers in accordance with GIRKE's
o}dors. He also informed the flyera that thoy ﬁare to be shot (R 1376, 1377).
STATTILNN and RiaF left with the flyers. They later roported to him fhat the |
order had been cxecuted (R 1370, 1379). Ho.%enicd any fuilt.under chargocil, 6
and 10 (R1386, 1118} but a mitted that he was a member of the Géstapo (R 1418),

Sufriciengy of Evidences There is conslderable ovidence as to accused

HELLENBROICH's membership in the 85 and G?stapo and as to nis being implicated
in incidents numbers 6 and 10, The accused relayed orders to those who were
Tto perfofm illegal killings in accordance with the dirgctions of a superior
3 of virtually the saue rank who it appcars was broaent. Under all the circume
stances, including the evidenco as to his rank and positions held in vital
Nazi organizations, the Coﬁrt might well have couciwled that his desire ta
co~operato with and please superiors in thosc organizations was stronger than
othor considerations; that he did not act unwillingly or under the imhmediate
compulsion of superior chers; and that with repgard to superior ordors. the
aseused failed tin ~ecct the burden of proof roqﬁir?d by pertinent authorities
discussed in Section VI, post,
The findings of guilty are wvarranted by the evidence, The sentence is
not excassive.
 Petitions: .4 Petition for Roview was filed by Licutenant Colonel i/illiam
Berman, Chief Dofense Counsel, 2l larch 1947. Petitions for Clemency were .,
filed by Klare Hellenbroich, wife of accused, 22 ..pril 19h7; Josef Hellenbroich,

his father, 10 lMay 1947; and accused Fritz Girke; 2 July 1947.

Recommendation: That the findings and sentonce be approved,
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2l, KARL FRANZ STATTMANN

Nationality:

Age:

Civilian Status: Denta’. assistant; Security Service ,
(Technical sergeant) February 1940
to May 1945; Gestapo (criminal
assistant) 1 February 1945 to lay 1915;
Gestipo, criminal assistant in Gestape
headquarters, Bensheim, Germany i

Party Statuss Nazi party, 1 iy 1938 to iy 19&5

Military Status: Allgemeine SS (staff sergeant) 17 Sept-
ember 1939 to February 1940; Sh, April
1737 to September 1937 and 1 iy 1938 to
February 1945; $S Technical Sergeant

Pleas - NG Charges 1, 2, 6 and:10

Findings: G Charges 1, 2, 6 and 10

Sentence; Death by hangingl

Evidence for Prosecution: Accused STATT.NN was a member of the S8

(R 1230; P-Ef Sé); a member of the SD (R 239, 1232; P-Ex 52); and a mehmber of
the Gestape (R 239, 326, 327, 337, 1230, 1235; P-Exs 52, 67, pp. 3, 4). On
about 15 Februury 1945, the accused, together with accused RALE, received an
order from accused HELLENBROICH to kill a captured American flyer who was.then
., in Gestapo heidquarters in Bensheim, incident number 4, The 1qcused and RAAF
wwlked‘;he flyer to the woods outside the village, wher: this iccused shot him
to death, The victim éas buried in the cemetery in.Bensheim (R 358, 37k, 38v5
P-Ixs 73, pp» 10, 12, 1034, pp. 2, 3, 104k)s On 24 “firch 1945, the accused
and RALF received an order from accused HELLENBROICH to kili two captured
imerican prisoners of war who were then in the Gesfnpo headjuarters in Bensheim,
incident number 10, Tha‘Prisonars £ war were to be killed in the garden

in the rear of the headjuirters (R 382, 383; P-Exs 1054, 1064, pp. 15.2)s

They took the two prisoners of war to the gmrdan and shot them (R 558, 374,
382, 383; P-Exs 73, pp. 18-21, 103i, pp. 3, L, 1054, 1064, p. 1): They re-
pérted the execution of the order to HELLENBROICH, who orderad_the bodies‘
buried, .STATTHaNN and R4LF thereupon buried the bodies in the garden (R 383;

P-Ix l%ﬁ, Pp. 1, 2).
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Evidence for Defense: The accused took the stand and testified under

oath, He testified that on ibout 15 Februiry 1945, a flyer was delivered to
the Gestapo heidguarters by the rural police from the Worms area (R 1239).

The rural police also transmitted a report thit the flyer was a terror flyer
(R 2243). The accused was ordered to report to accused HELLENBROICH, who

told him that accused GIRKE had directed that the 1ccused'shoot the flyef in .
the woods in the hiciniﬁy of Bensheim (R 124, 1245). The accused was ordered
to take accused RLAF along (R 1245), The accused and RALF walked the flyer

to the forest where'the accused shot him, RAAF also fired 1 mercy shot at
the flyer (R 12h7), They returned to Bensheim and reported the execution

of the order to HELLENBROICH and G{RKE (R 1247, 1248)," Shortly thereaftert
the accused made 3 written report to the effect thit the élyer was killed in
accordance with ‘orders, The vicﬁim was identified as Captain Ray Hermann

(R 1248). _Duﬁing the evening of 24 March I?&;, the accused was again ordered
to report to HELLENBROICH. HELLENBROICH told him that GIRKE had ordered

_ that the accused kill 1 captured american flver then in Gestpo headqu;r;efs, (
in the back yard (R 1249, 1250), The 2ccused took the flysr out to the

garden and shot him (R 125?). Thereupon, he returned to th2 building and
reported the execution of the order to HELLENBROICIH (R 1251), accused RAAF
then came in ind reported that he had also shot a flyz. . RALAF was then ordered
to bury the bodies in the garden (R 1251, 1259). The accused denied any

guilt under charge 1 but admitted knowledge of some of the ordérs regarding
the treatment of flyers\which he had received at official meetings (i 1255,
1256). '

Sufficiency of Evidence: There i§ considerable evidence as to accused

STATTLiNN's membership in the §S, SD and Gestapo and 18 to his being im-
plicated in incidents numbers 6 and 10, In view of the place whare incident
number 10 occurred, i.c., the close praximity nf tﬁe suparior, the question
of whetﬁer mitigating factorslnra in favor of the accused is not free from
 difficulties, However, concerning iscident number 6, the order required

that the killing take place at 1 distint point with no supariors present.
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Under all these oircumstances, including the responsible positions held
by him in vital Nazi organizations, the Court might well have oconcluded with
regard to the accused's state of mind in conneotion with inoidemt. number 6
that the aocuaed'q desire to co-operate with and please su;eriors in th.se
organizations was stronger than other considerations; that he did not aot

: unwillin%ly or under the immediate compulsion of superior orders; an& that
with regard to suherior orders the accused failed to meet the burden of proof
rgquired by.pertinaﬁt authorities disoussed in Seotion VI, post,

/ Ao
The findings of guilty are warranted by the evidence, The sentensce is

not eioessive.

Petitions: A Petition for Review was filed by Lieutenant Colonel Williar
Berman, Chief Defense Counsel, 24 March 1947, Petitions for Clemenoy were |
;11ed by Wilfriede Stattmann, wife of acoused, 25 March 1947; Gustav Hartwig,.
27 April 1947; Heinrich Werner and tro other persons, 12 tlay 1947; Willy

Krause, 22 April 1947; Heinz Neuberg, 17 April 1947; Wernor'Bunte, 14 April
8 i

1947; Imgrrt Bunte, 17 April 1947; Heinrioh Tatte, 9 April 1947; and accused

Fritz Girke, 2 July 1947,

Recommendation: That the findings and sentence be approved.

22, UMICHAEL RAAF :

Nationality: German

Ages 41

Civilian Status: Member of police force; Proteotive
Police (staff sergeant) 1 September
/11924 to 1 January 19413 Gestapo
(criminal secretary) 1 January 1941 to
Kay 1945; oriminal segretary in Gestapo
headquarters, Bensheim, Germany

Party Status; Nazi party,s9l May 1940 to May 1945

Military Status: SS Master Sergoant

Plea: NG Charges 1, 2, 6 and 10

Findingg: G Charges 1, 2, 6 and 10

Sentenoce: Death by hanging

Evidence for Proseoution: aAocused RAAF was a member of the 83 (R 1245)
and a member of the Gestapo (R 239, 324, 327, 337, 1293; P-Exs 53, 67, pp. 3,4
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The evidence introduced against the accused is the same in all pertiwént -
respects as that introduced against accused STATTM\NN. Reference is hereby

/
made to the evidence for the prosecution introduced against the latter ac 1sed.

Evidence for Defeonses The accused took the stand and tes#iified under

oath, He testified that on about 15 February 1945, a captured enemy flyer
was in Gestapo headquarters in Bensheim, Germany (R 1302), While he was in
his offico, the accused ST!.TTM:’.NN. came in and tc:ld him that accused GIRKE
had ordered the accused along on an execution, The accusod and STATTM.NN
walked the flyer outside of the town in the direction of the woods (R 1303).
In the woods, STATTMANN fired one shot at the flyor. Inasmuch as the victim
still showed signs of life, the accused also fired a shot at him (R 1304).
Thoy rot_urr{ed to the officd and report.éd the cxecution of the order to
HELLENBROICH, On HRLLENBROICH's order, the accused arrangod forltﬁo ‘burial
of the body in the cemetery irr Bensheim (R 1305). | ° |
During the evening of 2l March 1945, the accused and ST;;‘I‘TWJIN were ordered
to report to HELLENBROICH. in the guard room. Two captured .merican rl&nrs
were there, HELLENBROICH told the flyers that they were to be shot and then
gave the accused and -.STaT'I‘lL’sHN an order to'shoot thom in the garden next %o
the building (-R 1307). He and STATTMANN each took a flver and went in the

direction of the gardon whero they killed them (R 130(), ' They then reported
the accomplishmont of the mission to HELLENBROICH, whe ordercd the accused to

/
bury the bodi¢gs. He holped bury them in the garden (R 150%,, 1310, 131}, 1315).

He denied his guilt under charge‘l (R 1312),
]

Sufficicncy of Evidences There is considerable evidence as to accusad

RALF's membership in the SS and Gestapo and as to his being implicated in
incidents numbers 6 and 10, Inviéw of the pl'u;e wheré incident n:mpcr 10
occurred, i.e., the close proximity of thc supcrior, the question 'of whether
thore are mitigating factors in favor of the iccused is not free from diffi-
cu]:ties. However, concerning incident number 6, the order required that the
killing take place at a distant point with no superiors present, Under all

these circumstances, including the responsible positions held by him in vital
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Nazi organizations, the Court might well have concluded with regard to the

accused's state of mind in connection wi th iﬁdident number 6 that the accused's

desire to co-operate with and please superiors in those organizations was \

stronger than other considerations; that he hi& not act unwillingly or under ‘ §t;
the immediate compulsion of superior orders; and that with rogard to superior Bl
orders the accused failed to meet the bur@en of proof‘reqﬁired By peftinant

_ : \
authorities discussed in Section VI, post,

The findings of guilty are warranted by the evidence, Thogsentence is
not cxcessive,
Petitionss: ' Petitions for Review were filad by Lieutenant Celonel Berman,
Chief Defense Counsel and Dry Buerger, German d;fenae counsal, 24 March 1947.
Petitions for Clemency were filed by Hanz Heizmann, 21 March 1947; Johanncs
Jorg, 1 hpril 1947; Josef Hammele and 32 other persons, 27 Harch\19h7; Annr-
- KirchGach, March 1947; and éccgsed Firtz Girke, 2 July 1947.

/

1]
Recommendation: That the findings and scntence be approved, ol

VI. QUESTIONS OF LAiW:

-

1, Jurisdictions The Military Government Court which heard this gase

was prOpaﬁly constituted and had jurisdiction of the accused and the offenses,
Near the outset of tQa trial the defense moved to qu=zin “he charges and e
particulars on the gfounds that certain of the nccused were members of the

_Gorman armed }orces 1t the time of the alleged offenggs, that .certain accused
were not only members of the German armed forces at the time of the aliagéd
offenses but also at the time they were captured, and that ono was a-member
of the German armed forces not only at the time of the alleged offenses and

' his capture but alsé at tho.outaat of the trial (R 30), It was argued in

support of the motion that by virtue of tho Geneva Convention, apparently the

defenso relied upon Article 63, the Court did not have jurisdiction of cortwinl
of the nccused, that a trial of them by the Court under the prescribed pro-
cedure for lilitary Government Courts would be illegal, and that they were

- ontitled to be tried by the same courts and under the same procedure as in the

case of members of the 1rmed forces of the'capturing power (R 30, 31), This
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question arose in United States v, Altfuldisch, et al,, Februaiy 1947, known

as the Mauthausen Concentration Camp case. The question was thoroughly dis-
cussed therein and was resolved in favor of the jurisdiction of the Court and
roliance was placed upon the Yamashita case, 66 Supreme Court Reportor 340,

At page 350 the Court was ‘considering hreicle 63 of the Geneva Conventisn whish
providess o’ .

: "Sentence may be pronounced against a prisoncr of war
only by the same courts and according to the same
procedure as in the case of. persons belonging to
the armed forces of the dotaining pcwé

In disposing of tho comtention that the accused war criminal could not be
tried before a Military Commission, the Supreme Court of the United States

said:

"But wé think examination of irticle 63 in its setting
in the Convention plainly shows that it rcfors to sentence
'pronounced against a prisoner of war! for an offense
committed while a prisoner of war, and not for a vio-
lation of the law of war committed while a combatante"

The motion to quash was properly overruled,

/
It is well settled by accepted international law that members of an
. P

enemy armed force, or civilian nationals of =n enomy country, may be punished
by proporly constituted courts established h} the occug;ing pover for crimes
against the laws and usages of war committed prior tv vhc cessation  of
hostilitie's. (See War Department Basic Field Manual 27-10, "Rules' of Land
wﬁrf;re“, paragraph 345,1 set forth in Change 1, 15 Novembor léhh, and para-
graphs 346 and 347, as the latter ig amended by said Change 1; In re
Yamashita, supra; United States ve Wicgand, November 1945, and authocri.tios
cited thorein, which case is digested in Section 122, "Manualsfor Trial of
War Crimes and Related Cases", 15 July 1946; and the Mauthausen Concentration
|

Camp case, supra),

2, liembership in Criminal Ogggnizationéz The accused STROOP, SOM/ANN,

TRUMMLER, FUHR, HOHLER, BEST, GOSS, MICHELY, L.SS.K, GIRKE, HELLENBROICH,
STATTMLNN, and RALF were found guilty under charge 2 of membership in criminal

organizations, i,e,, the Gestapo, the SD, or thas SS, Airticle 9 of the

Chartor annexed to the London agreement of 8 .upust 1945, Concerning Prosecution

6L




and Punishment of Major War Criminals of the Buropean Axis, provided that at

the trial of any individual member of aﬁy group or argani?aiion the Inter-
! natiqnél Hilitary Tribunqllmay declare (in connection with any act of which
the individual may be conviéted) that the group or organization of which the
individual was a member was 2 criminal organization, Article 10 of the Charper
pfavides that the declaration of criminality 2gainst an accused organization J
is final and cannot be challenged in any subsaque;t criginaigbroceeding against .
a member of the organization in national, military or occupation courts, In
\ viéw of these provisions of the Charter, Law Number 10 of the Control Council -
of Germany, 20 December 1945, specifically recognized as a crime membership
Jiin categories of a criminal group or organization declared criminal by’the
Int;rnational Military Tribunal", 4mong others, the Tribunal found the
Die Geheime Staatspolizei (commonly l;rlom as the Gestapo), Der Sicherheits-
dienst des Reichsfuhrer 8S (commonly known as the SD), and Die Schutzstafiesln
der Nationalsozialistischen Deutschen Arbeiterpartei (commonly known'aé\the
88) to be criminal organizations, With ;egqrd to the three organizations, the
Tribunal iﬂcludod all local Gestapo officials, all local SD representatives
and qgents, and all persons whd had been officially accepted as members of the
88 including members of the Lllgemeine SS, meﬁbars 0° the Waffen SS, mnmSors of
the 8S Totenkopf Verbande, and members of any of the di:fcrent police force& > :
who were membors of the SS, when it appeirs thit they became or remained
members of any of tho three organizations with knowledge that they were being
used for the commission of war oriéea, or who were personally implicated as
ﬁemperp of those organizations in copmission‘of such crimes, wthin the groups
deglared to bé criminal, |

3. Motions:; aifter the prosecution had rested, the defense made scveral
motions, the first being a motion on behalf of all of the ;céhsed to Quaéh
charge 1 and the particulars thereunder on the ground that it when read to-
gether with the particulars thereunder, disclosed more than one offense, i.e.,
conspiracy, assault, murder, etc., (R 635), This motion was properly over- '
ruled (R 647)., The particulars under the charge are, in all pertinent respects,

.1ika the common desipgns allagéd in United States v, Weiss, et al., March 1946,
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) ) known as the naohau'Conoantration Camp caaa‘;nd the Mauthausen Concentration |
Camp case, supra, The prosecutian“;ptly'pointad dut that only one offensr
is alleged which when reduced to its simplest terms is that the accused engaged ;?gg
in a common,des;gn to commit violations of the laws of war, It is true that
formal words precede the vital ones stating the offense, which are descriptive
for the Court and the accused as to roles the accused are alféged to have
taken. Also formal words follow those stating the offense, which merely |, - hf}
describe acts done pursuant to the common des:_lgn.. J T _ ;%
The next motion by the defense sought findi;ga of not guilty\aq to all
Ithe accuséd under charge 1 and the particulars thereunder for the feaaon that \: ;
the prosecution "has Tailad 5" ssbatn, 1ts burden of proving the guilt of the 5
accused beyond a reasonable doubt” (R 647). The evidence theretofore adduced
by the~pros§cu£ion, which linked the accused with a series of similar criminal
acts, had established a prima facie case of concerted action as to those acts
and that the incidents were but parts of a common whole, (See Wharton's
Criminal Law, Volume II, page 193%9.) It is not error fc;r a war crimes tribunal
to overrule a motion for a finding of not guiity made at &he clo;e of the case
for the prosecution if it bel}eved there is sufficient evidence to support
the charge and that the accused should be requi;od to answer it (Section
5-327.2, Titlé 5, "Legal and Penal Administration®, of “Iilitary Government
Reguiations", publisheq by Headquarters, US Forces, European Theater, jo-uov-
ember 1945 and Section 501, page L4O09, "Manual for Trial of War Crimes and
ﬁalated Cases) 15 July 1946). A similar practice is followed in Courts-
Hartials (Paragraph 71, d.; "Manual for Courts-ilartial, U.S. Army", 20 April \ .

. 1943)e The motion was properly overruled (R £55),

The third motion by the defense following the close of the prosecution's
" case sought findings of not guilty on behalf of accused EICHEL, KIWITT,
ALBRECHT, MOLLER, GOEHRENDT, NAHRGANG, HAMMAN, FAY, BRANNER, and HOHLER as to

charge 2 and the particulars thercunder on the ground that the prosecution had
failed to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that they or any of them 'was a

r ; nmember of any of the organizations for the period in question as stated in the
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partioulars as to charge 2", The motion was auaﬁained as to all but accused
]

BRAWER and HOHLIR (R €65), A prima facie caso having been established as to
those two, che motion was propariy“ﬁonied as to them,

The fourth motion by the defense sought (R 655);

2, To strike certain exhibits from the record on the ground that the

.

/ ' s
prosecution nad failed tL sustain its burden of proof that the accused or any of .

them had "oonspired in any way wilfully and deliberately with any of the persons’
P y way y
I

named in any of the exhibits",

by, To strike from the record all references to the Wehrwolf on the
ground that the proaooufion had failed to sustuin its burden of pﬁoof that the
orgnnd}atio; was aotuglly formed or that it éartioipated in any var orime,

o« Io strike from the rccord ell references and testimony with res-
peot to Stoll on the ground tht the prosecution had fuilad to sustain its
vurden of proof to connect any of the accusod with Stoll, I

d, To strike a number of speaified_exhibite fror. ‘the record on the
ground tnat the prosecution had not sustained its burden of oranf ns, to the oon-

fassioua, 1.c,., that they were volﬁntnry and obtained without duress,

In final analyais,-tha defense sought to strike the evidence covered by the

first, second, and third portione of the motion on the pround that it was too
remote, not directly related to the charges apeainst the uscused, and in faot
involved orimes by individuals no; n&med. While this is not a consgirnoy% in
‘Anglo-Amerioan practive concerning a true oonspiracy, the evidence ;g perﬁitted
to take wide range and all fasts or oiroumatanopa whioh taken together show

a ocommon plan or purpose are admissible (ﬁndarnill's'Criminal Evidence, Fourth
Editinn, pages 1406-1429), In any event it is sufi.oient enswer that
tribunals trying violations of the laws of war may admit eny evidence wnich
they dedm to have érobutivo valdg. ise., nelﬁfui in arriving at a ‘true finding
N (;n re Yamashita, supra, and Section 270, ™ianual for rriulluf flar Crimes

and Reluted Cusea“, 15 July 1946), It may have been the position of defense

counsel that the evidence should have beon stricken because it involved

orimes by persons not identified in the ohargess The oommon desims
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alleged in the Dachau and iMauthausen Concentration Camp oases, supra,rdtd
not identify by name or oclass all of the other numerous individuals who
obviously partioipated in those huge mass atrooity operations, However, by
the oharges in those cases and in this one, the acoused were fully apprised
of the nature, oharaoter, and purpoga of the common designs and the'roaulﬂn.
effeoted in pursuance thereof, as well as " the namés of some of the 1nd1viq-

L}

uals with whom they were alleged to have soted in, c.noert,

, As to the fourth portion of the motion, there is some authority in
Amerioan oriﬁinal law to the effeot that confessions, are praaumod to be vol=-
untary and are admisa;bla without foundation evidence in the absenoa of
reason to suspect the use of violenoe, threats, torture, eta, (Sae 20 Ameri-
can Jurisprudence, Evidences Seotion 536). The regulations in connection
with the' trial of war crimes oa;en by Military Government Courts in this
Theater have never required such roundatioﬁ evidence, In this oconneotion it
is of interest to note that Regulation § d (7) of the SCAP Regulatién;!
supplemented by Rules of Prooedufe and OQutline of Prooedure for Trial of
Aocused War G;iminalc, issued by Headquarters, United States Eiéhth Army,

6 February 1946, and amended by a letter of General ilachArthur, 27 December
1946, provides that all confessions or statements of accused shall be ade
missible in ovidence without any showing that they were ‘oluntarily mada,land,
further, that, if it is shown that they were proourod b§ means whioch the oom=
mission believes to haTalbeen of suoh eharaoter that the aoccuscd may have
been caused to make n false statement, the oommiéaio? may striko out or dise

regard any portion thereof as was so proocured, While prqbably.not binding

on‘tho Court in the trial of these cases, the "iManual for Trial of War Crimes
and Rélated_Caaoa", 15 July 1946, as amended 1 Febru;;y 1947, provides by
subparagraph ¢ (4), Section 270, fhat war crimes tribunals will not require
foundﬁtiun evidence to establish that sworn statements offered in evidence
were volunthrily proocuréd, but on the other hand will presume subject to be re-
butted by competent evidence that the sworn statements were voluntarily made,
The Court did not err in overruling'fﬁo fourth motion in its entirety and
no injustioe reau}ted to the accused (R 691), . '
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The fifth motion made by the defense at the end of th> prosecutiont's
case was 1 motion on behalf >f certain accused for findings of not miltf
under charres 3 5 10, inclusivd and also for findinss of not gutltra- st
of illeral killinrs as to certain accused under any of the 10 charros (R 692).

It was proporly -worrulg!:l (R 716),

\ :
be  Superior Orders: A4s indicated in Scetion V, supra, accused TRUICILIR,

TUHR, NOHLER, 'OLLER, BEST, GOSS, E-EGHELY, GIRKE, IIELLEIIBROICH, STATT: 4NN,
and RAAF sourht to justify their actions bj affering avidence %o show they

were acting in compliance with superior oriers, Compliance ¥ith suparior

~orders does not constit/.ut.e a dafense to the charw=e of havin~s committod a

war erine (Tx_-inl of Henry VWirz, LOth b’Jn'fTGES, 2nd Sess,, House of Represent-
atives, Ex, Doc, No. 23, pare 812; Vol, II, Sixth Edition, Oppenheim, "Intor—
national Law", pararraph 253, pass 453; Llandovery Cistls Casa, 16 American
Journal of Intarnat.iomi I.:m:,l page 708; United States v, Dominikus Thomag,
Docomber 1945; .United States v, 4Alfons Klein, et al., (Hadayar lurder Factory
Casc), Fetnuady 1946; and French Republic v, .1ﬂnor, ot al., Court of Appeals,
July 19}.;6). This.rale is follpwed in An~lo-imorican Jurisprudence (!fitchell
v. Haraony, 13 HJN. 115, and ™; "“anual for Courts-liartial, U,S. Lrmyt, 1928,
pararpaph 148), : )

,Compliance with superior orders may, under gertain cireunstancas, be
considered in mitiration of punishment, Howaver, an accused Who secks ro-
lief on such rrounds assumes thz burden :f :stablishine (a) that ho roceived

W order from a superior directine that hie cormit the weon~ful acf;, (b) that

e did rndt know or, as a reasonably prudont pers on, would not have nrm that

he act which he was directed ¢5 perfora‘'was illeral or emtrary to universally
nccop'tod standards of human cmrluqt, andl (e) that ho actzd, at least to soio
extont, under inmediate compulsiosn. Havin:t satisfactorily established thasc
oloment;;\t!w amount to which his sentonf:o should be mitir:ted depends upon
the charactor_.md extent of the imnediate compuisi.mn under which he acted,

(82e London Arroecment of 8 aurust 1945, Coneernine Prosszeutisn anb Punish-

meny of ajor Jar Criminids > the Burincan axisy FIf 27-10, ‘/ar Departnent,

UsS. Army, "Rules »f Land ‘larfare®, parasraph 345.1, Chanre 1, 15 November

. 19Lk; Opponheim, "Internatisnal Law' » supra, and the Lland wory Castle Case

CA-v e
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citod therein; Mfanual £or Courts-iartialn, supra; "Report to the Prasilent of

UInited States", 7 June 1945, by ir. Justioe‘ Jac«son, U.S. Chief Counsel for .t.ho
Prosecution of Axis Criminality; Ixtract from G.ﬁobbola' The Air Terror of

Our Enomiss", fourdd in footnote, pase 53, Mfilitary Occupation an! the Rule of

the Law", by Ernst Fraenkely and opinions of the Daputy Theator Judso Af}vicate

for “ar Crimes in United States v, Bury, et al,, Scptembor 1945, United St “as

v. Dominiius Thomas, supra, an? United States v, Beck, et al., December 1946),

5. Special Finlinzs; In addition to the finiin-s respsctinsioach accusol,

the Court ma iz spacial fir!?in"r_s of fact regardinc< the existence in tho Third
German Reich, on and aftor 13 ilarch 1940, of cortain memoranis, ‘irectives,
orders, <ecrees, an? proparanda concor;ninf: the treatment by the German armed
forces, police, anl civilian population and the eivilian population of esuntries
oEcu1>ie<1 by Germany <urins “Torl! War II of 4Allie! ¢yrmniss » saboteurs, pam-
ghutists, -'md'capturerl flyers l(.'{ 2595~2637)s The finiines are amply supported
by docunents unl avi’ence alluce? in the tri:l, Tt couls be eontended that
the Court, in makine these fir:;’:i/nﬂs,lexcga -es the allematishs in the charres,
and particulars anl thit, theref ire ’ thoJ findin<s are improper. Howevar, there
is ample authority for adlitismal finlinms by nilitary courts (Winthrop's
".:ilitary Law anl! Precelsnts", Second Zdition, Reprin’ j920, at pare 385, and
the iauthausen Coneentration Camp case, supra). The Gon-t 127 well have
cBhourht thet its finlines would elarify its views as t) the evidence covers !
¢” the fialin~s anl that such elarification woull aid in the trial of later
¢.588 iRvslvire the killinft of gurrenderr_‘d flyaers.

6. Swearia- of Court: The Court overruled a motion by the “efanse o

"t aside the lcath sentences imposad on the rroun? that the members of the
fourt were not sworn (R 2587-2589), uo error was comitted, lembers of
{31itary Government Courts specially appointed fur tho trial of violations of
the laws and usares of war arc not sworn (Seetion 501, pare 402, "anual for
Trial of iar Crines an' Rwlated Cases", 15 Julr 1946).

Te Conduct of Trial: Tho case was well an! thop mrhly tris? and accused

wero all represaented br compatent Ameriean an? German o mnsgel, One aember »f
the Court was a lesally trainal »fficer. Sufficient interoraters were pro-
vided at all times. A full risht of cross-examination wis extenlel throughsut

I
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the trial, All accused were given an opportunity to testify in their own -
behalf and all convicted accused dhoge to.do. $5. Both!the findiuge wnd .sentence
as to cach accused were approved by a two-thirds vote of the membars present.

The trial was conducted with fairness to all accused,

-
1}

VII. CONCLUSIONS: . |

An examination of the entire record of trial fails to disclose any ofror
or omission which resulted in iﬁjustioe to the aoct;aad and discloses that the |
evidence is lerally sui‘fic:l.eﬁt to support the findings of the Cohurt, Aco u-d-l
ingly, it is recomuended that the findinss >f the Court be approved as to 11l
thé. accused and- that the sentences to death by hanzing as tojaccused STROOP,
TRUIDLER, FU4R, HOMLER, EICHEL, KIWITT, GOSS, !ICHELY, GIRKE, HELLENBROICH,
STATTIL.NN and RAAF be approved and ordered executed; that the sentence to
doath by hansine as t:o accused HOLLER be approved, but commted to irprison-
ment for-life and as commuted ordered executed; that the sentences to kqirism-
ment fop fifteon (15) years as %o accused ALBRECHT, HilTL.NN and BEST be ap-
proved and ordered executod; that the sentences to *imprisormontl for five (5)
years as to accused wmg.-‘.ua and FLY be apprved and ordered executed; that’ . |
the sentence to imprisonmnt. for four (h)- vours as to accused SOMANN be approvead
I:ind ordered executed; and that the sentence to imprisormend for three (3)
_yenrs a8 to accused LAiSSAK be approved and ;rderad one;:uted. ;

Leral Forms Nps, 13 and 16 to accomplish these results are attached

herato, should it meet with approval, i

'

A{"Vﬂ_{ A &)ﬂ'(lﬁm@--
. RONALD DADAMIO

and Iltu. Info

Poet Trial Branch

Having examined the record of trial, I conct’ir
this 19th day of September 1947.

0.}/‘( {g? Gu ,,"//’—'

Lieutenant Colonei, JAaGD
Deputy Judge Advocate
for War Crimes
71




MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfiiggung nach Uberpriifung

Order No

(use N5 1?“:0”’], “!‘:O. . \
;-'!--_.I,mn:-; .Y 2

Strafeuche Ny, 12-29%9, 1aw,

Whereas one B .

.umr T“-nr‘ ’V\‘ I fir i il
ation in av™mom At m ke \tll nv\d ¥illire surrendered

was convieted of the oflenee of :
wegen der rm’qn;.."f w strafluren H-m*f-{fm'-,r i g v w o)l sramainas Plan g1 #Mvan, und
 RRNAR MY St vy 7 Skt o SR . hoer-conl Awian

Iiv the W\hht.lr\ ot

*(.eneral

"R eckey
v ﬂ“m ”fh!urqru- G

*()ieren

punain,

and sentenced 1o (0 pigavaant far P4 p&..,...n vaary,
schuldig erkannt und zu £ 0 Cpats, Ty Ry =t

Iy Jlllll‘,fllli‘lll dauted the

durch Urterd row
lati
it

Whereas the ease has now come before me by wav of review and after die cotstleration amd o

[hese Strafsache st mir >ur ."'hn'}ur‘r."ﬁmg vorgelegt earden wnd warch -.ral’f‘.ui‘tr'hfn-fr'.ru Studvinn odes Saeh-

exeverse oF the powers conferred upon me. 1 herehy order

verhultes wund in Ausiibung der nir ihertrogenen [efugnisse verfiige ich:

Tnat toe fiad.n;s end sentcnoe wre apyraved, The Zotranilng Taneral, Plrst
Military sistrics, will eosnfice Wilhelw ALBWEC'T Lr %ur 7r 17+ trison K24 1;
Landsoerg, Germsiy, for w zeriul of fifteon years, = valr = 25 ‘lay 1945,

Dass der Lefunc und das urbteil Leo i .U .. 1., r a2 anilersade: Oerapal;
vor Milithsvezirn ., wire wic fmumitiorasg von n.ifs 3 > 41.crsvertraahere
gelkognis Wr. 4, lardsborg, Jeurzzhlan d, fWr e "auer vor. Mrfzain Jahren, =it
Wirkueeg b Ll sl (U45, veranlussen,

Dated thas
(fegeben am

F o and s o aadd L g "
2 F S YO o bl
rayry "
A« 5% 7, W % :
J } 4P (Signature of Reviewing Authorit
ok ‘I'--: oid . 2 aatiod i-"!i."n'r.-rr'hrlﬂ der nachpricfenden fehorde
oA iAoy, O LAY
*Strike out warids not uppheable tGeneral
*Nuehtxutre ffendes 1t 2u durehstreschen. Comiunder '?M




3 -
" ’ legal Formm Mo 1
v

MILITARY COVERNMENT (Zi.)l'li'l‘
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfiigung nach Uberpriifuny

P 12‘3)00’ eto. Order No,
12«2000, uswe . Ver fiigung Nr.
Georg LEST

membership ¥H drfihial It i £ e €0l /8Y{4 Yartioipation in common
wae convieted of the oflenee of d.li@ to Idll and killing surrendsred primer. of mr
ZugehSrigkeit in verbrecherischen Organisationen und
Teilnahme an einem allgemeinsn Plan su t8ten, und

liv the w Military Court T‘tmg von lrieglgofangm, die sich ergeben hatten
Dachau, Ge

*(,eneral at
— i Dachau, Deutsc
P ~ .Uf'fff'i'r-,frn'r‘fif' { Nilidress of Coure
poos e . i Anselirift des (ierichis)
*()eren

and sentenced to ‘mmt for fifteen years, commencing 8 May 1945
whoidlie oromnt und i T8afselm Jahren Geffngnis verurteilt, mit friung ab € Mai 1945

by Judgment datedthie & March 1947
21 uirs 1947 194 ani

Ill-l"l'
(Dt

Strafsache Nr.

Whereas one

wegen der _ft.iquﬂrff” stra fharen Handlung

dicreh Urterl vom

Whereas the ease has now come hefore me by way of review and after due consuleration and in

[Viese Strafsache ist miv zur f‘*:";n‘pn'i‘fnng vorgelegt worden und noach entsprechendem Studium des Such-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, | II‘I‘I‘I‘lr'\' order:
verhaltes und in Ausiibuny der mir dbertragenen Befugniase verfiige ich:

That the findings and sentence are approved, The Oommanding General, First
Military Distriot, wdll oonfine Georg HEST in War Criminal Prison No. 1,
Landsberg, Germany, for a period of fifteen ysars, commsncing 8 May 1945.

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestdtigt werden. Der Kosmandierends General,
vom Militlrbemirk I, wird die Inhaftierung von Georg EEST im Kriegsverbrecher-
gefingnis Nr. 1, Landsberg, Deutschland, fir die Dauer von finfsehn Jahren, mit

" Wirkung ab 8 Mai 1945, veranlassen.

Dated this
(fegeben am

}4 ::L'..;T‘I"l"". TRUE CuUrYs /s/ LUCIUS D. CLAY

: nva/\d v, L{j AL 2 1L, 1 > ¥ (Signature of Reviewing Authority)

HuwAllD F. H2i5K2 ; < r!!ut«acbﬂc'{? der nachpriifenden Behirde)
';'Jl')ﬁﬁl aGD ) w 1U\r.i D. !

*Strike out words not wpplicable. wif c_mqm"
*Nochtawdrefendes i3t 1u durchatreschen. s {
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CAJGIL 18 ‘ Q Legal Form No 13

MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfigung nach Oberpriifung

(ase No, 12-2000, eto. Order No,
Strafsache Ny, 12,2000, uswe Ver fiigung Nr.

Whereas one Hane KICERL
Accused)

participa‘thgﬁ "111 conmmb ‘6’3&'&'5 Mg ﬁ“ﬁ"“‘é{ﬁ"& killing surrendered

was convicted of the offence of prisoners of war
wegen der folgenden strafbaren Handlung Teilnahme an einem allgemeinen Plan zu tBten, und

s T8t g von Krfegsgefangenen, die sich ergeben hatten
by the *JuoswEdtess\ilitary Court
[ *Ceneral at Dachau, Ge meny

" [ mrgteckas in Dachau, Deutachland
pom :h{)’”rm ."l'“f(f!’gerl'(‘hfe ;,[,[,:;l;::;:.d:: E?;::L”
and sentenced to death by hanging
schuldig erkannt und 2u Tod durch den Strang verurteilt

by Judgment dated the 21 March 1947

durch Urteil pom 21 Mrz 1947 and
(da
(“d!::l'l}'l}

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in
Diese Strafsache ist mir zur (7bcrprﬂfung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, I hereby order:
verhaltes und in Awsitbung der mir dbertragenen Befugnisse ver filge ich:

That the findings and sentence are approved. The Commanding General, M ret
Military District, will carry the sentence into exscution at Wayr Criminel Prisan
Noe 1, Iandsberg, Germmy, at a time to be determined by him,

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestRtigt werden, Dor Kommndferends Gane
vam MilitR®rbezirk I, wird die Vollstreciamg des Urteils im mﬂnmzﬁhn;h
Nrs 1, landsberg, Deutschland, zu einer von im festgesetaten Zeit, veranlassen,

Dated this
Gegeben am

e """"Z:""JA{.'M:,) .
(s 'Mlm i ks




B :
MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfiigung nach Oberpriifuny

{ ‘gsee No lxi-Z:)OO, : Oredirr N

Stra feavhe Nr. 1.=2 .'x.D, | Jirn \Nr,

W hereas one l.iormll‘d *-J':I
IName of Aeensed Nitwne efes ¥ Vnaipe
rtieipation in !4l 1. o surr:idored
/ lei] : un der i8tun 1..08 ari
lung Seily he wn dor i8tun; 8
or cben latw

“was convieted of the oflence of

regen der _.‘m’gur!un gtraflaren”
*FI000DYX

bv the w\lll:lil-‘- I
*(eneral ; Duchau, wer.any
Hthngaxhou Duchau, Veutschliad
afestbeneme Militargerichte 12 \r W8
*(Jheren

and sentenced v inprisonment for five jouars, com encing < day - .’;;4

schuldig erkann! und 2u finf Jahren Geffngnis v rurto ilt, alt wir wy, ol

by .|'l11l;_'rl|r'n! dated the 21 li-rch 1947

durel Urteid vomn 2] lLiftrz 1947

.-lllr
{ Datrmi
\‘.'lu'u':lu lh#' rase Ilu.- OW  Corme III'I‘III"!' e !l\ Wl rrl‘ l"'\i-‘\\ .'illll -’IT.I"I' I|I1|' (MR |.i|-r-||||1r| 'lllll i
. . . . 4 s g0 y . % i
[iese Strafzache st mir zur i ;J(r'!}r"(_“-‘llg l'-‘“‘i}'ﬂ(r;f H'Hl'f!f'lf und nnch evutsprechendem Stw i des Narl
exercise of the powers conferred upon me, I hereby order:

verhaltes wund in Ausiibung der mir ibertragenen Befugnisse ver fige ich:

Th t the findings und sentence are approved, The Caunandlng Gensral, Firad
Lilltary District, will confine Bernexrd FAY in ficr Qri:r.i.:.a.l Prison No. 1, Luxisber:,
Germeny, for o period of five years, commencing 22 ay 145

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestlitigt werden, Uer Km::u:.utcre::q:: Generel,
vom Militérbezirk I, wird die Inhaftiorung von Bornard FAY im Krlejasverizocier=
geflingnis Nr, 1, Lendsberg, Deutschlanl, fir dio Jaue: von f8nf Jahron, mit wiriang
eb 22 Mai 1945, veranlassen, .

Dated this
(Tegeben am
A CERTIFIED TRUE CCPY: Iy . E .
f‘ /8/ LUSIUS J. CLAY
w/’%u’! d d/ i 2 W o ] {S\gnnmbro of Reviewing Authority )
dsis VO R TS ' { Unterschrift der nachpriijenden Behirde)
h\"u;;.u) Uoe BiUsoEE : LEIUS D CLAY
Golonel AGD v » 3 < =il S
*Strike out words not spplicable. - - ’ LY T UBA
* Nichtxutreffendes ist xu durchstreschen. ~ 4 Comuarndle v ~Chief




’ -o Legal Furm No.13
MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

Case No., 12-2000, ote, Order No.
Strafsache Ny. 12=2000, uswe Ver fiigung Nr.

Arthur FUHR .

mambership 15 orimingl otgandsetidns /sid Barticipation in canmm
was convicted of the offence of 3@8ign to ki1l and killing surrendered priscmers of war
wegen der folgenden strafbaren Handlung ZugehBriglmit in warbrecherischen Organisationen und
* Somesowry Teilnalme an einem allgemeinen Plan zu t8ten, und
by the *lxsscsoesbmex Military Court TStung von Kriegsgefangenen, dis sich ergeben hattens,
' *CGeneral at Dachau, Germmy
* Sigteniun in Dachan, Deutschland

* Mitttorm Militdrgerichte {Address of Court)
i *Oberen el (Anschrift des (Gerichts)

and sentenced to death by hanging
schuldig erkannt und zu Tod durch den Streng vexmrteilt

by Judgment dated the 21 Mareh 1947
durch Urteil vom 21 MRrz 1947

Whereas one

(date)
{Dalum)

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in
Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Uberprifung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, I hereby order:

verhalter und in Ausibung der mir dbertragenen Befugnisse verfilge ich:

That the findings and senteme are approved, The Cimmanding Generel, ¥Firet
Hilitery District, will carry the sentence into exscution at War Criminal Prison
Noe 1, ILandsberg, Gemay, at a time to b determined by hime

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestitigt werden, Dor Kommandisyende General,

vom MilitRybezivk I, wird dis Wllstreckung des Urteils im Kriegsverbreche rgeffngnis.
Nre 1, Landsberg, Deutschland, zu einer von itm festgpsetzten Znit, wranlassen,

Dated this
Gegeben am : /"'#‘

*Btrike out words not wpplicable.
* Nichissdreffondes isl 1u durchstreichen.




’ o l.rgnl Form No 13

MILITARY CGOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

(ase No 12-2000, ete.s . Order No.
Strafsache Nr. 122000, usWe Ver fiigung Nr.
Fritz GITER

apne --f CuUsei i X m - ) ANgek &7, .
mmba*uhif:\ h ‘or 'al cﬁﬁaﬁi’za’ ﬁm‘e”e’iﬁ'ﬂ’ rticipation in canmen

was convieted of the offence of d88ign to id1l and killing surrendered priscners of war
wegen der ‘fm"ynnh‘n Jl!r-ff!'mrrrn Hiandlung mnmﬁizif:m':;?;mlﬁm.n O;Eaf;:::.mu;? und

e o * Xy e ptung von Kriegsgefangenen, die sich ergeben hatten
n the “hueexsmdssgs Military (Cou

*(.eneral al Dachau, (e ymany
e i Dachau, Deutschland

(Address uf Court)

* \idsohecaex Militdrgerichte
i *Oberer 4 (Ansehrift des (lerichts)
/ (]

and sentenced to death by hanging
Tod durch den Strang verurteilt

Whereas one

schuldig erkannt und zu

by Judgment dated the 21 Mayeh IZ 7
durch Urteil vom 21 Mmrsz 19

and

fdllr}
{Datum)

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in
[iese Strafsache ist mir zur f}bcrpﬂ'lfrmg vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, | hereby order:
verhaltes und in Ausitbung der mir iibertragenen Befugnisse ver filge ich:

That the findings and sentence are anproved. The Coammanding Generel, FPirst
Military District, will carry the sentence into exsoution at War OCriminal Prison

Noe 1, Iandsberg, Germany, at a time to b detomined by him,

der Befund und das Urteil bestit worden, Der Kommandfeyends (Bneral,
vom Hﬁﬂlmnrk I, wird die Vo tnuh:né‘tdu Urte im Xriegsverbrechergef 8

Nr. 1, Landsberg, Deutschland, zu einer von ihm festgesetaten Znit, veranlassen,

Dated this

(Jegeben am 2

quz‘rl“'“"“"'r“““'.ﬂi""“
{
"LUCTUS Do LAY

*Strike out words not spplicable.

* Nichisadre[fondes ial xu durchsireichen.




Ci‘,’Cl 18 i \. .’ legal Form No 13

MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

Case No, 12-2000, oto, ' Order No.
Strafsache Ny. 1:-.@. unsw, . 1"(:‘_{&9;:»9 Nr.

Erwin €088
memborship 1a orimiRal of gaikekaldu} i Bhrtiotpation in eommon
was convicted of the offence of design %o kill amd killing surremdered prisomers of war
wegen der folgenden straflaren Handlung Zugehlirigkeit ia verbrecherischem Orgaaisationsm wad
D — Teiluakme an sinem allgemeinesm Plan su tStem, wmd
by the ‘Swsexwodiste Military Court T8twmg von Kriegsgefangmen, die sich ergebem hattem

*CGeneral at Dashau, Germamy
Stitmaben " Dashaw, Dewtschlend
pom m Ml'h't(i'rgen'ckl’e [“l:(lrlf‘D uf f.'r;lu.'ll,.
*Oberen : (Anschrift des tierichts)
and sentenced to death by hanging
schuldig erkannt und zu Tod dwreh dem Btrang verurteilt

by Judgment dated the 21 March 1947
durch Urteil pom" 21 Milrz 1847 aril

Il].lil" )
{Dalim)

Whereas one

Whereas the case has now come hefore me by way of review and after due considerntion and 1n
[ ese Strafsache ist mir zur f']’;‘;erpr:'ifrmg vorgelegt 1worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Such-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, | hereby order:
verhaltes und in Ausibung der mir ihertragenen Befugnisse ver fiige ich:

That the fimdings and sentence are approved, The Commanding Gemeral, Pirst
Military Distriet, will earry the sentemos imto exesoution at War Criminal Prisom
No. 1, Landsberg, Germamy, at a time to be determimed by him,

Dass der Befumd wad das Urteil bostlitigt werdem. Der Xommandieremde Gemeral,
vem Militldrbesirk I, wird die Vellstreokumg des Urteils im Kriegsverbreshergefiingis
Nre 1, Landsberg, Deutschlamd, su eimer von ihm fostgesetsten Zoit, Veranlagsem,

Dated this
Glegeben am

(Signature of Reviewin Authority)
( Unterschrift der nachp!-‘u; . Behorde)
LUCIUS v. CLA

General  USA

*Strike out words not applicable. e
; uman derFanliv ef
*Nichtzutreffendes ist su durchstreichen. b o { Tt'ld,F =




‘) Legal Furm No 13
MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfiigung nach Uberpriifungy

(lase No, ulz-m. ota, Order No,
Strafasache Ny, lz-m' Uswe 1'”‘_;}@!“:9 Nr,

Whereas one Philipp w
IName of Accused (Name dex ider) Angellagten)
was convieted of the oflenee of Pll'ﬁﬂiptﬁﬂ in Hlling a2 surrendered primr of war '
wegen der folgenden stroflaren Handdlung Teilnabme an der “m elnes li'ilxmfanmn, der plch
- o ergeben hatte
by the * st \Military Court

*(eneral s Dashau
« v - Dechan’ Devteckland

pom - *RESDER Militdirgerichle (Adidress of Court)
I { Ansehrift des fierichts)
*()eren -
and sentenced 1o impriscoment for fifteen years, commencing 12 May 1945
schuldig erkannt und zu finfgeln Jahren thlncnia verurteilt, mit Wirlung ab 12 Mai 1945

by Judgment dated the 21 Mareh 1%7
durch Urteil vow 21 Mirs 1947 104

idate
ilatum)

Whereas the ea-e has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in

[riese Strafsache ist mir zur u'"/:n‘pa'f'l',"luig vorgelegt worden und nuch entsprechendem Stwdiwon des Sach-

exercise of the powers couferrred upon me, I herehy order:
verhaltes und in Ausibuny der wmir iibertragenen Befuynisse verfiige ich.

, That the findings and sentence are approved, The Commanding General, First
Military Distriot, will oonfine Philipp RAMMANN in Wer Criminal Prison No, 1,
Landsberg, Germany, for a period of fifteen years, commencing 12 May 1945,

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestditigt werdemn, Der Kommandierends General,
vom Militirbesirk I, wird die Inhaftierung vom Philipp HAMMANN im Kriegesverbrechere
gefingnis Nr, 1, Landsberg, Deutschland, fr die Daver von f@nfzehn Jahren, mit
Wirlang ab 12 Mai 1945, veranlassen,

Dated this
(fegeben am

RSV AR Tk A ey S ’
“ Wl ;.‘._‘.,}J ‘:-LUJ. LY o - v i ¥ T
. i ‘/, LT 8 dwuellbl I, CLAY
TRV Ry, LE 3% o

a g % (Signature of Heview g Authority)
ko) Fo BSOS . Py ( [ nterschrift der nachpriifenden Behirde)

Julonel IR : f L JUCLUS Do CLAY
*Strike out words not u[;lnlu able f'r.l.l‘l.],vri"” m
*Noehtvwtrefendes 15t xu durchstreschen. Cowrnandepeisy-Chiefl




CAIGI 18 .‘

MILITARY CGOVERNMENT COURT
i MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

Case No. 12-2000, etce Order No.
Strafsache Ny, 12-2000, uawe Ver fiigung Nr.
Whereas one Heing HEIIENBRCICH

(Name of Accused) (Name des (der) ‘lnyrh‘aﬁren}

membe rship in oriminal organizations an participation in common
was convicted of the offence of design to kill and ld.lling surréendered prisoners of war

wegen der folgenden straflaren Iandlung ZugehBrigie it in. ve rbresherischen Organisationen und
“Shcooeasy Teilnalme an einem allgeme inen Plan zu t®ten, und
by the m)lilllur_\' (lourt mm& vyon m‘mr‘n’nenﬁ die sich ergeben hatten
i *(eneral at Dashau, O°rmany
* 1 ctocion in Dachau, Ddutschland

* Mo Militdrgerichie (Address of Court)
vom aomb"m filitdrgeric e i Conet)

and sentenced to death by hanging
schuldig erkannt und 2u Tod durch den Strang verurteilt

by Judgment dated the 21 Maroh 1947

durch Urteil vom 21 MBrxz 1947 and
{date)
{Dn:mn}

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in
Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Dberprifung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, | hereby order:
verhaltes und in Awsibung der mir dbertragenen Befugnisse verfilge ich:

Tat the findings and sentence are approved. The Commard ing General, First
MIXitary Distriot, will oarry the sentence into exscution at War Oriminal Prison
Nos 1, landsberg, G mmy, at a time to be determined by him,

Dass dor Bfund und das Urteil bestatigt
vom MIlithrbenirk I, wird dfe Vollst o8 Urteils tm Krisgsve rbreche rgefngnis
Ery 1, Landsberg, Deutsehlend, su einer van ihm fostgesetsten Zeit, veranlassen,

v
. _- Audﬁ
Untersohrift enden Behdrde)
LUCIUS D. CLAY

General
coumde'ﬁ;m-u%r o

Dated this
Gegeben am

v




v

CAIGI 18 * = LegalForm Ne. 13

A LITARY GOVERNMENT QOURT
MILITARGERICHT

ORDER ON REVIEW
Verfiigung _nc:ch Uberprifung

Case No. ~- L, Y Order No.
Strafsache Nr. Verfugung Nr.

Whereas one

(Name of Accused) (Name des, der, s‘mge“ag!en}l

' membersai, in cr 1 or ti 'd participati
was convicled of the offence of common dlia‘ign__toiﬁﬂ l;d%ﬂngosgr:indorad prﬁ:ons;"iigf war
wegen der folgenden strafbaren Hondlung Zugeh8rigkeit in verbrecherischen Urganisationen ynd
Tﬁlmhu mxrz.tnem allegeueinen Plan su téten, un:rn
Totung von egasgefangenen, die sich ergeben hatten

ooy

by the Mwtecooedite Military Court
*General al Dachau, Germany
6odockox in Dachau, Deutschland
mM:!itdrgcrichfe (Address of Court) {Anschrift des Gerichts)
*Oberen

and sentenced o death by hanging
schuldig erkannt und zu Tod durch den Strang verurteilt

by Judgment dated the 21 March 1947

durch Urteil vom 21 Mirz 1947 194 and
(Dale) (Datum)

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and alter due consideration and in
Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Uberprifung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des

exercise ol the powers conferred upon me, | hereby order:
Sachverhaltes und in Ausibung der mir ibertragenen Befugnisse verfige ich:

That the findings and sentence are approved but the sentence is commuted to
imprisonment for life. The Commanding General, First kilitary District, will confine
Wilhelm HOHL:R in mar Criminal Prison Wo. 1, Landsberg, Germany, for the duration of
his life.

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestatigt werden, dass Urtell jedoch in eine
lebenslangliche GCefangnisstrafe veradert werd. Der Kommandlerende Ceneral, voem
Militarbezirk I, wird die lebenslangliche Inhaftierung von wilhelm ABHLER im
Kriegsverbreschergefangnis Nr, 1, lLandsberg, Deutschland, veranlassen.

Dated this 4 >\ N
Gegeben am ot 194

A J.,u'-.'-h.} Y av] ol :": s
\)Z_',/1 ( "I.AiUVJ ULL; L2 &R 'J::/! LUCILL 0. ClAY
Rekhilld &y IR hoad (Signature of Reviewing Authority)
Tolorel wGo (Unterschrift der nachprifenden Behérde)
~ LUCIUS D. ClAY

“Sirike out words nol applicable. . General m

*Nichtzutreffendes ist zu durchstreichen. W

1067




’ Legal Form No.13

MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

Case No. 12-2000, ete. _ Order No.
Strafsache Nr. 12-2000, wew, Ver fiigung Nr.

Whereas one Jesef Jebhemm
.1 l‘hme uccu I (i\n:; des .‘d«r} an &

was convieted of the offence of ,rj,.m of war
wegen der folgenden strafbaren Handlung Tellmehme an eimem allgemeinen Flan su tten, wad
TSmg ven Kriegagefengmen, die sich ergebea hattem

m _
by the Yesormodeste Military Court

*(Ceneral at Dashau, Germamy
p in Dashan, Dewtsshland
vom Sifitdbarew Militdrgerichte ” 'f':jifl;:'d:: ?;glm
*Oberen
and sentenced to death by hanging
schuldig erkannt und 2v  Ted dureh dem Strang verurteils

by Judgment dated the 21 Mareh 18947
durch Urteil pom 21 Mirzs 1947 and

(date)
{Datum)

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in
Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Uberprifung vorgelegt icorden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, I hereby order:
verhaltes und in Ausiibung der mnir wbertragenen Befugnisse verfiige ich:

That the findings smd semtemee are approved, The Commanding Gemeral, First
Mlitary District, will carry the semtemoe inte exeoution at War Oriminal Prisom
No, 1, Landsberg, Germany, at a time to be determinmed by him,

Dass der Befwmd wmd das Urteil bestliitigt werdem, Der Xommsndieremde Gemeral,

vom Militlirbesirk I, wird die Vollstreckwmg des Urteils im Kriegsverbrechergefiingnis
Nre 1, Landsberg, Deutsechland, su einer vom ikm festgesetstem Zeit, versalassem,

Dated this !
~
Glegeben am n (; LW 194‘7

der nach
LuC US D. C I
General

*Strike out words not upplicable,
! Co: nmnder4iah8hief

*Nechisulreffendes ist 1u durehstreschen.

o=
(/LA~£4L4A_J :T . v
(Signature of Reviewn Au!horil)«)

{ Unterschrs




‘®
MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfiigung nach Uberpriifuny

(lase No 12-2000, eto. Order No
.“\'r'r'”_f..'?rlf‘;lr‘ AY 12-2000‘ UsSwW, I'{‘f:‘n:;?tu:’r Xr.

Whereas one Julius LASS“
(Name of A il YT ‘1"4.- dery Aoge

membership in orimlnnl organizations un:ci participation in eomnmpon
was convicted of the offence of desigan to kill surrendered prisoners of war
wegen der folgenden strafbarven Handluny ZugehBrigkeit in verbrecherischen Organisationen umd
* R Teilnahme an einem allgemeinen Plan, “riegsgefangens,
by the *lotesorssessm Military Court die sioh ergeben hatten, zu tBten

*Ceneral at Dachau, Germany

* Mgk n Daohau, D?utlohhnd
* Vigdtdawan Militirgerichte Conrt

l 'I“ r FI'
*(Oberen ey a4 iexiohly

and sentenced to {mprisonment for three years, comaeneing 6 lay 1946
schuldig erkannt und zu drel Jahrem Geffingnis verurteilt, mit Wirkung ab 6 lai 1945

by Judgment dated the 21 Maroh 1947
durch Urteil vom 21 Mirs 1947 194

dated
(e

Wherens the case has now come hefore me by wayv of review and after due consideration and

[iede .\'rrr:_f.*rfrhr gl mir zur F“'hn';,an'i_f'uug r'or_r;ffrfﬂ warvden wnd noch mf.w‘;rr:ehfmfnn Stuediwm des Sueh-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, | hereby order:
verhaltes und in Ausibuny der mir iibertragenen Befugnisse rerfiige ich:

That the findings and sentence are approved., The Commanding Gemeral, First
Military Distriot, will eonfine Julius LASSAK in War Criminal Prison Mo. 1, Landsberg,
Germany, for a period of three years, commemoing 6 May 19485,

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestdtigt .erdem, Der Kommandieremde Gemeral,
vom Militlrbesirk I, wird die Imhaftierung von Julius LASSAK im Kriegsverbrechere
gefingnis Nr. 1, Landsberg, Deutschland, f8r die Dauer von drei Jahrem, mit Wirkung
ab 6 Mal 1646, veranlassem,

Dated this
Gegeben am
A CERTIFIE myu COPY: A g
% fLi*)_,\—\ s \ 78/ LUC.uu 0. SLAY
muc’“‘p g M‘f ‘ (Signature of Reviewing Aythority '
HOJARD F. JJ.U‘.'BLE ! Om‘ L'f { Unterschrift der nachprifenden Behorde:
Colonel AGD \ LUCLUS D. GLAY
*Strike out words not upplicnble‘ L ArGhie L : LA
* Nichtsareffendes sst xu duroksireichen. / 5 Commaid eky-Chlef




3 A
MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfiigung nach Uberpriifung

(lase No lé-—ki;ﬂ)(), etCn Order Mo
Stra fsache Nr. 12=-2000, usw, Ver fiiguny Nr.

Heinrich Matthias WICHELY

Whereas one

A N e of Apenped { Name gles fery Angellayie: z . N .
membership in eriningl organizations’and participation in
was convieted of the offence of killing a surrendered prisoner of war
wegen der folgenden strafharen Handlung Lughnari&koit. in verbrecherischen urganisat.onen urd
SSooxmaxx Teilnahme an der Totuny eines Krie, sy efanjena, der
by the Sbooooodeee Military Court sich ergeben hatte '

*(ieneral it Dachau, Germany
shibnanine 17 Jaciu, veutscnlund
PO soticstmone Militiargerichte { ""’“":' vl Gyt

*()eren

Auzeirritt des tierichts

and sentenced to death by hanying
schuldig erkannt und zu Tod durceh den octrang verurtellt

by Judgment dated the 21 Larch 1947
durel Urteil vom 21 Mars 1947

date
i lintiemi

Wherens the ease has now come belore me by way of review amd after due con=ideratton and in

Ddiese Strafsache ist mir sur Uherpriifung voryelegt worden wund wich entsprechendem Stwlvon les Sach-

exevcise of the powers conferred upon me, I herehy order:

verhaltes und in Ausiibung dey wir iilertragenen Befugnisse verfige ich:

That the findin.s and sentence are approved but the sentence is comuuted to
imprisonment for life, The Commanding General, First ¥ilitary pistriet, wiil cunf.ne
Heinrich Matthias LICHILY in .ar Criminal Prison No. 1, Landsberg, Germany, Lor Lue
duration of his life.

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestatigt werden, dass das Urteil jeduch in
eine lebenslangliche Gefangnisstrafe veradert werd. Der l.omrancierende Generali,
vom Militarbezirk I, wird die lebenslangliche Inhaftierun, ven deinrich Uattidas
1ICIILY im Kriegsvertrecnergefangnis Nr. 1, Landsberg, Deutschland, veranlassen.

Dated this
Gegeben am
A CEATIFI D TAUE CUPY: b Sk YA
g < N {8y LUSIUS D. Glal
O\,Lc( S, PSS N 4 i (Hi;mlu_n: of Reviewing Authonity
HOWARD F. BRESEE 3 { Unterschrift der nachpriifesden Behoride
Colonel AGD Y ) LUuils Do CuaX
*Strike out words not upplicable. g+ © Gene I‘I.‘LT USa
o) F o |
* Nichtzudreffendes ist xu durohstreschen. % v . qut\llﬁw'c;'}id




CA/CI 18 " ’

MILITARY CGOVERNMENT (( il RT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

Order No

1er friynng Nr.

Case No, 12-2000, ete,
Strafsache Nr. 12«8000, wow,

Whereas one Hermann m -
(Name of Accuses {Name des deri Anyeilayten

WAas {',rhll\'il'll"tl of the offence of Mid”ﬁm m kilm‘ a .mm“r“ pri'on.r or mr
wegen der folgenden strafbaren Handlung Peilnehme em der m..‘ eines Kriegsgefangenen, der
. sieh ergedbem hatte

tummer ]
h)' the w.\hlllary Court
*Cenera at Dachau, G

vom Ysddlapg-2ilitdrgerichte , (Address of Court

i Ansehrift des (ierichis)
*Oberen

and sentenced to death by hanging
schuldig erkannt und zu Tod dureh dem Strang verurteilt

by Judgiment dated the 21 Mareh 1947
dureh Urteil vom 21 Mirs 1947

idate
{Datum)

Whereas the ca<e has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in
[iese Strafsache ist mir zur m;rrprr'ifmlg vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Stwdivon des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, | hereby order:
verhaltes und in Ausiitbung der mir ithertragenen Befugnisse verfiige ich:

That the findings and sentemee are approved but the sentense is commuted to
imprisonment for life, The Commanding Gemeral, First Military Distriot, will confine

Hermsmn MOLLER in War Criminal Prison No, 1, Landsberg, Germany, for the durmtion
of his life,

Dass der Befund wnd das Urteil besthtigt werdem, dass das Urteil jedeeh in
oine lebensllingliche Gefingnisstrafe verlidert werd, Dler Kommandiersnde Gemeral,
vom Militlhrbesirk I, wird die lebenslingliehe Inhaftierung von Hermsnn MULLER im
Kriegaverbrechergefingnis Nr, 1, Landsberg, Deutschland, veranlassen,

Dated this ; \
Gegeben am Z < ’\ v /J? //\1\94 ,

d )

“Y =

/i SEULELID GAUE COY: Gl el \ 55, A% SR
%vwa’l L”.. J) u 1- Lx—k\ ~. 'ﬁfkfﬁls‘ ;“_\/ /:J/ LLUGIUS D, CLAY

T

(Signature of Reviewing Authority)

s " (S, ""':‘.\J 8 Jig
HAGSEE -, INTY %ﬁ

:‘;":\ihmj, 4 ) { Unterschrift der nachpriifenden Dehirde,
une.l . %) i Y
i = S (N LUCLUS . CLAY

. ’ f - LY r
*Strike out words not licabl v ¢ oA
applicable the

*Nichtrudreffendes ist xu durchsireschen. Y 18 S QoL qwﬂinu;xia.f




o ‘ ¢ lLegal Form No.13

MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT
Order on Review

Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

Case No 12-2000, ete, : Order No.
Stra fsuche Ny, 12-2000, nrw, Ver fiigung Nr.

Whereas one Pﬁ‘ll 'AF‘G“"
IName ol Aecuse {Name des ider) Anyellagten)

Wihs oivietell ol the offence of -y rk1aipatt i tn z411ng a surrendsrad prisoner of war
wegen der fulgenden stroflaren enddluny Te‘lnahne an der Tﬁtlmg eines arhppfm;encn. der

LTS sish argeben hatte
v the m-- Military Court J
*(.enera at Neshau, ﬂow

WA R KRR, in Dashau, Neutachlamd
PO m.Uf'h'h}'rr;u'.f:‘hfe \-Iuir-;.-- wf Court
i) enen { Aviseleraft des tieriehlsi
and “"I""'”'""I "' Amprigmnant for five years, eommenging 8 Meoamber 1945
schuldig exkannt 1ml S C%nt Tahpen Geffnmis verurteily, =it Wirkuwag ab ¢ Dezember 1945

h_\ JIJII;_’UII‘“I dated the ?1 March 1047
tdwrveh Urteil rom 21 Mrz 1947 194 and

idute
Dt

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due constderation and in

Doiese Strafsache ist omir =ur :'"Im-;u‘r'i_r}my vorgelegt worden und noch entsprechendem Stwdivm des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, | herelhy order

verhaltes wad in Ausiibuny der mir iibertragenen Befugnisse verfiige ich:

That the findings and sentence nre approved, The Commanding General, First
Military Diatrict, will eonfime Panl FAHRCOANG im War Criminal Prison No. 1, Landsberg,
Germeny, for a period of five years, commamoing 8 Tecember 1948,

Dass der Befund wnd das rteil bestltipgt worden, Der L)auandierende General,
vem Hil.thrbesirk I, wird die .nhaftierung vin Paul i(ARUANG ia .risgsverbresher=
gefiagnis Nr, 1, Landsberg, Deutsehland, ffr die Dauer von ffnf Jalren, ait éirkwg
ab 6 Desember 1945, veraulassen,

Dated this k
(fegeben am - ' 194 ’

b el L ) v g WIS £ » ’ . = T

) 3 "4 - ‘_ \ A .
v u(' I R A X ! » (Signature of Reviewing Authority)
il Towd o e hd s

1 Unterschrift der nachpriifenden Behirde)

Colone. ive o 1 LUCIUS V. CLAY
*Strke out words oot apphicable e Gmoﬁl'"ri{lt] USA
" Noehtawdreffendes vst xu durehstreichen. g o v -J.ﬂ.{ldm




CACl 18 ’” ". Legal Form No.13

MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

(CCase No. 12-2000, otoe Order No.
Strafsache Nr. 12=2000, usw®e Ver fiigung Nr.

Whereas one : Michas]l BAAFY
1Nlme of Accused) (Name des (der) Angeklagten)

msmbership in eriminal organimsations participation In ocsmom:
was convicted of the offence of design to ki1l end nllil g surrendered iscmers of war ;
a(egm der folgenden strafbaren Handlung Bugehlydgin 1t in verbresberisehen Orgenisationen und
* ey Teilnalme an efnem allgemeinen Plan su t8ten, und
by the *bomoomdose Military Court ~ T0tung von Krisgsgefangenen, die sioh ergsben hatten
) *Ceneral at Dashau, Germmy

vom * Micwdmmmn Militdrgerichte (Address of Court
*Oberen (Anschrifi des J]

and sentenced to death by bmclgt
schuldig erkannt und z« TOA durch den Streng verurteilt

by Judgment dated the 21 March 1947

durch Urteil vom 21 Mya 1947
(dat
r!)at:al)

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in
Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Uberprifung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, I hereby order:
verhalter und in Ausibung der mir dbertragenen Befugnisse verfiige ich:

That the find ings anl ssntence are approved, The Commanding Generel, Firet
Military Distriot, will carry the sentence into emscutica at War Griminal Prisom
Foe 1, Landsberg, Gemmy, at a time to be determined by him,

Dass der Befund und das Urteil destétigt werden, Ddr Kommaniferends General,
van MiIit8rbezirk I, wird die Vollstrechung des Urteils im Krisgswrbrechergeffugnis

Nrs 1, lLandsberg, Deutschlanl, su einer wvon ihm festgpsetsten Zn2t, vereanlessenm, '

Dated this
Gegeben am

*Strike out words not applicable.
* Nichtzudreffendes sst 1u durchstreichen.




- . »

MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfiigung nach Uberpriifung

12-2000, eteo. Order No
12-2000, Uswe rr’r‘f‘i'fyuu_q Nr.

Otto BOMANN

membership i’ &AL ofgai1%at{dns and Participation in common
W Hs convieted of the offence of &m to H-u .mgl‘.d sonsrs of ar
weaen der folgenden straflaren andlung l’,u ver charischen Ornniutim und
4 ”";2 ad J%:ﬁn.ll- an einem allgemsinen Plan, Kriegsgefangenen,
by the m Mihitary Court die-sich .mb.n htm' su tSten
*(.eneral at Mhnl
e 2 v 2+ 1 Dtohnu, Deut

[Address of Court)

R \i/ilirgerichte
ek rarg [Anschrift des tieriehis)
*(Oberen

and sentenced to inprim.nt for four Years, ocommencing 30 1945
schuldig erkannt und >u¥ier Jahren &m mhilt, it Wr ab 30 Mail 1945

by Judgment dated the 21 Marech 1947
durch Urteil pom 21 Mitrs 1947 194

(date)
fDatum)

(nse No,
Ntrafsache Nr.

Whereas one

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and 1n
Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Uberpriifung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studiwm des Sach-

exervcise of the powers conferred upon me, | hereby order:
verhaltes und in Ausitbung der mir iibertragenen Befugnisse verfiige ich:

That the findings and sentence are approved. The Commanding Gensral, First
Military Distriet, will confine Otte SOMANN in War Oriminal Prisom No. 1, Landsberg,

Germany, for a period of four years, commencing 30 My 1945,

Dass der Befund und das Urteil bestiitigt werden. Der Kommandieremde General,
vom Militirbexirk I, wird die Inhaftierung von Otto SOMANN im Eriegsvertrecher—
gefingnis Nr. 1, Landsberg, Deutschland, fiir die Dauver von vier Jahren, mit
Wriung ab 30 Mei 1945, veranlassen.

Dated this 1 \
(egeben am ‘ 194 [

JEATIFIED Tals COPY: ‘ I‘ /s/ LUCIUS D. CLAY
WMJJ 4 L,f 02 = {”"(iigmtu_rndc;l;ﬂcvievm .lulh\};‘i}l'gdu

aWAID F. BRESEE \
Colonel AGD A

*Strike out words not spplicable.
* Nichtzsuwdreffendes ist ru durchsireschen.




CA/Cl 18 ‘ :5 Legal Form No.13

MILITARY GOVERNMENT GOURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfiigung nach Oberpriifung

Case No 12-2000, ote. Order No.
Strafsache Nr. 18=2000, wsw, . . Ver fiigung Nr.

Whereas one . h{l Frans w ; . : i ,
M’.%ﬂm ’.i’-"'.‘-“'.fﬂ‘ﬁ.‘ﬂ‘."‘ﬁf‘ j'utldpth- in commmem
was convicted of the offence of design %o kill aad killing surremdered prisemers of war
wegen der folgenden strafbaren Handlung Dugehlirigkeit in verbrecherisechen Orgmissticnen wd
“SEmmaEx Teilnshme en cinem allgemsinem Flem su thbtem, wd
by the *Sxsmsrwsbax Military Court h‘ ven Kriegagefangnen, die sich ergedben hattem

*General at Dachan, Germeny

A Lk in Dachan, Deutsehland . .
pom wodcsbeeswe Militdrgerichte (Address of Court

*Oberen (Anschrift des G )

and sentenced to death by hanging
schuldig erkannt und zu Tod dureh dem Strang verwrteils

by Judgment dated the £ Mareh 1947

durch Urteil vom 21 Mirs 1947
(date)
{Datum)

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in

Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Uberpriifung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exexcise of the powers conferred upon me, | hereby order:
verhaltes und in Awusibung der mir iibertragenen Befugnisse verfiige ich:

That the findings snd sentemee are appreved, The Gommanding Gemeral, First
Military Distriet, will earry the semtemse inte exeoution at War Oriminmal Prisea
Noo 1, Landsberg, Germmy, at a time to be determined by kim,

Dass der Befwnd wmad das Urtell bestiitigh werdem. Der Xemmsadierende Gemersl,
vem Militlirbesirk I, wird die Vellstreskmmg des Urteils im Krie
Nre 1, Landsboerg, Deutschland, su einer vem ilm festgesetsten Zeit, vermmlassen.

Dated this

Gegeben am

(Signatare of Reviewing Authoglty)
{ Untorschrift der ifemden
LUCIUS D. CILAY
*Strike out words not spplicable. et
* Nichtzutrefendes ist xu durchstreschen.




CACl 18 , ' Legal Form No.13

A

MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review
Verfiigung nach Uberpriifung

Case No. 12-2000, ete. Order No.
Strafsache Ny. 12=2000, UV, Verfugung Nr.

Whereas one Jurgen STRUOP - Y g
; . AN fA N A
1..0:‘.:LQ:'S;1£11"§?‘1° crofm.al qugf;ndfzﬁdﬂuna m{:articipation in common
was convicted of the offence of, Cesign tu }-..:;‘_I_ and K1ling swrrerdered prisoners of war.
Zugen8rigleit in verbrecherischen Organisationen und
wegen der folgenden strafbaren Handlung 4ULE1 rigke riscaen Lrg {
9¢ S Teilnuhme an eirem allgemeinen Flan zu t#ten, und

L] % 4
T8tung von Kriegsgefangenen, die sich ergeben hatten.

by the *boxsexssdooe Military Court
*Ceneral at Dachau, Geriany
* Kofubden in Dechau, Deutgchland

- v Mili : (Address of Court -
pom ‘mu Militdrgerichte (Anoohedft dos rt) )

and sentenced to cecata Ly
Tod G

schuldig erkannt und zu -°C

h)‘ ]udgmffnt dated the

durch Urteil pom
(date)
{Datum)

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in

Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Uberprifung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, I hereby order:
verhaltes und in Ausibung der mir ibertragenen Befugnisse verfilge ich:

itenc2 Lre & ruved.  Toe Comwnding General, First
t..c pentenrce into execuativn st iizr Criminal Irison

1 12 e s b2 cotermined by 'dr.

estitl werden. Der ommandierende General,
reckun;’ des Urizils im Ixriegsverbrechergeflingnis
] 4+

ey Wl ihm feotgooceizt n Leit, veranlassen,

Dated this zq M

Gegeben am

/ =T
L2t en » S kﬁ_‘_,._’
~ (Signature of Reviewing Authority)
(Diniotocheift dar sashpriisondin Behorde)
LUCIUS D. CLAY

*Strike out worda not upplicable.
* Nochtzsdreffendes ist 1u durchsireichen.




». . ” Legal Furm No.13

& &
'MILITARY GOVERNMENT COURT
MILITARGERICHT

Order on Review

Verfigung nach Uberpriifung

Case No. 12-2000, etc, Order No.
Strafeache Nr,... < <" ; Ver fiigung Nr.
Whereas one _ Ears TRUMMLER

membershi "TACAERYDa1 (Nome 44 Ly Angetiogien articiration in
was convicted of the offence of common deaiﬁn to ki1l and k1)ing surrecdercé prisoners of wer.
- Brigkeit ir verbrecherischen Organisationen und
en einem allgemeinen Plan zu t8ter, und
_ - Tﬂtun” Vo KJ‘i 3 ‘i‘ o4 n o '_'r,-"p’. h 1
by the Military Coitrt g n egsgelangenen, die sich eirgcoen hatten,
*CGeneral at Dachau, Cermany
* Dtagiovien ;i Dachau, Peutsclland £
vom *Aischoen Militdrgerichte (J\Liclr;u of Court) g
(Anschrift des Gerichis)
*Oberen
and sentenced to deatl by hanging
schuldig erkannt und zu Tod ‘durch den E£trang verurteilt

by Judgment dated the 21 March 1947

durch Urteil vom 21 Mlrz 1947 194 and
(da
{Da!::zu;

Whereas the case has now come before me by way of review and after due consideration and in
Diese Strafsache ist mir zur Uberprifung vorgelegt worden und nach entsprechendem Studium des Sach-

exercise of the powers conferred upon me, I hereby order:

verhaltes und in Awsibung der mir ibertragenen Befugnisse ver fiige ich:

That the findings wund sentence are &~ rouved.
Lilitary District, will carry the senteuce intc ex
Nue 1, Lendsbery, Cermany, at a tize t. be determined o)

Dass cer “efund und das Urteil bestd tigt werden. ¥ommandiere
vom !11itdroczirk I, wird die Vollstreckun; deeg Urteils in iersverirecnergefl ;ris
it
]

kre 1, Lanésberg, Ueutscnlend, zu einer ven ihrm estgesetzter weit, varu

Dated this
Gegeben am

2.,,,_,“ DUo.

. IfSisnnm of Reviewin, Authority)
(Unterschrift der nachpriifenden Behirde)
LUCIUS D. CLAY

!

*Strike out words not applicable. = :
R L R — radlicni




6 October 1947
htch o nvened at Leghorn, Italy/
- pursuant to paragraph 2, Spec al
s MO , cort of Leghorn, dated 22 July 194
Virgil N, Cordero was President and Lieutenant

W, Wellen, Infantry, Judge Advocate, was arraigned |

0 RONCAGLIA, An Itelian National
ShrcE: Violation of the Law of War. \

Specificatien: In that Roncagiin Tito, then a member I
Fascist Federazione of Terni, Italy, ac igg with and in supp
or Natant forces of the German Relch, @ belligerent enemy nation,
Polino, italy, on or about 24 January 1944, wrongfully,
™ “ond contrary to the law of war, summarlily kill S/Bgz.
Jing, & member of the Military Forces of the United States
rica by shooting him with a gune

PLEAS

£o the specification of the Charge: ‘Not Guilty
> the Charge: Not Gullty

FINDINGS

Of the specification of the Charge: Guilty
Of the Charge: Guilty

" SENTENCE

To be hanged by the negk until dead,.

The sentence was adjudged on 8 August 1947.

The action of the Convening Authority after review of
the record 1s:

"HEADQUARTZRS
P OF LEGHORN
UNITED STATES ARMY

APO 512 . . .,
' 10 September 1947 ‘

In the foregoing case of Tito Ronee an Itallan
Netional, the sentence Is approved and the of trial fo
for action under paragraph 15, Circular 1)4 arberas MIOUSA,
23 Septémber 1945, oo [ Wl ALY .

s




_ral Orders Noi 159, Hq MTOUSA, dated, @ #atober 1947 (Cont'd).

MRt y £
The record of trial was forwarded to\the Cpommanding General,
Mediterranean Theater of Operations, as confirming authority, f
action pursuant to paragraph 15, Circular\. Hendquarters MTOUSA,
ddted 23 September 1945, U : ¥ X Ay ut b

: : .
The action of the confirming authority afé&giroview of the
record of trial is: : : _

"HEADQUARTERS
MEDITERRANEAN THEATER OF OFERATIOKS
UNITED STATES ARMY
AP0 512

4 October 1947

In the foregoing case of Tito Ronceglia, the appeal submitted
on behalf of the accused 1s denied., The sentence of the commission
is approved and confirmed but commuted to imprisonment at hard labor
for life (ergastolo). As thus commuted, the sentence will be duly
executed, In accordance with the agreement of 19 April 1947 an:ered
into between the United States and the Italian Governments, Cas
Penale di Procida, on the Island of Procida, an institution of the
Italian Government, is designated as the place of confinement.

8/ L. C. Jaynes

L. C. JAYNES
Major General « 5S¢ Army
Commanding". ey

BY COMMAND OF MAJOR GENERAL JAYNES:

C. Fo COLSON -
Colonel, G. S, C.
Chief of Staff

‘




